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Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”’)  ETEEHEMERAT(RAT ) REME QT
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are pleased to (GEAIAERDRASH N IHBERE
announce the following financial highlights:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—-HLEFE

2012 2011 Change
—E—= —T—— B

RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTT

Revenue Wz 3,247,986 3,164,056 2.7%
Gross profit EF 592,202 653,745 (9.4%)
Profit before tax 7 A 42 ) 76,515 328,266 (76.7%)
Profit attributable to owners RARER AEEFE 71,662 283,620 (74.7%)

of the Company

Basic earnings per share, in RMB ~ EAXEARZF| (ARET) 0.05 0.21 (76.2%)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 (the “Period”), the
Group’s audited profit attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB71.7 million.

Basic earnings per share was RMBO0.05 (the year ended
31 December 2011: RMBO0.21), the calculation of such
basic earnings per share amount is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company, and
the weighted average number of shares of 1,335,299,269
(2011: 1,333,334,000) in issue during the year.

The board of directors (“the Board”) of the Company does
not recommend the payment of the final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2012. The Company had declared
and paid an interim dividend of 1.43 HK cents per share
and a special dividend of 3.57 HK cents per share during
the year ended 31 December 2012.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 28 May 2013 to 30 May 2013 (both days inclusive)
for the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitlement to
attend the AGM, during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for
attending the AGM, Shareholders should ensure that all
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration by no
later than 4:30 p.m. on 27 May 2013.
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I, on behalf of Leoch International Technology Limited, am
pleased to present the Group’s annual results report for the
twelve months ended 31 December 2012 (the “Period”) to
be reviewed by shareholders.

During the Period, the Group achieved continuous growths
both in production and sales volume on the back of capacity
expansions. However, the overall profit recorded a decrease
as a result of the suspension of certain production capacity,
as well as the surging costs from further expansion of the
Group’s management and sales teams for the new capacity
to be commissioned. |, on behalf of Leoch International, am
pleased to present the annual results for the twelve months
ended 31 December 2012. During the Period, The Group
recorded revenue of RMB3,248.0 million, representing an
increase of 2.7% from 2011. The profit attributable to the
Group’s equity holders was RMB71.7 million, representing
a decrease of 74.7% from 2011.

The lead-acid battery industry witnessed rapid development
in 2012 with continuous expansions in overall market size.
The PRC was shifting from the low-end labour-intensive
economy towards urbanisation under governmental policies,
pushing the economy into a new transformation stage to
upgrade economic structure from low-end manufacturing
to commercialisation and industrial automation, as
characterised by the expanding consumer demands and
in turn the increasing domestic demands for high-end
devices such as telecommunication equipment, computers,

AAERRELEBERTERARIEEANEEE
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electronic products and transportation vehicles. In lockstep
with such high-end devices, the overall market size of lead-
acid batteries, being their components, has been rapidly
expanding on the back of the increasing demands. Due to
the suspension of its certain production capacity during
the Period, the Group was unable to meet needs of certain
domestic customers, leading to a drop of domestic sales
in the PRC.

Historically, the high-end devices market including
telecommunication equipment, computer systems, electronic
products and large-scale transportation vehicles, together
with production and sale of lead-acid batteries being a
major component, has been dominated by manufacturers
including the global top 5 lead-acid battery manufactures
all from developed countries where their production bases
are situated. Nevertheless, China’s lead-acid battery market
is fast growing along with the overseas industrial transfer
for such high-end devices. The accelerating paces of lead-
acid battery industrial transfer to the PRC, given the aging
production equipment and lack of additional investment
faced by overseas manufacturers, also led to continuously
increasing overseas market share of Chinese lead-acid
battery products. Accordingly, the Group recorded increasing
sales to the European and American markets in 2012.
The Group will take initiatives to improve cooperation with
European and American enterprises to tap on opportunities
in these markets.
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During the Period, the Group operated more than 50 sale
offices in the United States, Europe, Southeast Asia and
China, two R&D centres and six production bases, with total
annual capacity of approximately 11 million KVAh. The Group
completed infrastructure construction of new production
bases in 2012, increasing site area of its production bases
to nearly 1,000,000 square metres. The new production
bases with production equipment in progress of testing are
expected to commence production by early 2013, allowing
the Group to expand production capacity in the coming years
SO as to accommodate the anticipated market growth.

The Group grasped opportunities from domestic industrial
upgrade and overseas industrial transfer to strengthen its
leading position in the lead-acid battery industry and expand
its market share. Leveraging on its sales network comprising
sale offices in the United States, Europe, Southeast Asia and
China and the sales force, the Group continued to partner
with high-end users. The partnership further improves the
influence and awareness of the Group’s products in battery
markets, which is positive for the Group to further expand
future market share all over the world.

The management is full of confidence in the market
prospects of lead-acid batteries, being one of necessary
components of high-end devices such as computer systems,
telecommunication equipment and transportation vehicles.
The Group will continue its commitment to enhancing
production and sale capacities as well as R&D and service
levels, catering for customer needs and consolidating its
competitive advantages, aiming to build itself into a leading
enterprise of lead-acid battery industry in the world and
create value for shareholders and the society.
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Acknowledgement:

The rapid growth of the Group is attributable to its loyal
and hardworking employees who devote themselves to
corporate development. Taking this opportunity, I, hereby,
on behalf of the Board of Directors, express my deepest
gratitude to the contributions of all the Group’s employees
and to the long-term support and trust by shareholders
and business partners. The Group is full of confidence to
continuously make contributions to shareholders and the
society.

Dong Li
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2013

Chairman’s Statement EfE#H4

S

BEEFRORE  AER - HRAEXERENT
WA BB T - FUtHE - AARKRKE
SHEXHFIEIMERARRHE - RO
BMUBEREEBBHRBAROSIFMEE -
SEAELORBFELRER AL EMIBLER -

BEx
2

BEE —T—=F=ZA=-+NH

—FFR

BrEBEMERAT | —T—



Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2012

The Group is primarily engaged in sale, development and
manufacturing of lead-acid batteries, which are conducted by
its in-house teams under a vertically integrated management
model. The Group sells over 2,000 models of lead-acid
battery products, ranging in capacity from 0.251 Ah to 4,055
Ah. Among the PRC battery manufacturers, the Group offers
one of the broadest lines of lead-acid batteries.

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (the “Period”),
the Group’s revenue amounted to RMB3,248.0 million,
representing an increase of 2.7% from RMB3,164.1 million
in 2011. Lead-acid batteries are classified into three market
categories, namely reserve power batteries, SLI batteries
and motive power batteries. Details of business operations of
the Group in the three lead-acid battery categories, namely
reserve power batteries, SLI batteries and motive power
batteries, are as follows:

Reserve power batteries:

Reserve power battery products are further classified into
four major application areas, namely uninterrupted power
supply system (“UPS”), telecommunications, other consumer
products and renewable energy. Reserve power batteries are
the major revenue generator of the Group. The Group’s sales
of reserve power batteries during the Period amounted to
RMB2,371.3 million, representing a decrease of 8.0% from
2011. The decrease was attributable to the dwindling sales
in two categories of UPS and telecommunications, whereas
consumer product batteries and renewable energy batteries
witnessed growth in sales. The Group’s decreased sales in
UPS category was due to a temporary difficulty in meeting
the needs of customer orders, as a result of the production
suspension and rectification under governmental regulation
during certain periods in 2011 and 2012 at the Group’s three
production bases in Zhaoging, Shenzhen and Dongguan
which account for a majority of the Group’s production

FAEEXERENRETONHEE ALY
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capacity of UPS batteries. The Group’s decreased sales in
telecommunications category was mainly due to a reduction
in orders arising from the decreased overall investments of
telecom customers in 2012. The category of other consumer
products, one of the most competitive products of the
Group, experienced growth in its sales during the Period
which was attributable to the increasing market share of
the Group in such product category. The Group’s sales in
renewable energy batteries increased due to the widespread
application of emerging renewable energy, such as solar and
wind power generation worldwide.

SLI batteries:

SLI batteries are used mainly in starting automobiles and
motorcycles. The Group’s sales of SLI batteries during
the Period amounted to RMB761.1 million, representing
a substantial increase of 102.9%. The increase was
attributable to a significant production growth in SLI batteries
for automobiles and motorcycles, as a result of the Group’s
higher capacity utilization rate in the Period.

Motive power batteries:

Motive power batteries are mainly used to provide power
for electric vehicles such as forklifts, golf cars and electric
bicycles and other portable devices. During the Period,
the Group recorded sales revenue of RMB88.6 million,
representing a decrease of 50.2%. In view of the fierce
competition in electric bicycle battery industry, the Group
geared down its investment in this category, resulting in
the decreased sales in motive power batteries during the
Period.
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Sales network

The Group distributes its products to more than 100
countries and regions across the world. The Group’s regional
sales centres are located in Beijing, Shenzhen, Zhaoqing,
Nanjing, the United States, the European Union, Hong Kong,
Singapore, India, Sri Lanka and Malaysia, together with 34
domestic sales centres across the PRC. Currently, the Group
has over 500 dedicated sales and after-sales employees.
The Group will continue expanding its sales teams and
marketing network to support sales, distribution, and after-
sales services for the reserve power batteries, SLI batteries
and motive power batteries of the Group.

Research and development of new products

The Group is a leader in R&D and application of lead-
acid battery technologies in China. The Group’s battery
research and development team consists of more than 400
researchers and technicians. To support its R&D efforts,
the Group works closely with international and domestic
battery experts and research institutions to develop new
technologies. Currently, the Group holds 369 patents and
other 390 proprietary technologies are in the process of
patent applications.

The Group has grasped and applied most of lead-acid battery
technologies in the world, including technologies used in the
first generation open-type fluid infusion battery, the second
generation Absorbent Glass Mat (“AGM”) battery and new
energy battery, the third generation pure lead battery, and
the fourth generation Stop-Start battery. The Group is one
of a handful of enterprises in the world possessing the third
and the fourth generations of technologies. The Group’s
strong R&D capabilities enable it to produce a broad range
of battery products deploying most of the key lead-acid
battery technologies. Currently, the Group has developed
more than 2,000 models of battery products of different
types employing various application technologies, making
the Group one of the battery enterprises with the broadest
range of lead-acid batteries.
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Production bases

During the Period, the Group operated eight production
bases, including five wholly-owned production bases in
the PRC, a production base in Sri Lanka and two joint
venture production bases in Malaysia, with a total site
area of approximately 910,000 sg.m.. Currently, most new
production bases have completed infrastructure works with
production equipment installed, and have commenced
trial production. As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s
production capacity has increased to 11.0 million KVAh
from 9.6 million KVAh as at the end of 2011. The Group
will vigorously expedite the commissioning of the production
bases to further expand its production and manufacturing
capacities.

Trend of lead price

Lead is the main raw material of lead-acid batteries and
accounts for a major sales cost for the Group’s battery
production. According to Shanghai Metals Market, an
information service provider of non-ferrous metal market,
lead prices were generally declining under slight fluctuation
during the year. Domestic average lead price decreased from
RMB16,328 per ton in 2011 to RMB15,291 per ton in 2012,
representing a decrease of approximately 6.4%. To cope
with potential risks of fluctuations in lead price, the Group
adopts a price linkage mechanism, passing raw materials
price fluctuations to customers to hedge relevant risks. The
Group’s centralized procurement of raw materials enables
it to trim down costs of raw materials through favourable
negotiations on bulk purchase contracts.
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Production suspension of certain plants

Shenzhen Leoch Battery Technology Co., Ltd. and Dongguan
Leoch Battery Technology Co., Ltd., two subsidiaries of the
Group that engage in the assembly and production of lead-
acid batteries, suspended production for self-examination
in 2011. The two subsidiaries, with a focus on reserve
power battery products, accounted for only 3.5% of the
comprehensive production capacity of the Group. Dongguan
Leoch Battery Technology Co., Ltd. has resumed production
since 18 January 2012, while Shenzhen Leoch Battery
Technology Co., Ltd. has closed its production capacity.

Zhaoqing Leoch Battery Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Group that engages in the production of lead-acid
batteries, suspended production for self-examination and
rectification in July 2012 as required by local authorities to
cooperate with the local government for a special environment
protection campaign. Zhaoqging Leoch Battery Technology
Co., Ltd., with a focus on reserve power battery products,
accounted for approximately 20% of the comprehensive
production capacity of the Group in 2012.

Batteries, one of the necessities in modern society, are
mainly used in UPS at data centres of computer networks,
automobiles, motorcycles, telecommunication base
stations, train, subway, solar and wind power stations,
substations, electric vehicles, elevators, backup lights and
medical equipment. As such equipment industries have
been dominated by European and American countries,
the accessory batteries are also manufactured overseas
traditionally. However, the surging application of such
equipment amid the urbanization paces of the PRC is pushing
forward a shift for such equipment to be manufactured
domestically. Hence, the Group believes that the lead-acid
battery market will enjoy continuous growths as driven by
domestic industry upgrading and the ongoing shift of the
high-end industries from overseas.

The Group anticipates that lead-acid batteries will sustain
the growth momentum in three categories, namely reserve
power batteries, SLI batteries and motive power batteries. To
grasp these market opportunities, the Group has formulated
the following strategic plans for the three categories of
lead-acid batteries:
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Reserve power batteries:

Equipment manufacturers and operators are the Group’s
major customers. Reserve power battery products have four
major application areas, namely UPS, telecommunications,
other consumer products and renewable energy. The Group
had been affected by insufficient production capacity during
the period on these four major application categories. The
Group expects to expand the supply of reserve power
battery products with its new production capacity coming
on stream. The Group also believes that in the long run,
reserve power batteries will sustain the growths in all the
four categories as high-tech industries are taking over low-
end industries in the urbanization and industry upgrading
progresses of the PRC, leading to escalating demand for
various high-end electric equipment products. The Group
has exerted all its efforts to expand the market share to
secure its leading position in the domestic market of reserve
power batteries.

SLI batteries:

China is in the process of urbanization. Urban population in
the PRC for the first time in history exceeded rural population
in 2012. The urbanization progress is expected to further
spread from dozens of major metropolises to over 200
second-tier cities and more than 3,000 third-tier cities,
leading to higher urbanization rate of the PRC and thus
the increasing transportation demand within and among
domestic cities and towns. China has been ranking first
in vehicle production and sales in the world since 2010.
A consensus is therefore achieved in the market that the
momentum of vehicle production and sales in China will
continue from 2013 to 2022, further multiplying the demand
for SLI batteries. The Group has strengthened its investment
in SLI batteries, aiming to become one of the leading
suppliers of SLI batteries for automobiles in China.

Motive power batteries:

The demand for motive power batteries has been propelled
by the extensive promotion and application of the batteries
in electric transportations such as electric bicycles, low-
speed battery vehicles and forklifts. However, in view of the
market uncertainties among fierce competition by crowded
manufacturers of electric bicycle batteries, the Group intends
to maintain its current market share and withhold additional
investments before the market becomes more visible.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s
revenue amounted to RMB3,248.0 million, representing an
increase of 2.7% compared to the year ended 31 December
2011. The profit attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to RMB71.1 million, representing a decrease of
74.7% compared to the year ended 31 December 2011.
Earning per share for the year ended 31 December 2012
was RMBO0.05.

Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by 2.7% from RMB3,164.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2011 to RMB3,248.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The revenue of reserve power batteries decreased by 8.0%
from RMB2,578.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2011 to RMB2,371.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2012. The revenue of SLI batteries increased by 102.9%
from RMB375.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2011 to RMB761.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2012. The revenue of motive power batteries decreased
by 50.2% from RMB178.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2011 to RMB88.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2012. Details of the Group’s revenue for the
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012 by category of
batteries are set out below:
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2012 2011
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Percentage

Product category Revenue Share increase Revenue Share
EmRR Wz ihtE BR=E Weas (=154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTT ARETT
Reserve power batteries #HAE) 2,371,303 73.0% (8.0%) 2,578,549 81.5%
SLI batteries HEENE S 761,144 23.4% 102.9% 375,190 11.9%
Motive power batteries BNES 88,566 2.7% (50.2%) 177,973 5.6%
Other HAth 26,973 0.9% (16.6%) 32,344 1.0%
Total B 3,247,986 100% 2.7% 3,164,056 100%




Geographically, the Group’s customers are principally located
in Mainland China, the United States of America, European
Union and other Asian countries/areas. The Group recorded
growth in its sales in the United States of America, European
Union and other areas while there was reduction in sales in
Mainland China and other Asian countries/areas in particular
India. The Group’s sales revenue in Mainland China decreased
by 5.7% from RMB1,552.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2011 to RMB1,463.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2012, representing 45.1% of the Group’s total
revenue (for the year ended 31 December 2011: 49.0%). The
decrease was mainly attributable to the decreased sales in
telecommunications category due to a reduction in overall
investments of domestic telecom operators, which are major
customers of the Group’s telecommunication batteries.
The Group’s sales revenue in the United States of America
and European Union increased by 4.0% and 20.7% from
RMB489.5 million and RMB522.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2011 to RMB508.9 million and RMB630.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2012, respectively.
The increase was principally due to the shifting of orders of
these overseas customers to the Group, given the higher
competitiveness of the Group’s products over the European
and American rivals as a result of the Group’s strengthened
technology upgrading for its products. The Group’s sales
revenue in other Asian countries/areas decreased by 6.0%
from RMB486.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2011 to RMB456.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2012. The decrease was principally due to the decrease
in sales in India as a result of the depreciation of Indian
currency which reduced the competitiveness of certain
models of the Group’s products manufactured in China.
The Group’s sales revenue from battery products in other
countries increased by 66.0% from RMB113.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2011 to RMB188.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012. The increase was
attributable to the higher market competitiveness of the
Group’s products as a result of the improving technological
edge over European battery manufacturers, the traditional
suppliers in such countries which mainly include Africa and
South America.
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The revenue information following is based on the location
of the customers for the years ended 31 December 2011
and 2012:

ATREAEERBE_ZT——FR_FT—_F+
“A=THIFE - RS 5 AR

2012 2011
—B-—fF T
Percentage
increase/
(decrease)
RMB’000 Share EE  RMB’000 Share
AR®T Aotk (TE)Z ARBTT Bkt
Mainland China s 1,463,502 45.1% (5.7%) 1,552,594 49.0%
United States of America E3E] 508,867 15.6% 4.0% 489,453 15.5%
European Union B 630,286 19.4% 20.7% 522,283 16.5%
Other Asian countries/areas  E a5/ 456,675 14.1% (6.0%) 486,044 15.4%
BIx, b=
Other countries HiFxR 188,656 5.8% 66.0% 113,682 3.6%
Total =X 3,247,986 100% 2.7% 3,164,056 100%

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales increased by 5.8% from
RMB2,510.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2011
to RMB2,655.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2012. The increase was mainly attributable to the dampened
capacity utilization rate and additional expenses due to
the increased environmental investments for overall
improvements in environmental facilities of the Group’s
plants, which led to a faster growth percentage in cost of
sales than sales revenue accordingly.

Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit decreased by 9.4% from RMB653.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2011 to RMB592.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2012, mainly
attributable to the higher growth percentage of depreciation
and staff costs than that of sales during the Period. The
overall gross profit margin decreased from 20.7% for the
year ended 31 December 2011 to 18.2% for the year ended
31 December 2012.
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Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains decreased by 38.7% from RMB70.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2011 to RMB43.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2012, which was
primarily due to the decrease in government grants during
the Period.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The Group’s selling and distribution costs increased by 40.2%
from RMB114.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2011 to RMB159.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2012, primarily due to the expansion in sales network as
the Group further penetrated into the SLI battery sector and
the increase of transportation charges.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 27.8%
from RMB179.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2011 to RMB229.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2012, mainly due to the increased administrative staff in
order to strengthen management for continuous expansion
during the Period.

R&D expenses

The development expenditure of the Group increased
by 40.6% from RMB66.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2011 to RMB93.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2012. The increase in expenditure was mainly
used for performance enhancement of existing products
and development of new products, enhancement of product
competitiveness and increased commitment in research and
development.
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Other Expenses

The Group’s other operating expenses increased by 84.1%
from RMB6.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2011 to RMB12.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2012, mainly due to the increase in impairment provision
of assets.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by 115.8% from
RMB29.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2011
to RMB62.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2012, mainly due to the increase of borrowings during the
Period.

Profit before Tax

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded
profit before income tax of RMB76.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2012 compared to RMB328.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2011, representing a
decrease of 76.7%.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased by 89.1% from RMB44.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2011 to RMB4.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2012, mainly due
to the decrease in profit.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group’s profit for
the Period decreased by 74.7% from RMB283.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2011 to RMB71.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had net current assets
of RMB324.0 million (31 December 2011: RMB818.1 million).
The Group’s current assets mainly consist of inventories,
trade and bills receivables, cash and bank balances, and
prepayments, deposits and other receivables. The Group’s
current liabilities mainly consist of trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals, and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

Inventories

Inventories constituted one of the principal components of
the Group’s current assets. As at 31 December 2012, the
Group had inventories of RMB847.1 million (31 December
2011: RMB991.0 million). The decrease in inventories was
primarily due to the enhancement in inventory management
by the Group to optimize inventory.

Trade and Other Receivables

The Group’s trade and bills receivables primarily relate
to receivables for goods sold to its customers. As
at 31 December 2012, the Group had trade and
bills receivables of RMB939.7 million (31 December
2011: RMB804.1 million). The increase in trade and
bills receivables was primarily because the Group
further expanded the market, adjusted its marketing
strategies, purchased credit insurance for some quality
customers and thus extended the payment term of
those customers.

The Group principally makes prepayments and deposits
in connection with its purchase of raw materials, the
large majority of which relates to its prepayments for
raw materials. As at 31 December 2012, the Group
had prepayments, deposits and other receivables of
RMB130.5 million (31 December 2011: RMB159.4
million). The decrease in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables was primarily because the Group
decreased the prepayments of raw materials.
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Trade and Bills Payables

The Group’s trade and bills payables primarily relate to its
purchase of raw materials that the Group requires for its
production process. As at 31 December 2012, the Group
had trade and bills payables of RMB1,006.9 million (31
December 2011: RMB547.9 million). The increase in trade
and bills payables was mainly because the Group invested
the retained capital into property, plant and equipment.

Other Payables and Accruals

The Group’s other payables and accruals primarily consist
of payments for its expenditures related to construction and
outfitting of its production facilities, payments it makes in
connection with transportation charges, advance payments
that some international customers make to it in advance of
its shipments, deferred government grants, and payroll and
benefits for its employees and staff. As at 31 December 2012,
the Group had other payables and accruals of RMB270.8
million (31 December 2011: RMB246.6 million).

Capital Expenditures

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
invested RMB689.2 million (31 December 2011: RMB777.6
million) in construction in progress and property, plant and
equipment for its new production facilities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s net current assets
amounted to RMB324.0 million (31 December 2011:
RMB818.1 million), among which cash and bank deposits
amounted of RMB848.3 million (31 December 2011:
RMB348.2 million). As at 31 December 2012, the Group
had bank borrowings of RMB1,394.5 million (31 December
2011: RMB1,071.6 million), all of which are interest-bearing.
Except for borrowings of RMB30.4 million which has a
maturity over two years, all of the Group’s bank borrowings
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are repayable within two years. The Group’s borrowings
are denominated in Euro, RMB, US dollars, HK dollars and
Singapore dollars, and the effective interest rates of which
as of 31 December 2012 were 1.0% to 7.8% (31 December
2011: 1.0% to 7.9%).

A portion of the Group’s bank borrowings are secured by
pledges over certain assets of the Group including property,
plant and equipment, leasehold lands, deposits and trade
and bills receivables. As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s
gearing ratio was 27.4% (31 December 2011: 25.2%), which
was calculated by dividing total borrowings by total assets as
at the end of each respective period, multiplied by 100%.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2012 (31 December 2011: nil).

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operates primarily in the PRC. For the Group’s
companies in the PRC, their principal activities are transacted
in RMB. For other companies outside of the PRC, their
principal activities are transacted in U.S. dollars. However,
as a result of the Group’s revenue being denominated in
RMB, the conversion of the revenue into foreign currencies
in connection with expense payments is subject to PRC
regulatory restrictions on currency conversion. The value of
the RMB against the U.S. dollar and other currencies may
fluctuate and is affected by, among other things, change
in PRC’s political and economic conditions. The Group’s
product sales adopted price mechanism by which the
currency fluctuation is basically transferred to the customers,
but the Group’s foreign currency trade receivables may
still be exposed to risk in the credit period. The Group
commenced using forward currencies contracts in the year
2012 to eliminate the foreign currency exposures arise from
sales denominated in US$ with total amount of US$5 million
(2011: nil). The forward currency contracts must be in the
same currency as the hedged item, i.e. US$.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 8,529 employees.
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration), which comprise wages and
salaries, performance related bonuses, equity-settled
share option expenses and retirement benefit scheme
contributions, totalled RMB435.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2012 (the year ended 31 December 2011:
RMB434.2 million).

The Group did not experience any significant labour disputes
that lead to any material impact on its normal business
operations.
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Executive Directors

Dong Li (Z 2), aged 46, is an executive Director and
our chief executive officer, chairman and founder. He has
been appointed as our Director since April 27, 2010, the
date of the incorporation of our Company. He is also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Dong
graduated from Northwest Textile University of Science
and Technology, the predecessor of Xi’an Polytechnic
University, in 1988 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering
and Xi'an International Studies College, the predecessor
of Xi’an International Studies University, in 1990 with a
bachelor of arts degree. Mr. Dong has over 10 years of
experience in the battery industry. He led our development
and application for over 20 patent rights relating to
batteries. Contributing to his business experience and
social participation, he received various recognitions and
honours in the past including Outstanding China Non-
governmental Entrepreneur (F B EHFR & B ¥K),
Rising Star Entrepreneur of Shenzhen (FII[BIEH £ |),
Honorary Citizen (82 R) of Zhaoging City in China and
Texas in the United States, and also holds social positions
including Committee Member of the Youth Committee
of All-China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese
(FEEH ST L8 2Z%58), Council Member of China
Society For Promotion of the Guangcai Program (B¢
WEZEREZIEE), Member of the Commercial Council
of the All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce (F
EZ2>FE I B EEEE), Vice Chairman of Guangdong
Commercial Chamber of High-Technology Estate (&
HeREE%E <8 € K), Honorary Chairman of the
Chinese CEO Organization (EEEHF TEpeRE2eR)
and Executive Vice President of the Southern California.
Overseas Chinese Association (B & NN E A E GBS
#“eFEEElER). Mr. Dong is a Controlling Shareholder
of our Company. For details of the relationship between
Mr. Dong and our Company, please see the section titled
“Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders”

HITES

BE 4650 ARRWMITES  THAER - =&
FAEIPA o b 520104827 (A2 & M A
VYHMEZEAESZ MARETAEETFA
BINEE - B AEN1088F EB L% T 26k
(ML TRABHRTS) TEELEA - 1990
FREARINEZER(ARI/INEZBRENFH)
NEBEL BN ERETEEMELEABBIOF
Ko A ERMMAEREAF®0EFBEEMLN
BH c EREERKLCBRMNSE NG  ELEBT
ERZERUNKE  BREETAETEEFRE
R ER - RYNBIEFE - FREEMRER
SREMNEETNR - TEATERSE - 2FF
EEHEFLEESLE PRAVEERESE
E FEXRIPHEBESE  ERAREXE
HEEeR  EREXTIEHEREeRLER
EMMNEAEBHCESETRISR EEER
RAGHERER - BEELARARR ZHBE
5 - B2 EERARR AR & o

BIEBEMERAT | — T —FFR



Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2012

Zhao Huan (%), aged 37, is an executive Director and
vice president in charge of international sales, administration,
human resources and treasury of our Company, as well
as the global promotion of our products. She has been
appointed as our Director since June 11, 2010. Ms. Zhao
graduated from Guangdong Economics Management
Cadre College specializing in finance in 1996 and from the
University of Hertfordshire in the UK in 2004 with a master of
arts degree in international business. She has over six years
of experience in international sales. Ms. Zhao first joined
our Company in 2004 as a foreign trade clerk. She was
subsequently promoted to foreign trade manager, deputy
general manager of foreign trade department and finally to
her current position, in which her responsibilities focus more
on the overall management and strategic development of our
sales and marketing. Ms. Zhao personally held 1,500,000
share options in the Company as at 31 December 2012.

Philip Armstrong Noznesky, aged 73, is an executive
Director of our Company and sales president of Leoch
Battery Corp. Mr. Noznesky has been appointed as our
Director since June 11, 2010. He is also the sales president
of Leoch Battery Corp. Mr. Noznesky graduated from Xavier
University in 1962 with a bachelor’s degree in sciences and
obtained a master of arts degree in Russian History from
Georgetown University in 1965. He joined us in 2007 as
sales president of Leoch Battery Corp. in charge of the
sales of our products in the U.S. market. Before joining
us, Mr. Noznesky had been in the management of other
companies in the battery industry, including Energy Battery
Group, Accumuladores Mexicanas, GNB Inc. and General
Battery Corp. He has over 40 years of experience in sales
of battery in the U.S. market. Mr. Noznesky personally
held 1,500,000 share options in the Company as at 31
December 2012.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

An Wenbin (Z X ), aged 73, has been appointed as our
independent non-executive Director since October 14, 2010.
Mr. An graduated from Zhongshan University, Guangzhou,
China with a bachelor’s degree in English language and
literature in 1963. In 1965, he obtained a master degree
in English from Beijing Foreign Languages University. He
was appointed as a diplomat to the Chinese Embassy in
Canada between 1978 and 1986 and between 1990 and
1994, part of which periods he served as a Ambassador
and Consulate General of the PRC. In 1987, he headed the
delegation to set up the Chinese Consulate General Office in
Los Angeles, California, and served as the Deputy Counsel
General and later the Counsel General at the office for the
next seven years. In 1995, he was the Chief of Protocol for
the 4thWorldWomen Conference, Beijing, China. From 1995
to 1997, Mr. An served as the Director General of Protocol
Department of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of PRC, during
which he was the Chief of Protocol Director for Hong Kong’s
Sovereignty Return to China Grand Ceremony. In 2001, he
was the Chief of Protocol Coordinator for APEC, Shanghai,
China. As the Chief Protocol and before his retirement
in 2002, Mr. An arranged for and accompanied Chinese
leaders, including President Jiang Zemin, Premier Li Peng
and Premier Zhu Rongji, in their visits to more than 30
countries, including the United States, France, Germany
and Russia. Mr. An personally held 300,000 share options
in the Company as at 31 December 2012.

Cao Yixiong Alan (& 75 ), aged 44, has been appointed
as our independent non-executive Director since October
14, 2010. Mr. Cao holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting
from Sonoma State University and an MBA degree from
the Anderson School of the University of California, Los
Angeles. He worked at the auditing department of Coopers
& Lybrand between 1993 and 1996, and obtained his CPA
license (California, United States) in 1996. From 1997 to
2002, he worked at J.P. Morgan and Merrill Lynch in their
respective private banking divisions. Since 2002, he has
been the executive director of Etech Capital, a subsidiary
of Etech Securities, Inc., responsible for its Greater China
private equity advisory business. He is also currently the
chief executive officer, director and founding partner of
Shanghai Great Wall Etech Capital Management Company,
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a joint venture between China Great Wall Asset Management
Company, one of the largest Chinese asset management
companies, and Etech Group. Mr. Cao is also currently
the chairman of the board of supervisors of Chongging
Tongli Heavy Machinery Manufacturing Co., LTD.. Mr. Cao
personally held 300,000 share options in the Company as
at 31 December 2012.

Liu Yangsheng (2[5 4), aged 66, has been appointed as
our independent non-executive Director since October 14,
2010. Mr. Liu studied wireless communications at Beijing
College of Posts and Telecommunications, the predecessor
of Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications, from
1965 to 1970. After that, he worked at Beijing College
of Posts and Telecommunications for more than 10
years until 1984. Mr. Liu joined the Ministry of Posts and
Telecommunications, the predecessor of Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology, in 1984, and served as the
director of the cadre members department and director of
the human resources department. Mr. Liu retired from the
Ministry of Information Industry, the predecessor of Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology, in 2007. Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology is responsible for
the overall management such as promulgation of industry
policies and strategies, implementation of laws and
regulations, and assessment for approvals and permits of the
telecommunication industry in the PRC which covers aspects
of telecommunication equipment such as telecommunication
batteries. Therefore, during his time with Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology and its predecessor, Mr. Liu
had the experience in working in the telecommunication
battery area. Mr. Liu is now the chairman of Cosmos Posts
& Telecommunications International Leasing Co., Ltd. (&=
HEEEHAE AR A7) and a supervisor of Viton Wireless
Technology AG, a company listed on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange (stock code: CHEN99). Mr. Liu personally held
300,000 share options in the Company as at 31 December
2012.
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Liu Shuen Kong (Ef)T), aged 41, is our chief financial
officer and our company secretary. Mr. Liu joined our
Company in October 2010. He graduated from RMIT
University of Australia with a bachelor’s degree in accounting
and a master’s degree in accounting in 1996 and 2002,
respectively. He further obtained a master's degree in
business administration from Deakin University of Australia
in 2004. Mr. Liu has more than ten years of experience in
accounting, auditing and management and has worked
at KPMG since 1996 as a manager, senior manager and
supervisor. From 1996 to 1999, he worked in the audit
department of the Hong Kong office of KPMG. From 1999 to
2010, he worked in the financial advisory service department
of the Guangzhou office and Shenzhen office of KPMG. Mr.
Liu is a qualified accountant of CPA Australia and Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Qian Guanghong (£ /& 7=), aged 40, is our vice president of
production. He studied management at Tsinghua University
in 2004 and electrochemistry at Harbin Industrial University in
2006. Mr. Qian joined our Company upon its establishment in
1999 and has over 10 years of experience in the production
of batteries. Mr. Qian began his career at our Group as a
head of factory, and was subsequently promoted to general
manager and vice president of production. He is experienced
in the production technology and process of various kinds
of rechargeable batteries. He established our 1ISO14000,
TS16949 and precision production management system and
promoted its application. He is in charge of the production
plans at our production facilities and the procurement and
certification of key production equipment. In December
2008, Mr. Qian was appointed by the China Electrotechnical
Society as a committee member of the First Lead Acid
Reserve Power Battery Expert Committee from 2008 until
2012,
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Hong Yu (it/dl), aged 42, is our vice president in
purchasing. Ms. Hong graduated from Northwest Textile
University for Science and Technology, the predecessor
of Xi’an Polytechnic University, in 1994 majoring in textiles
engineering and minoring in international economics and
sales. Ms. Hong has over 10 years of management and
operational experience. From 1994 to 2000, she worked
at X’an Oumei Handicrafts Co. Ltd (FAZEiEZ TR AR
A A]) as the manager of the foreign trade department. Ms.
Hong joined our Group in 2000 as a salesperson, and was
subsequently promoted to the manager of the foreign trade
department and deputy general manager of the foreign trade
department. From 2000 to 2005, Ms. Hong was in charge
of our foreign trade department. She was appointed the
vice president of our Company in 2005 in charge of our
purchasing department.

Xiong Zhenglin (B51E#K), aged 42, is our vice president
in charge of engineering and technical development. Mr.
Xiong graduated from Xiang Tan University in 1994 majoring
in industrial chemistry. After graduation, he worked in
Hunan Zhuzhou Motorbike Factory (#E#k)N EEFEE ) as
a technician until 1997. Between 1997 and 1999, Mr. Xiong
worked as a technical engineer at Guangdong Tanggian Xinli
Battery Limited, which is the production base of GS Yuasa
Corporation in the PRC. Mr. Xiong joined our Group in 1999,
and has over 10 years of experience in the management
of battery technology, quality control and equipment. Mr.
Xiong joined our Group as a quality control manager, and
was subsequently promoted to be our chief engineer, and
finally his current position. Mr. Xiong is the joint inventor of
eight patent rights relating to batteries. Mr. Xiong is also a
part-time graduate student advisor at School of Chemistry &
Environment, South China Normal University, a member of
the First Session of Lead-acid Battery Committee (£ —fE &
METHEEZE EEZ 8) of China Electrotechnical Society,
a member of the Standardization Committee of the People’s
Republic of China and has participated in the drafting of
several national standards for lead-acid battery industry.
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Li Yujiu (221 1), aged 62, is our vice president in domestic
sales. Mr. Li graduated from Beijing University of Posts and
Telecommunication in 1980, majoring in physics. Mr. Li has
worked as the deputy station master of Beijing Materials
Supply Station of the Armed Police Headquarter (i Z 423t
TS HFE L) in charge for procurement. Mr. Li has almost
20 years of management and sales experience in the area
of telecommunication equipment. Mr. Li joined our Group
in 2005 as a deputy general manager. He was appointed
as our vice president in domestic sales in 2006, in charge
of domestic sales. He also provides support to industry
analysis and operational strategy.

Peng Shawn Meng (&) &), aged 37, is our vice president
in charge of external technical exchange. Mr. Peng graduated
from China Nankai University in 1999 with a bachelor’s
degree in physics and electronics and obtained a master’s
degree in natural science from Louisiana State University
in 2004. After graduation, he remained at Louisiana State
University as an assistant lecturer until 2006. Mr. Peng joined
our Group in 2006 as an engineer and was promoted to
his current position in 2010. Mr. Peng is the brother-in-law
of Mr. Dong.

Liu Shuen Kong (Efi)T), aged 41, is our chief financial
officer and our company secretary. For additional details
regarding Mr. Liu background, see the section headed
“Senior Management” above.
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Report of Directors

ESEWRE

The Board is pleased to submit the annual report together
with the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012 which have been audited by
the Company’s auditor Ernst & Young and reviewed by the
audit committee of the Company.

Principal Activities and
Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries as at
31 December 2012 are set out in note 4 to the financial
Statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 63.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 66 to 67 and in
note 32 to the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment

of the Group are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.
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Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise the
share premium account and shareholder’s contribution less
accumulated losses. As at 31 December 2012, the reserves
of the Company available for distribution to shareholders
amounted to approximately RMB1,542 million.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results of the Group and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 191.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Dong Li (Chairman) (appointed on 27 April 2010)
Ms. Zhao Huan (appointed on 11 June 2010)
Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky (appointed on 11 June 2010)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. An Wenbin (appointed on 14 October 2010)
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan (appointed on 14 October 2010)
Mr. Liu Yangsheng (appointed on 14 October 2010)

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Cao
Yixiong Alan and Mr. Liu Yangsheng will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election, at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
from 16 November 2010, which may be terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either

party.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors was
appointed for a term of three years with effect from 16
November 2010.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company, which is determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management members of the Group are set out on pages
25 to 31.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management members of the Group was based on
qualifications, years of experiences and the performance
of individual employees and are reviewed regularly. Details
of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 9
to the financial statements.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares
or Debentures

Save as disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements
about the Company’s share option schemes, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Directors or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, no contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions
of each Director and chief executives of the Company in
the shares of the Company which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were
required under Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register required to be kept by the Company referred
to in that section; or (c) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in the Listing Rules were
as follows:

RZE——F+ZA=+—8  ARQRAEERF
BITBRABRARABRGFTHEBREES BE
I EEXVER BT R8I D B E AR 7] R B 2 AT
s ROAR - ()RR B H & B E 1R B 5535215
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FORR + So)RIE LT AR AIPTE - J:m%éﬁ/\ﬁ

FETEFRINRAE

E5F Rl ([1ER4E

EsFAI])

EANGARR RERNES AR

Number and
class of securities
subject to options

granted under the Approximate
Number and class of Pre-IPO Share percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest securities* Option Scheme shareholding™
SREERAH
BEABRESE
RHnBRERR
BEpg BiME EEHARERN HWESHEARER BABRESLO
Mr. Dong Li Interest in a controlled corporation 1,001,100,0001(L) - 74.95%
£ RBEENER
Ms. Zhao Huan Beneficial Owner - 1,500,0002(L) 0.11%
HEt EafAA
Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky Beneficial Owner - 1,500,000°(L) 0.11%
Philip Armstrong NozneskyZt 4 ERBEAA
Mr. An Wenbin Beneficial Owner - 300,0004(L) 0.02%
T RE ERERA
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan Beneficial Owner - 300,0009(L) 0.02%
EERE EafAA
Mr. Liu Yangsheng Beneficial Owner - 300,0006/(L) 0.02%

BIBAERE

*

Shares.

EEREA

The letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the

[LIRKRBREODFHEER



Notes:

M

Mr. Dong Li is deemed to be interested in 1,001,100,000 Shares
which are beneficially owned by Master Alliance Investment
Limited, a company which is wholly owned by Mr. Dong Li.

Ms. Zhao Huan has been granted options for 1,500,000 Shares
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky has been granted options for
1,500,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
Please see “Share Option” below for further details of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme.

Mr. An Wenbin has been granted options for 300,000 Shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share Option”
below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan has been granted options for 300,000
Shares under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. Liu Yangsheng has been granted options for 300,000 Shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share Option”
below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

This is based on 1,335,637,000 Shares, being the number of
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2012.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, nor had there been any grant or exercise of
rights of such interests during the year ended 31 December
2012.
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Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 25 May 2010, the
Company approved and adopted a share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentive or reward to selected
participants for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company and
enabling the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees. The number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e.
options which have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
as at 31 December 2012 was 35,062,000 shares
(representing approximately 2.6% of the Company’s
total issued share capital as at that date). No further
options will be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 14 October 2010,
the Company approved and adopted another share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentive or reward to selected
participants for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company and
for such other purposes as the Board may approve
from time to time. The number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e.
options which have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) under the Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2012 was 13,700,000 shares (representing
approximately 1.0% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at that date).

Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in
note 30 to the financial statements.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares

As at 31 December 2012, the following persons (other than
the directors and chief executives of the Company had
interests and short positions of 5% or more in the Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO:

Report of Directors EEE R4
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Approximate

Number and class percentage

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest of securities* of shareholding®
REEMH BEtE EHHERER BABREI L
Master Alliance Investment Limited"” Beneficial Owner 1,001,100,000(L) 74.95%

EREAA
* The Letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the
Shares.
Notes:
(1) Master Alliance Investment Limited is a company wholly owned
by Mr. Dong Li.

(2)  This is based on 1,335,637,000 Shares, being the number of
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2012.

As disclosed above, at 31 December 2012, no person,
other than the Directors whose interests and short positions
are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares” above, had an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements, some of which also
constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, details of which are as follows:

A.

Continuing connected transactions which
are exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement,
reporting and announcement requirements
under Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing
Rules

Mr. Dong Li owns a 60% equity interest in Dongguan
Leoch Power Supply, which makes Dongguan Leoch
Power Supply a connected party of the Company.
Dongguan Leoch entered into a purchase agreement
dated 30 June 2010 with Dongguan Leoch Power
Supply pursuant to which Dongguan Leoch Power
Supply agreed to sell and Dongguan Leoch agreed
to purchase certain buildings with an aggregate
GFA of approximately 10,000 sg.m. constructed by
Dongguan Leoch Power Supply on a piece of land
owned by Dongguan Leoch in Dongguan, PRC. Under
the purchase agreement, the amount of consideration
payable by Dongguan Leoch is to be determined by
an independent valuation expert at the time of issue of
a real estate title certificate in respect of the buildings,
and is only due and payable after the issue of such
certificate by the relevant government authorities to
Dongguan Leoch. Pending the issue of the real estate
title certificate, Dongguan Leoch Power Supply has
granted to Dongguan Leoch a license to use the
buildings at nil consideration.
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Continuing connected transaction which

is exempted from the

independent

shareholders’ approval requirement, but
subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements under Rule 14A.34 of the
Listing Rules

The Group has entered into the following leases
with Mr. Dong Li and his associates:

(a)

Lease of Units E8, E9, E148 and E149 of
the Main Building of Xin Bao Hui Building,
No. 2061 Nanhai Avenue, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, the
PRC

Lease of Units E1-E4, E6, E7, E14-EBS,
E72-E112, E116-E135 and E138-E145 of
the main building of Xin Bao Hui Building,
No.2061, Nanhai Avenue, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, the
PRC

Lease of Portion of Unit 901 on Level 9
of Tianzheng International Plaza, N0.399
Zhongyang Road, Nanjing City, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC

Lease of an Office Unit on Level 19 of an
Office Building Located at 14 Kitchener
Link, No.19-29, Singapore

Lease of a Building Located at 19751
Descartes Foothill Ranchs, County of
Orange, State of California, the United
States
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In relation to the leasing arrangements between the
Group and Mr. Dong and Mr. Dong’s Associates,
the annual caps for the rental expenses for each
of the three years ended 31 December 2012 were
RMB3.0 million, RMB3.5 million and RMB3.3
million, respectively. A master leasing agreement
dated 8 November 2012 (the “Master Leasing
Agreement”) has been entered into between the
Company and Mr. Dong. Pursuant to the Master
Leasing Agreement, members of the Group will
lease from Mr. Dong or Mr. Dong’s Associates
properties for the use by members of the Group.
Individual tenancy agreement will be entered into
between members of the Group and Mr. Dong
or Mr. Dong’s Associates with respect to the
leasing arrangement of individual leased property.
The Master Leasing Agreement is for a term of
three years commencing from 1 January 2013
and ending on 31 December 2015. Upon expiry
of the term, the Master Leasing Agreement
will, subject to the requirements of the Listing
Rules, be renewed for further period of three
years by mutual agreement. The annual caps
for the transactions under the Master Leasing
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31
December 2015 have been set at RMB3.5 million,
RMB3.5 million and RMB3.5 million.

The Company entered into a master agreement
with Mr. Dong Li dated 1 August 2010 (the
“Original Master Sales Agreement”) which
sets out the terms and conditions upon which
members of the Group will sell to Mr. Dong Li’s
associates, and Mr. Dong Li’'s associates will
purchase from members of the Group, products
including lead-acid batteries, mainly motive
power batteries, and related parts. The products
to be sold and purchased under the Original
Master Sales Agreement shall be at the prevailing
market price, namely, the price at which the same
type of products is sold by us to independent
third parties on normal commercial terms in the
ordinary course of business in the PRC. The
Original Master Sales Agreement is for a term of
three years commencing from 1 January 2010.
Upon expiry of the term, the Original Master Sales
Agreement will, subject to the requirements of
the Listing Rules, be renewed for a further period
of three years by mutual agreement. The annual
caps for the sales transactions under the Original
Master Sales Agreement for each of the three
years ended 31 December 2012 have been set at
RMB38.0 million, RMB46.0 million and RMB54.0
million, respectively.
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The Company and Mr. Dong Li renewed the
Original Master Sales Agreement and entered
into a new master agreement dated 25 October
2012 (the “Master Sales Agreement”). The Master
Sales Agreement is for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2013 and ending
on 31 December 2015. Upon expiry of the term,
the Master Sales Agreement will, subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, be renewed for
further period of three years by mutual agreement.
The annual caps for the transactions under the
Master Sales Agreement for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2015 have been set at
RMB60.0 million, RMB60.0 million and RMB60.0
million.

Continuing connected transaction
subject to the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rule 14A.35 of the
Listing Rules

The Company entered into a master agreement dated
1 August 2010 with Mr. Dong Li (the “Original Master
Purchase Agreement”) which sets out the terms and
conditions upon which members of the Group will
purchase from Mr. Dong Li’s associates, and Mr. Dong
Li's associates will sell to members of the Group,
products including battery cases, parts, models,
chargers and electronic products (for the manufacturing
of the Group’s battery products or sale as accessories
of the Group’s battery products) and electric scooters
(for use by members of the Group). The products
to be sold and purchased under the Original Master
Purchase Agreement shall be at the prevailing market
price, namely, the price at which the same type of
products is sold to us by independent third parties
on normal commercial terms in the ordinary course
of business in the PRC. The Original Master Purchase
Agreement is for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2010. Upon expiry of the term, the
Original Master Purchase Agreement will, subject to
the requirements of the Listing Rules, be renewed for
further period of three years by mutual agreement. The
annual caps for the transactions under the Original
Master Purchase Agreement for each of the three
years ended December 31, 2012 have been set at
RMB60.0 million, RMB60.0 million and RMB60.0
million, respectively.
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The Company and Mr. Dong Li renewed the Original
Master Purchase Agreement and entered into a
new master agreement dated 25 October 2012 (the
“Master Purchase Agreement”). The Master Purchase
Agreement is for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2013 and ending on 31 December
2015. Upon expiry of the term, the Master Purchase
Agreement will, subject to the requirements of the
Listing Rules, be renewed for further period of three
years by mutual agreement. The annual caps for the
transactions under the Master Purchase Agreement
for each of the three year ending 31 December 2015
have been set at RMB60.0 million, RMB60.0 million
and RMB60.0 million.

The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the above continuing connected transaction
and confirmed that the transaction has been entered
into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms; and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing such transaction on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group above in
accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Interest in Competing
Business

During the year, none of the Directors is considered to
have interest in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group. On 21 December 2010, each of the controlling
shareholders of the company namely Mr. Dong Li and Master
Alliance Investment Limited (the “Controlling Shareholders”),
entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-
Competition”) with the Company pursuant to which each
of the Controlling Shareholders has individually, jointly,
unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken and represented
to the Company and each member of the Group that,
among other things, he/it will not and will procure that
his/its associates will not engage, directly or indirectly, in
businesses which will or may compete with the business
carried on or to be carried on by the Group.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has provided an annual
declaration on his/its compliance with the undertakings
contained in the Deed of Non-Competition undertaken by
them.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
were satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders has
complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to
the Group’s major largest suppliers are as follows:

— the largest supplier 22.8%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 54.4%

The percentages of sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:
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— the largest customer 9.7%
— five largest customers in aggregate 34.4%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these
major customers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, it
is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of more
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report.

Subsequent Events

No significant events have been taken place subsequent to
the balance sheet date.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dong Li
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with
all the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) which was revised
and took effect on 1 April 2012, as well as those of the
former CG Code, as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2012 with
the exception of the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code
which requires that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Key corporate governance principles
and practices of the Company as well as details relating to
the foregoing deviations are summarized below.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate
governance practices that are appropriate to the conduct
and growth of its business and to review its corporate
governance practices from time to time to ensure they comply
with the increasingly tightened regulatory requirements and
to meet the expectations of shareholders and investors.
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A. The Board

The Board, led by the chairman of the Company,
is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses,
strategic decisions and performance. The Board
has delegated to the senior management the
authority and responsibility for the day-to-day
management and operation of the Group.
In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference. All Directors
have carried out their duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations
and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major
matters of the Company, including: approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

The Board has delegated a schedule of
responsibilities to the senior management of
the Company. These responsibilities include
implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and coordinating day-to-day operation and
management of the Company in accordance with
the management strategies and plans approved
by the Board, formulating and monitoring the
operating and production plans and budgets,
and supervising and monitoring the control
systems.
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The Board comprises three executive Directors:
Mr. Dong Li (Chairman), Ms. Zhao Huan and Mr.
Philip Armstrong Noznesky; and three independent
non-executive Directors: Mr. An Wenbin, Mr. Liu
Yangsheng and Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors
possesses different business experience,
knowledge and professional background. The
Board has at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The
Board has received a written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Board continues to regard
each of them as independent up to the date of
this report.

The Company has at least one-third of its Board
members being independent non-executive
Directors. Independent non-executive Directors
have been invited to serve on the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Through participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving
on Board committees, all independent non-
executive Directors make various contributions
to the effective direction of the Company.

The list of Directors (by category) is set out under
the section headed “Corporate Information”
in this annual report and is also disclosed in
all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from
time to time. The independent non-executive
directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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The biographical details of the directors and the
relationships among the members of the Board
are disclosed under the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report.

A.3.1 Board Practices and Conduct of Meeting

Schedules for regular Board meetings are
normally agreed with Directors in advance
to facilitate their attendance. In addition,
notice of at least 14 days is given for a
regular Board meeting. For other Board
meetings, reasonable notice is generally
given. Draft agenda of each Board meeting
is usually sent to all Directors together with
the notice of meeting in order to give them
an opportunity to include any other matters
in the agenda for discussion in the meeting.
Board papers together with the related
information are sent to Directors at least
3 days before each Board meeting. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to Directors
for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and the final version is open
for Directors’ inspection. The company
secretary of the Company is responsible for
keeping minutes of all Board and committee
meetings.

The chairman, the company secretary
and chief financial officer and other
relevant senior management members
normally attend regular Board meetings
and, where necessary, other Board and
committee meetings to advise on business
developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the
Group. The Board and each Director also
have separate and independent access
to the senior management whenever
necessary. Where appropriate, the Directors
can obtain independent professional advice
at the expense of the Company.

EENEEFERESERANHE
MERAER EERERERE]—
B 7% -

A1 EEEEREHIER

THEEeRNKHER —RE
SELREE=HAARREL
outsh EHIEFEE@ZMNAE
T EREZBETARD14KEA
EPREFZL - -MEAMEZSS
ZA—REHFHAIEBM - BX
EEgeanaiRIR 2RE
BREREFTETHEES
ENEERESHERE LIMAER
HibiEEZR LMo FEE - &
FEXMHERMERBENER
BREFEEZRITARLIIK
FEATES - @2 LEDR R
ENEREHR —BRAERHER
MESEH MEEASHES
NRHABH - ARANARIWEER
EFEMAESERaNEES
SENEHMLIE

TE - REWERMBAERE
AR EREKRE —Red
FEHEFEEH UNERE
BHHFEMEZENEZES®S
& UIEBER - M REs
FH BTEREE  BXEAR
EASEEMEZ T mEHRE
R-BFGghEEZNANRNET
S E R BB Bk 4k = AR B IR
B -EFMAEEERL ISR
BUEXER  BRHAARFA
= o



According to current Board practice, any
material transaction, which involves a conflict
of interests for a substantial shareholder or
a Director, will be considered and dealt with
by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Articles of Association contain
provisions requiring directors to abstain from
voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at meetings for approving transactions
in which such directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

A.3.2 Directors’ Attendance Records at Board

Meetings

The Board meets regularly for reviewing
and approving the financial and operating
performance, and considering and approving
the overall strategies and policies of the
Company. Additional meetings are held
when significant events or important issues
are required to be discussed and resolved.
During the year ended 31 December 2012,
five Board meetings, one Shareholders
meeting were held and the attendance
records of each director at these Board
meetings and Shareholders meeting are set
out below:

Attendance/ Attendance/

Number of Number of

Name of Director Board Meetings General Meetings
Executive Directors
Mr. Dong Li 5/5 11
Ms. Zhao Huan 5/5 11
Mr. Philip Armstrong

Noznesky 5/5 11
Independent

Non-executive Directors
Mr. An Wenbin 5/5 11
Mr. Liu Yangsheng 5/5 11

Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan 5/5 11
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Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates
that the roles of the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company should be
separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

Mr. Dong Li is the chairman of the Board and
the chief executive officer of the Company. As
Mr. Dong is the founder of the Group and has
extensive experience in the Lead-acid battery
industry, the Board believes that it is in the best
interest of the Group to have Mr. Dong taking up
both roles for continuous effective management
and business development of the Group.

The Board considers that the current structure
of vesting the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company in the same
person will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the management
of the Company.

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors
is engaged for a term of three years commencing
from their respective dates of appointment and is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
pursuant to the Articles of Association.

According to the Articles of Association, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. Besides, any
new Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall submit himself/herself for
re-election by shareholders at the first general
meeting and any new Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at
the next following annual general meeting.
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Pursuant to the aforesaid provisions of the Articles
of Association, two of the Directors, namely Mr.
Cao Yi Xiong Alan and Mr. Liu Yangsheng shall
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the meeting. The
Company’s circular, sent together with this annual
report, contains detailed information of the retiring
Directors pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-
election and removal of directors are laid down
in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing Board
composition, developing and formulating
procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors. Details of
the Nomination Committee and its work performed
are set out in the “Board Committees” section
below.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Directors have
been given relevant guideline materials to ensure
that they are apprised of the latest changes in the
commercial, legal and regulatory requirements
in relation to the Company’s businesses, and
to refresh their knowledge and skills on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director.

Forthe period from 1 January 2012 to 31 December
2012, all Directors provided their records of
training to the Company. All Directors, namely
Mr. Dong Li, Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky, Ms.
Zhao Huan, Mr. An Wenbin, Mr. Liu Yangsheng
and Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan, participated in this
continuous professional development mainly by
reading various materials regarding directors’
responsibilities, prevention of breaching listing
rules and disclosure of inside information, etc.
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Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the
Company Secretary must take no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in each
financial year. The Company Secretary provided
his training records to the Company indicating
more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by means of attending in-house
briefings, attending seminars and reading relevant
guideline materials.

The Company has adopted the Model Code
as its code of conduct governing the Directors’
dealings in the Company’s securities. Specific
enquiry has been made of all the Directors and all
of them have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the period from the Listing Date
to the date of this annual report.

Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees,
namely, the Remuneration Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees have been established
with defined written terms of reference, which are
available to shareholders on the Company’s and the
Stock Exchange’s website. All Board committees report
to the Board on their decisions or recommendations
made.

The practices, procedures and arrangements in
conducting meetings of Board committees follow in
line with, so far as practicable, those of the Board
meetings set out in section A.3.1 above.
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All Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expense.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three
members, namely, Mr. Dong Li, Mr. An Wenbin
and Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan, the latter two being
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. An
Wenbin is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The principal duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to (a) make recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
of the remuneration of the Directors and the
senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy; (b) review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; (c) make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive director and senior management of
the Company which include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment;
(d) make recommendations to the Board of on
the remuneration of non-executive directors of
the Company: (e) to review and approve the
remuneration payable to the executive directors
and senior management of the Company for
any loss or termination of office or appointment
to ensure that it is consistent with relevant
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not
excessive; (f) review and approve compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and (g)
ensure that no director of the Company or any of
his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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During the year ended the date of this annual
report, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings and the attendance records of each
member at the meeting are set out below:

Attendance/
Name of Director Number of Meetings
Mr. An Wenbin 2/2
Mr. Dong Li 2/2
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan 2/2

The Audit Committee comprises three members,
namely, Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan, Mr. An Wenbin and
Mr. Liu Yangsheng, all of them are independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan,
is the chairman of the Audit Committee and he
possesses relevant accounting and financial
management expertise.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are
amongst others to (j) review the financial statements
and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the staff responsible for
the accounting and financial reporting function or
external auditor before submission to the Board;
(i) review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor;
and (iii) review the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Company’s financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system and
associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held a meeting on 28 March
2013 with the presence of Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan,
Mr. An Wenbin and Mr. Liu Yangsheng together
with the Company’s external auditor and the senior
management and performed the following major
tasks:

- Reviewed the scope of audit work, auditor’s
fees and terms of engagement for the year
ended 31 December 2012; and
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- Review and discuss the financial statements,
results announcement and report for
the year ended 31 December 2012, the
related accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the relevant audit
findings.

During the year ended the date of this annual
report, the Audit Committee held two meetings
and the attendance records of each member at
the meeting are set out below:

Attendance/
Name of Director Number of Meetings
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan 2/2
Mr. An Wenbin 2/2
Mr. Liu Yangsheng 2/2

The Nomination Committee comprises three
members, namely, Mr. Dong Li, Mr. An Wenbin
and Mr. Liu Yangsheng, the majority of which are
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Dong Li
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
are to (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (c) assess the
independence of the independent non-executive
directors; and (d) make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or reappointment of
directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive.
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During the year ended the date of this annual
report, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings and the attendance records of each
member at the meeting are set out below:

Attendance/
Name of Director Number of Meetings
Mr. Dong Li 2/2
Mr. An Wenbin 2/2
Mr. Liu Yangsheng 2/2

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements of the Company
with a view to ensuring that such financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and that relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements and applicable accounting standards
are complied with. The Board has received from the
senior management the management accounts and
such accompanying explanation and information as are
necessary to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment for approving the financial statements.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities
for preparing the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
maintaining an effective internal control system to
safeguard shareholder investments and the Group’s
assets and for reviewing the effectiveness of such
system on an annual basis. The senior management
reviews and evaluates the control process, monitors
any risk factors on a regular basis and reports to the
Audit Committee on any findings and measures to
address the variances and identified risks.
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During the year under review, the Board conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget.

External Auditor and Auditor's Remuneration

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 61 to 62.

Forthe yearended 31 December 2012, the remuneration
paid/payable to Ernst & Young, the Company’s external
auditor, for audit services to the Group in relation to
annual audit and for non-audit services, comprising
professional services for tax services, amounted to
HK$2.6 million and RMBO0.5 million, respectively.

Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders

The Company has received, from each of the
Controlling Shareholders, an annual declaration on
his/its compliance with the undertakings contained in
the Deed of Non-Competition entered into by each
of them in favour of the Company pursuant to which
each of the Controlling Shareholders has individually,
jointly, unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken and
represented to the Company and each member of
the Group that, among other things, he/it will not
and will procure that his/its associates will not to
engage, directly or indirectly, in businesses which will
or may compete with the business carried on or to be
carried on by the Group. Details of the Deed of Non-
Competition were disclosed in the Prospectus under
the section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders”.

The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed and were satisfied that each of the Controlling
Shareholders, has complied with the Deed of Non-
Competition for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

The Board believes that effective communication
with shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and investor’s understanding of the Group’s
business performance and strategies. The Company
also recognises the importance of transparency and
timely disclosure of corporate information, which will
enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The Company maintains a website at “www.leoch.com”
as a communication platform for shareholders and
investors, where information and updates on the
Group’s business developments and operations,
financial information and other information are available
for public access. Shareholders and investors may
write directly to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong for any inquiries.

The Board considers that general meetings of the
Company provide animportant channel for shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The chairman of the
Board as well as the chairmen and/or other members
of the Board Committees will endeavor to be available
to answer questions raised by the shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication
and relationship with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them informed of the
Group’s developments.

Shareholder Rights

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a
separate resolution is proposed for each substantially
separate issue at shareholder meetings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings
will be voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
shareholder meeting.
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Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association
of the Company, Shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law (2011 Revision) or the articles
of association of the Company. Shareholders who wish
to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures
set out in the preceding paragraph.

Shareholders are welcomed to send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board addressing to the Company
Secretary of the Company through the following
channels:

i) by mail to the Company’s place of business at
Unit 10, 39th Floor, Cable TV Tower, No. 9 Hoi
Shing Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T., Hong Kong; or

ii) by email at office@leoch.com.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there was
no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents, and these documents are published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Ernst & Young

RAEsHREBR

22/F CITIC Tower BRRIR
1 Tim Mei Avenue ANEEIR
Central, Hong Kong hIERE21E

|||||||||||II||...
Ell ERNST & YOUNG

= Ik

To the shareholders of
Leoch International Technology Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
63 to 190, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which also include International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
WWw.ey.com

EiE: +852 2846 9888
{EH: +852 2868 4432

BETEBRRMERAAZEBRR
(RASBESEMAIZERRDF)

EEC TN EZENFIEEF1908 2 B +HE
EMBARAR(TERADRENBAR(HEN &
SEDZEEAVBRE  HPRERZZT—ZF+
ZA=T—BZERERARMBRKARREEZB
LEFEZHGEEE2ERER  RARREHRLGE
BeRER UREAGHBERMEREMREE
o

=/ AEAREE((BERE
ﬁﬁﬂi%ADﬁ%ml%WW¢%+WUIWW
BmEZER ) (FesBR e ER(BR g%
Al]) R 1) K& & A mHE DI RO 3 BR AR E AR B
Ef& NFRENGAMBHRE  YAERNES
RV BEOAIIEH - BREREAMBER T
HEEARBRM (T2 A MFFRERER) -

%%Z%TEEEE%Z§V5k$HQM%ﬁ%
EHER - TEER2EREIRE - BRILIASN
EHT ﬁ%$$%zm§*ﬂﬁﬁﬁ@Ai%§ﬂ
REERE -



We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing, issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with IFRSs and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEZHkaER

Year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_ZT——H#+-_A=1+—HItEE

2012 2011
—B-=fF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BEE ARMT T ARETT
REVENUE Wz 6 3,247,986 3,164,056
Cost of sales B E R AR (2,655,784) (2,510,311)
Gross profit EH 592,202 653,745
Other income and gains E A R Wz 6 43,453 70,878
Selling and distribution expenses SHE Mo ERK A (159,871) (114,048)
Administrative expenses THRX (229,761) (179,758)
R&D expenses R (93,817) (66,730)
Other expenses Hinh% (12,545) (6,815)
Finance costs B SR AN 8 (62,850) (29,128)
Share of (losses) profits of associates  FE{LEEE A 7] (B8 )E F (296) 122
PROFIT BEFORE TAX A= A 7 76,515 328,266
Income tax expense FriS i 11 (4,853) (44,646)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ARF [Z 4 71,662 283,620
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  Hib2mE W=
Exchange differences on BMERINETER
translation of foreign operations b H =58 (530) (8,773)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE AEFEFEMEEMUES
INCOME FOR THE YEAR (530) (8,773)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE AFEE BB B
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 71,132 274,847
Profit attributable to: LA AL (R :
Owners of the Company FiN/NEIEZ =N 71,662 283,620
Total comprehensive income ATNATREERZE
attributable to: Iz 4858
Owners of the Company PIN/NETEZ 2 = /N 71,132 274,847
EARNINGS PER SHARE ARE)E B
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BFHABLERET
EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY 14
Basic AR
— For profit for the year — AFEE A AR¥0.05Tt AR%0.217T
Diluted e
— For profit for the year — NEE R F ARH0.051 AR¥K0.217T

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year
are disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.

AR JROIR A B IR B B R 1 0 B A S R B RE 1 33
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wa MR R R

31 December 2012
-+ A=+—H

2012 2011
—E-=F T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE AR¥T ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB MRS 15 1,817,342 1,229,681
Prepaid land lease payments TEfT T A E IR 16 73,390 75,069
Investments in associates REEE N AIMIRE 19 12,224 5,442
Financial assets at fair value AREBEEZE AEE
through profit or loss B REE 37 5,215 =
Intangible assets mEEE 17 60,981 29,131
Non-current portion of B ZREWFIER
trade receivables FERNHAEL D 21 18,178 14,115
Deposits paid for purchase of B - WE
items of property, FEBEE I
plant and equipment 14,737 90,787
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE 28 48,068 8,615
Time deposits TR 23 - 28,500
Non-current portion of [REw e
pledged deposits FERNHAEL D 23 165,500 365,650
Total non-current assets MBI EELE 2,215,635 1,846,990
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Inventories 5E 20 847,094 990,962
Trade and bills receivables E 5 RWFIE R KRR 21 939,747 804,119
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE - & REAM
other receivables FEW R IE 22 130,528 159,434
Tax recoverable FER BT IR 108,084 87,422
Amounts due from FEU B & A RISRIE
related companies 26 7,362 13,150
Equity investments at fair value AREBEEZHTAEBR
through profit or loss B IR A 37 935 1,262
Pledged deposits BHEBER 23 765,423 274,841
Cash and cash equivalents RERFSEEY 23 82,893 73,371
Total current assets MENEEBE 2,882,066 2,404,561
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEIAE
Trade and bills payables B Z N RIE RENRR 24 1,006,935 547,859
Other payables and accruals EM N RIE RERTE A 25 270,800 246,644
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHESRITEE 27 1,208,115 740,935
Amounts due to related companies  FE{ BB A Bk 1E 26 13,431 5,933
Income tax payable FERT TS AL 58,767 45,066
Total current liabilities mEBAEEE 2,558,048 1,586,437
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFE 324,018 818,124
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEEBERREDERE
LIABILITIES 2,539,653 2,665,114

BrEBEAERAT | T —EFR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

31 December 2012
—T——f+=ZRA=+—H

e BE IR R

2012 2011
—F-=F —F—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR¥T AREET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIEEE 28 8,939 4,209
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERITEE 27 186,433 330,691
Total non-current liabilities BB EERE 195,372 334,900
Net assets BEFE 2,344,281 2,330,214
EQUITY W
Issued capital BEITIRA 29 114,455 114,267
Reserves e 32(a) 2,229,826 2,215,947
Total equity B 2,344,281 2,330,214
Dong Li Zhao Huan
= HE
Director Director
- EF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2012

SREREER

HE_Z-——_F+-_A=+—HILEFE
Share Share  Statutory  Exchange Proposed
Issued premium Merger option reserve  fluctuation Retained final
capital  account* reserve* reserve* fund* reserve* profits*  dividend* Total
BRARE  ROEER  AHEE BRERE tRNES  EXGR RERY REAHRS &
Notes RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB000  RMB000
W AREBTT  ARETR  AREBTT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR
(Note 29) (Note 32(@)) ~ (Note 32()  (Note 32(a))  (Note 32(a))
(P29) (f3so@)  (MEEsol)  (M3ES2e)  (HE32)

At 31 December 2011 RZF—E+ZF=1-H

and 1 January 2012 k=E—-%-f-H 114267 1,285,012 275,106 18,376 70,979 (3,167) 548,310 21382 2,330,214
Profit for the year TERRT - - - - - = 71,662 = 71,662
Other comprehensive ~ AEEEMRERE :

income for the year: - - - - - (530) - = (530)
Exchange differences BN £k

on translation EXES

of foreign operations = = = = = = = = =
Total comprehensive TEEEANRLE

income for the year = = = = = (530) 71,662 = 71,132
2011 final dividend BER-F—F&

declared RERE 13 - 3,967 - - - - - (21,332) (17,365)
2012 interim and “E-CEhER

special dividend FikRs 13 = (54,206) = = = = = = (54,206)
Bxercise of the share opion. 7 £ EE 2 188 2872 = (2,294) = = = = 766
Equity-settled share NEREEBRERH

option arrangements 30 = = = 13,740 = = = = 13,740
Appropriations to reserves & {E R - - - = 7,507 = (7,597) = =
At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZF+ZA=1-H 114455 1,237,645 215,106 29,822 78,576 (3,697) 612,375 - 2344281
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves — * WEHERAKGESTBRIRAZEESH

of RMB2,229,826,000 (2011:

consolidated statement of financial position.

RMB2,215,947,000) in the

% A R #2209 826,000 — & — — £ :
AR#ED 215,947,0007T) °

B
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Zn&Em S BR

Year ended 31 December 2011
HE_Z——F+_A=1+—HILFE

Share Share  Statutory  Exchange Proposed
Issued premium Merger option reserve  fluctuation Retained final
capital  account* reserve* reserve* fund* reserve* profits*  dividend* Total
BRARE  ROEER  ANEE BRERE tRMES  EXGR RERY REAHRR A
Notes RMB'0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000 RMB'OO0 ~ RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
W ARBTT  ARETR  AREBTT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR
(Note 29) (Note 32(a)  (Note 32(a))  (Note 32(a))  (Note 32(a))
(PHk29) (H5326@)  (WiksoE)  (WaRS2[)  (3E32ea)
At 31 December 2010 RZF-FE+ZF=1-H
and 1 January 2011 k=%-—%-A-H 14207 1,342,297 275,10 6,830 49,631 5,606 286,038 - 2079774
Profit for the year TERRT - - - - - - 283,620 = 283,620
Other comprehensive ~ AEEEMZERE :
income for the year:
Exchange differences BB ERH
on translation ERES
of foreign operations = = = = = 8,773) = = 8,773)
Total comprehensive TEELANRER
income for the year = = = = = 8,773) 283,620 = 214,847
Dividend RE 13 - (67,289) - - - - - 21332 (35,993)
Equity-settled share NEREEBRERS
option arrangements 30 = = = 11,546 = = = = 11,546
Appropriations to reserves & {E R - - - = 21,348 = 21,348) = =
At 31 December 2011 RZF—E+ZF=1-H 14267 1,285,012 275,106 18,376 70979 (3,167) 548,310 21382 2330214
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves I EREREXNGEVBERARAZEREER

of RMB2,215,947,000 (2010: RMB1,965,507,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

AR ¥2215947,0000( — T —ZTF: AR
1,965,507,0007T) °



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=1+—HItFEE

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR¥T AR®ET T
CASH FLOWS FROM CEEBEMBSRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax A= K 76,515 328,266
Adjustments for: B TYFIBMEH T
Finance costs B T AR AN 8 62,850 29,128
Interest income F B U A 6 (21,366) (17,976)
Fair value (gains) losses, net AREEERH (W)
B8 % 7 (2,250) 218
Losses on disposal of BREME - WERHZEHEE
items of property, plant o)==}
and equipment 7 800 5,611
Share of (losses) profits of associates  fE{h & A 7] (B8 ) F)E 296 (122)
Depreciation e 15 97,959 61,887
Amortisation of prepaid TEIS £ 4 T & FR 8
land lease payments 16 1,331 1,425
Amortisation of intangible assets A 17 4,729 469
Amortisation of deferred R IE AU v B 8
government grants (389) (562)
Government grants A AU AR BT RG
credited to other income 6 (12,418) (36,239)
Impairment provision for B 5 I W TR R B R
trade receivables 21 (7,727) 1,386
Equity-settled share option DA E AR
expenses 30 13,740 11,546
214,070 385,037
Decrease (Increase) in inventories 7 &E 4 (3E0) 143,868 (303,308)
Increase in trade and Y e eEN Y A EE
bills receivables b )i (132,985) (223,144)
Decrease (Increase) in prepayments, FEHFIE ~ 514 M HAibfE U
deposits and other receivables FIER A (38 0) 8,591 (38,047)
Increase in trade and bills payables & 5 & 708 K FE A Z= 4518 A1 459,076 202,410
Increase in other payables HAbFET IR R FET & g
and accruals 21,116 49,483
Movements in balances EAREE A T 2 MR SR E )
with related parties 14,308 (50,546)
Cash generated from operations LEMEHRS 728,044 21,885
Income tax paid BRFTEH (25,875) (34,953)
Net cash flows from (used in) L EBATS (FTA)
operating activities REMEFHE 702,169 (13,068)

BrEBEAERAT | T —EFR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ZREBRERER

Year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_ZT——H#+-_A=1+—HItEE

2012 2011
—E--F —F—%
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR¥T T AR®ET T
Net cash flows from (used in) K TEENET{S (BT )
operating activities REMREFHE 702,169 (13,068)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BREGTHNIRER=E
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B2 21,366 10,510
Purchases of items of property, WIEME - BERZEEE
plant and equipment (609,689) (790,328)
Proceeds from disposal of items of EEW¥ WMENREER
property, plant and equipment HIFT1S 5RIE 2,730 787
Additions in prepaid land FEf L3 E KA LN
lease payments - (19,925)
Investment in an associate REEE A RINIRE (7,078) (5,319)
Additions in intangible assets | & ERE N (36,579) (26,199)
Decrease in time deposits BiB3ME A 2 E BFERUR
with terms over 3 months 28,500 692,575
Investments in financial instruments #X&&/T A (2,638) -
Net cash flows used in investing KB EBFAMNRESREFE
activities (603,388) (137,899)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING @& EFHNRE =
ACTIVITIES
Issue of shares, net of issuance R EETT - MBRBITHRAZ
expenses 766 -
New bank borrowings FBRITER 1,705,844 1,572,974
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEN (1,382,922) (917,977)
Interest paid ERFLE (62,850) (27,641)
Dividend paid BRRRE (71,571) (35,953)
Increase in pledged deposits [REEwiErEE e il (290,432) (573,180)
Receipt of government grants ST ER KA 4 B 6 12,418 36,239
Net cash flows from (used in) BB EEFTIS (FTA)
financing activities REmEFRE (88,747) 54,462
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN BHe kB EE LN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CR ) F%8 10,034 (96,505)
Cash and cash equivalents at RETNRE KR EEY
beginning of year 73,371 178,647
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EEFBNTE - FH
changes, net (512) (8,771)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERNIBE RIBEEEY
AT END OF YEAR 82,893 73,371
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF BeRBSEBMEHRDIT
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances and IRITRIA S EHRRERRTR
unpledged deposits 23 82,893 73,371




Statement of Financial Position
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2012 2011
—F--F —F—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®T AREET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS SEMEBNEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR’ E 18 1,602,358 1,615,469
Non-current portion of pledged EHERFERAIIE
deposits BIHAEL (9 23 165,500 365,650
Time deposits EHFR 23 - 28,500
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 1,767,858 2,009,619
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Pledged deposits [REEEERN 23 394,150 225,727
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 23 390 2,549
Prepayments, deposits ERRIE ek
and other receivables o th FE U FRIR 22 12,267 9,094
Total current assets MENEERE 406,807 237,370
CURRENT LIABILITIES neaE
Other payables and accruals E e 5 R EETE A 25 47 395
Interest-bearing bank borrowings & ERITIEE 27 362,473 203,441
Total current liabilities mENBERE 362,520 203,836
NET CURRENT ASSETS mBEEFE 44,287 33,534
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BELERRBAEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,812,145 2,043,153
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EMBAE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings & ERITIEE 27 156,068 330,691
Net assets BEFE 1,656,077 1,712,462
EQUITY L ey
Issued capital BEEITRA 29 114,455 114,267
Reserves s 32(b) 1,541,622 1,598,195
Total equity W 1,656,077 1,712,462
Dong Li Zhao Huan
2= HE
Director Director
B EF

BLEREHERAT | ~T - —F4%
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The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 27 April 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s shares have been listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 16 November 2010. The
registered office of the Company is located at the
office of Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited,
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Group is
principally engaged in the manufacture, development
and sale of lead-acid batteries.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the holding company and the ultimate
holding company is Master Alliance Investment Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
which is wholly owned by Mr. Dong Li.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for derivative financial instruments
and equity investments, which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

RRARDRZE—ZEFNA-TLHRER
EHEENEREHS R AE(1961F £3
SOEAR - KirE REFER SRS TMAK
NRAEREREBRAG  MARARKRNMEB =
E—ZEF+ AT ABHREBEBERHF
BRAB(TEERPT]) BT o AR B &5 M 3
% i i ¥ Codan Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands - AEB = ER EEE -
BEAEEMEESAM -

RAARER(EFDRE - AAAIMZERA
AIRGERERAR AR EBE XA S
I MJMaster Alliance Investment Limited (i
EFEERERE) -

% F MR AR IR B BR B S R R AR
2 EhEEEREFERZESCIEN
RERIMABAREBE R AHEDIO W ERE -
ZER MR IDILREL KRB RS -
TESRIAREREREER A BER
B ZEMBRRUARBTAREDZ
5 BREEHEBAIN  EBELOBRERESE
EEFIT -



The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2012. The financial statements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases. All intra-group
balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends
are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is
attributed to the non-controlling interest even if it
results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate.

31 December 2012
BE-T —_F+t-A=1+—HLFE

ZEGAVBERREEARARENB QA
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BH(AARBREGEHE B EFES
B WHERBEASAREZSENERILEZE
Rk IESERARES  XZEHERR
MREMEKRER B REBERADAH
EEAHPEREE -

MBARZz 2N EERE TR BNIEERE
@ Bt SRS SRR AR -

B AR A EER 2 E B ARKETE
)RR HRIE -

MARBERES —FHH B QR S - Rl
HAE®AZMB ARz EE(RERE) R
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2.2Changes in Accounting Policy
and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

IFRS 7 Amendments  Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets

The adoption of the revised IFRSs has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.

2.3Issued But Not Yet Effective
International Financial Reporting
Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

IFRS 7 Amendments  Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments. Disclosures
- Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities®

IFRS 10, IFRS 11 Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11
and IFRS 12 and IFRS 12 - Transition
Amendments Guidance?

2B RN BESHNEE

AEBEAMBHRREEERNRAT TR
ERTEVBIRR I F5 s 5 22 A -

BB #amE BIPRM SRS 2R

ERIE TR FTRET A TA -
fERTA BE-—HEEEZ

% R RT e BB B A5 3R 15 2 R A0 B A 1 B
BMERRBREATE -

2.3 B MM {E R E R Bl R B

& 2R

ARERAF BRI AL ERAQA TS B M
HER AV FT ] RAEE T MBI BR B A5 3R 15 2
U

R RS RIS R 2R

ERIE TR FTRET A TA -
ERTA REE— A EEE

BERMHHE /M TA
HRIZE 95

BB HRE AR HRE
AERIE1055

BRI HE S e
HERIE115%

BB RS HRE HEAMEEER
AR 1255

BRI RE  ERRE MRS 2R
ERIFE105R ©  F105%% - BEMIBHE
BRI meE  2ERSE115 KBRS
ERIFE11H R WEERFE125SET R
BRSBTS HRE  —AEES?
AERIZE1255%

BRI A
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2.3Issued But Not Yet Effective 2.3 B FE M {E R A 0z Bl R B
International Financial Reporting 2R )
Standards (continued)

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 B gmE BRI SR

and IAS 27 (2011) and IAS 27 (2011) - Investment £RIZE105% ©  F10% - BEEMBHRE

Amendments Entities® BB TSRS ERIF12 BB S
ERIE129 % ERIFE27HR(ZE——F)
B SRT R BEIA-—REHTHES
F2TR

—T——5F)
1BETAR
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement? BRI EmE AR BEFE?

ERIFEA35E

BrEBEAERAT | T 5

IAS 1 Amendments  Amendments to IAS1 Presentation of f‘f’%@?ﬁ%ﬂ” BB & ERE 1B T A
Financial Statements - FIFIETA BB#RER 2 25— A
Presentation of Items of Other FTEHKmIEE 2 Z5
Comprehensive Income'
IAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits? B gsHER] ESFFP
F19%
—ZT——%F)
IAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements? ReER BUHBRE?
FE27H
—ZT——%F)
IAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and B at R R %fﬂ ARAEENA]
Joint Ventures? F285% IR &2
—ZT——%F)
IAS 32 Amendments  Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Bl at4ER) F%TQ§+E€E\|J%32%E{I§§T$
Instruments: Presentation F 3258 1(& EHTA : 23— #HiH

- Offsetting Financial Assets and 1A THAEHMSFHEAE

Financial Liabilities®

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs ZEZANFE  BIZE-_FXABREN
2009-2011 Cycle issued in June 20122 —E——F ST B B R s 22 A2
AR FE
it

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July ! R-B-——FLtHA- AR ZERFIRZFED
2012 AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 R-B-—=F—H-BHZEFBEZFED
2013 AR

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January ¢ R-B-—MF—-H- B 2EFEIRZFED
2014 AR

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January ‘ R-B-—AF—H-BRZEFIEZFED

2015 AR
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Further information about those changes that are
expected to significantly affect the Group is as
follows:

The IFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to disclose
information about rights to set-off and related
arrangements (e.g., collateral agreements). The
disclosures would provide users with information that
is useful in evaluating the effect of netting arrangements
on an entity’s financial position. The new disclosures
are required for all recognised financial instruments
that are set off in accordance with IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures also apply
to recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether they are set off in
accordance with IAS 32. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments from 1 January 2013.

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part
of phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely
replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on the
basis of both the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with
the requirements of IAS 39.

DT AT EA Y S AEE0EERB
B HER -

BB BHREENETRETAERE KR
REA R 2 AN LR (P10
ZHF) - RESRERP UG FREERY
HR-BBZMBRRNNTEZERER -
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B - AEEEHE_T—=F—A—H8%&

RNZFERT
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AIF R B T 2 K BIFR &5 £ R F 3957 £ &
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—#n c AERBEINSHMEEN D B LG
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REEBEECHEENEBRANERE
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BUABBRKALAABEFIE - EEELR
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In November 2010, the IASB issued additions to
IFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”)
and incorporated in IFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of IAS 39. Most of
the Additions were carried forward unchanged from IAS
39, while changes were made to the measurement of
financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss using the fair value option (“FVO”). For these
FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value
of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk
must be presented in other comprehensive income
(“OCI”). The remainder of the change in fair value is
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the
fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in
OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. However, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts which have been designated under
the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.

IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in IAS
39 on hedge accounting and impairment of financial
assets continues to apply. The Group expects to adopt
IFRS 9 from 1 January 2015. The Group will quantify
the effect in conjunction with other phases, when the
final standard including all phases is issued.

IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that
applies to all entities including special purpose entities
or structured entities. It includes a new definition of
control which is used to determine which entities
are consolidated. The changes introduced by IFRS
10 require management of the Group to exercise
significant judgement to determine which entities are
controlled, compared with the requirements in IAS 27
and SIC — 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities.
IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that addresses
the accounting for consolidated financial statements.
It also addresses the issues raised in SIC — 12. Based
on the preliminary analyses performed, IFRS 10 is not
expected to have any impact on the currently held
investments of the Group.

31 December 2012
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IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and SIC — 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers. It describes the
accounting for joint arrangements with joint control. It
addresses only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e.,
joint operations and joint ventures, and removes the
option to account for joint ventures using proportionate
consolidation.

IFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities previously included in IAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, I1AS
31 Interests in Joint Ventures and IAS 28 Investments
in Associates. It also introduces a number of new
disclosure requirements for these entities.

In July 2012, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS
10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 which clarify the transition
guidance in IFRS 10 and provide further relief from full
retrospective application of these standards, limiting
the requirement to provide adjusted comparative
information to only the preceding comparative period.
The amendments clarify that retrospective adjustments
are only required if the consolidation conclusion as to
which entities are controlled by the Group is different
between IFRS 10 and IAS 27 or SIC — 12 at the
beginning of the annual period in which IFRS 10 is
applied for the first time. Furthermore, for disclosures
related to unconsolidated structured entities, the
amendments will remove the requirement to present
comparative information for periods before IFRS 12
is first applied.
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The amendments to IFRS 10 issued in December
2012 include a definition of an investment entity and
provide an exception to the consolidation requirement
for entities that meet the definition of an investment
entity. Investment entities are required to account
for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in
accordance with IFRS 9 rather than consolidate them.
Consequential amendments were made to IFRS 12 and
IAS 27 (2011). The amendments to IFRS 12 also set
out the disclosure requirements for investment entities.
The Group expects that these amendments will not
have any impact on the Group as the Company is not
an investment entity as defined in IFRS 10.

Consequential amendments were made to IAS 27
and IAS 28 as a result of the issuance of IFRS 10,
IFRS 11 and IFRS 12. The Group expects to adopt
IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IAS 27 (2011) and IAS
28 (2011), and the subsequent amendments to these
standards issued in July and December 2012 from 1
January 2018.

IFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across IFRSs. The standard does
not change the circumstances in which the Group
is required to use fair value, but provides guidance
on how fair value should be applied where its use is
already required or permitted under other IFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt IFRS 13 prospectively from
1 January 2013.

31 December 2012
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The IAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in OCI. Items that could be reclassified
(or recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time
(for example, net gain on hedge of a net investment,
exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations, net movement on cash flow hedges and
net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial assets)
would be presented separately from items which will
never be reclassified (for example, actuarial gains
and losses on defined benefit plans and revaluation
of land and buildings). The amendments will affect
presentation only and have no impact on the financial
position or performance. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments from 1 January 2013.

IAS 19 (2011) include a number of amendments that
range from fundamental changes to simple clarifications
and re-wording. The revised standard introduces
significant changes in the accounting for defined
benefit pension plans including removing the choice
to defer the recognition of actuarial gains and losses.
Other changes include modifications to the timing of
recognition for termination benefits, the classification
of short-term employee benefits and disclosures of
defined benefit plans. The Group expects to adopt
IAS 19 (2011) from 1 January 2013.

The IAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to setoff”
for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities.
The amendments also clarify the application of the
offsetting criteria in IAS 32 to settlement systems (such
as central clearing house systems) which apply gross
settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group upon
adoption on 1 January 2014.
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The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
issued in June 2012 sets out amendments to a number
of IFRSs. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2013. There are separate transitional
provisions for each standard. While the adoption of
some of the amendments may result in changes in
accounting policies, none of these amendments are
expected to have a significant financial impact on
the Group. Those amendments that are expected to
have a significant impact on the Group’s policies are
as follows:

(@)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies the difference between voluntary
additional comparative information and the
minimum required comparative information.
Generally, the minimum required comparative
period is the previous period. An entity must
include comparative information in the related
notes to the financial statements when it voluntarily
provides comparative information beyond the
previous period. The additional comparative
information does not need to contain a complete
set of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the
opening statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the preceding period must be
presented when an entity changes its accounting
policies; makes retrospective restatements or
makes reclassifications, and that change has
a material effect on the statement of financial
position. However, the related notes to the
opening statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the preceding period are not
required to be presented.

31 December 2012
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2.3Issued But Not Yet Effective
International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

(b) IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation:
Clarifies that income taxes arising from
distributions to equity holders are accounted
for in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes.
The amendment removes existing income tax
requirements from IAS 32 and requires entities to
apply the requirements in IAS 12 to any income
tax arising from distributions to equity holders.

2.4Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries that are not classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position
to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses.

238 MM
&

85K 4 3% > B B &

7N\

15 4R

b) EIFREHERIEREMTA - 25 :
BB MRS AL 2 K PTE £ R PT
BRBZBR S ERFE12RAF/HA
B o RZIEET MR BIFR & 5122 RI S8 3257 1
BEMGHAE  LEXRERLAESR
BEAEH D IRFTELNERASHA
ERBIBR ST EAF125RMRTE -

PAFESTTHRHE

i) NG

B /8~ ] 5 AN X B B % sk PR R AR I B A
REBRARE BB R BB RN ERE

B AR H AT ARRBMBRRD I
AR WA B R R B AR - AR RN H B
AR E (W EARB BRI 75 3R 5 A 25
BAE R AU E) EARNEREEM
HEBRIIRK

BENTGEH B AR ARZEG AR AR
SEFAEE R T IR20%EEEHN R
Az - WAHEBABRZENER -

AEBERBERTNRENEREE SR
% BARBERGFEEREMBERREZ
RERE MR RPN



The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associates is included in the consolidated
profit or loss and consolidated reserves, respectively.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates is included as part
of the Group’s investments in associates and is not
individually tested for impairment.

When an investment in an associate is classified as
held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with
IFRS 5.

When an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and deferred tax assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.
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An assessment is made at the end of the year as
to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the year in which it arises.

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

()  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or
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Notes to the Financial Statements B#&R &R M=

2.4Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continuea)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 8 — 10 years
Office equipment 3 - 5 years
Motor vehicles 4 — 5 years
Tooling and equipment 3 — 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.
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Anitem of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant
and machinery under construction or installation and
testing. It is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction or installation and testing and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction or installation and
testing. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received,
excluding other sales taxes or duties. The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognised:

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred, the title has been passed
to the buyer and the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold.
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Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis MR EHIREAEENEBRIEREKS
using the effective interest method by applying B T B {5t R RFETE 5T 7] {5 FB 4 B HARS
the rate that discounts the estimated future cash WERIEMIBEeREERTFEDN
receipts over the expected life of the financial F MR o

instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion HeWRIERMELREEERLFHA

basis over the lease terms. R o
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, BAUiE  ERIEESRREE(FR—RE
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., BETRENERT Ak EEE ) MERE
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of ERNEERABREZEEEMNIBO KA o 4
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are BEEABEAEERERRIEE - Bl
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The EEREERAEEEIEERNL - BEKEFH
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when RERBEERINEEEEMRIMNIEE
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use W WEENMEEEKR AR - EAFT
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary ENEER AN EEERERARY ©

investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.

When funds have been borrowed generally, and HM—REENESTTEARIEEEREE
used for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a RIZEEREENMZ RIS 7T5%ERE A
capitalisation rate of 3.75% has been applied to the (L REITE R ©

expenditure on the qualifying assets.



The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity within the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
using the functional currency rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the
reporting date. All differences are taken to profit or
loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas entities
within the Group are currencies other than the RMB.
As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates prevailing at the reporting date and, their income
and expenses are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are included in a separate
component of equity. On disposal of a foreign entity,
the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised
in profit or loss.
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For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas entities within
the Group are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas entities within the
Group which arise throughout the year are translated
into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.
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Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and
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° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
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Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition as cost. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Computer software of the Group is amortised over the
estimated useful life of 10 years.

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as
incurred. Expenditure incurred on projects to develop
new products is capitalised and deferred only when
the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate
future economic benefits, the availability of resources to
complete the project and the ability to measure reliably
the expenditure during the development. Product
development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products not exceeding five years, commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial
production.
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Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
or loans and receivables, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus, in the case
of investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets after initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the end
of the reporting period.

The Group’s financial assets include pledged deposits,
cash and bank balances, trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from
related companies and equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss.
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The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss represent financial assets held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
other income and gains in profit or loss.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is
still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade
these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable
future significantly changes, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
The reclassification from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss to loans and receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity investments
depends on the nature of the assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in interest income
in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in profit or loss in other expenses.
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A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that
are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are
classified as loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, amounts due to
a director and related companies and interest-bearing
bank borrowings.

The measurement of loans and borrowings is as
follows:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in profit or loss.
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A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded
in active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price
for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For
financial instruments where there is no active market,
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis;
and option pricing models.
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For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis. The costs of raw materials comprise
the purchasing costs of the materials and other costs
incurred in bringing the materials to their present
locations and conditions. The costs of work in progress
and finished goods comprise direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of manufacturing
overheads.

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices,
less estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.
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When the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is included
in finance costs in profit or loss.

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases are included in property, plant and equipment
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance
costs of such leases are charged to profit or loss so
as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over
the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases, net of any incentives received
from the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Obligatory retirement benefits in the form of
contributions under a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by local government agencies
are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).
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The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial lattice model, further
details of which are given in note 30 to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of the reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.
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Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognhised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph. All
cancellations of equity-settled transaction awards are
treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.
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The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial years are discussed
below.

Impairment of trade receivables is made based
on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables. The identification of doubtful debts
requires management’s judgement and estimates.
Provision is made when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
the debts. Where the actual outcome or future
expectation is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the carrying value
of the receivables, doubtful debt expenses and
write-back of impairment of trade receivables
in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

The carrying value of property, plant and
equipment is reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amount of an asset, or, where
appropriate, the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, is calculated as the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to estimate
future cash flows from the cash-generating units
and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly
as a result of technical innovations, competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles
or unforeseeable change in legal enforcement
rights in future. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or it will write
off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation charges for its intangible
assets. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful life of intangible
assets of similar functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations.
Management reassesses the useful lives at each
reporting date.

Net realisable value of an inventory is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal. These estimates are based on
the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of a similar nature
which could change significantly as a result of
competitor actions. Management reassesses
these estimates at each reporting date.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The amount
of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December
2012 was RMB60,928,000 (2011: nil.). Further
details are contained in note 28 to the financial
Statements.

As described in note 30 to the financial statements,
the Company has engaged an independent
professionally qualified valuer to assist in the
valuation of the share options granted during the
reporting period. The fair value of options granted
under the share option scheme is determined
using the binomial lattice model. The significant
inputs into the model were the weighted average
share price at the grant date, risk-free interest
rate, exercise price, expected volatility of the
underlying shares, expected dividend yield and
expected life of options.

Development costs are capitalised in accordance
with the accounting policy for research and
development costs in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. Determining the amounts to be
capitalised requires management to make
assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the assets, discount rates to be
applied and the expected period of benefits. At
31 December 2012, the best estimate of the
carrying amount of capitalised development costs
was RMB56,526,000 (2011: RMB25,031,000).

fisi 5 FE Rt 5 A1) AT B A VE AT 40 A E B 2=
B AREAESANAEBREERS
MABBHBEEELE - lempan
MBS EZERRECHRBEEE - B
AERHECH BEAES T EEEE
R B 18 FE SR T 0 1) /9 B R B2 K S &2 B
BHEHRERBIELEALE - R=F
——HF+ - A=+ BARERNHEES
B4 5% A AR ¥60,928,000T( - & —
—F ) E—DHBENYBHRE
B sE28MA o

00 B 75 R M EES0RT I - AR R R
REEBY XA BERMGEMHHFER
HEBRARHDOBRENEE - RiIZ
BRAFEERNERETERONEK
BAREBE DERB-_EAAHEER
BEE - ZBEEFANEIERERRLA
HIR NP RME - BRBRAE - 176
(B - TEHERE AR - TRHIRE X R
BB S

FEKARBY SRR E2.4FTH A
BIRARAEREANSTRRBERTE
e BEENMMEETEREHZE
EEBRELENERS  BAMITRE
MIEFTEEFMS R SEERRE - K=
T——F+-A=+—H BEEBHE
FREAMFAEKAREAEERDNHREFT
A ARES6,526,000T ( —FE——4F:
AR #25,031,0007T) °
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Particulars of Companies 4. HRRAEBHN A RINFRE

Comprising the Group

As at the year end, the Company had direct or indirect RAFER  RARRATEENBARA

interests in the following principal subsidiaries: B

Place of Percentage of
Date of incorporation equity interest
incorporation/ and registration/ Issued and attributable
Subsidiaries registration operations paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
RIRER/ EER AAAREL
HEAT R/ 2RA% EERY HRER RABREAL IEXH
Direct Indirect
ER L
% %

Leoch Battery (Jiangsu) Corp. 11 March 2003 PRC US$39,245,211 - 100 Investment holding and
(“Jiangsu Leoch’) —E5-F 5 30245 2117 manufacture and sale of

THETEHERAT =R+-A lead-acid batteries
(IT&E1]) RERR  RENHE

hEEE

Zhaoging Leoch Battery 9 May 2005 PRC US$34,365,975 = 100 Manufacture and sale of
Technology Co., Ltd. —E5RF 5 34,365,975 7T lead-acid batteries
(‘Zhaoging Leoch’) LANA HENHERRESH

SRR SRRINERAT
([gFRL))

Anhui Leoch Battery 26 July 2006 PRC US$10,001,455 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Technology Corp. “EEAE 5 10,001 455 T lead-acid batteries
(“Anhui Leoch Battery’) tA=1/A HEMEERRESH
PR ERIERAA
([z@ELEH))

Shenzhen Leoch Battery 26 April 1999 PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
Technology Co., Ltd. “MANE 5 AR 20,000,000 manufacture and sale of
(‘Shenzhen Leoch’) MA=+7A lead-acid batteries

AT RERRGERAT RERR - RENHE
(TRyEL]) hEEED

Dongguan Leach Battery 27 November 2002 PRC RMB3,500,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Technology Co., Ltd. “E5°F 5 ARH3,500,0007T lead-acid batteries
(‘Dongguan Leach’) +-A=++A HENHERRESH

FETETRBRRNARAT
(F-£:5d)

—FFR
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4. Particulars of Companies 4. HERAREBEHNRQBRFE
Comprising the Group (continued) (%)
Place of Percentage of
Date of incorporation equity interest
incorporation/ and registration/ Issued and attributable
Subsidiaries registration operations paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
KUK/ EETR ADARE
HEAT RiL/#RA% EEWY BRER RAEREA IBXH
Direct  Indirect
B L
% %
Kinetic Growth International 11 January 2008 Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Limited (‘Kinetic Growth’) “EENE &4 BT HELKESH
BEARARAA(EE) —-At-R
Leoch Battery Corporation 17 June 2003 USA 1S$200,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch Battery Corp.”) 23> %8 200,000 HERRESH
([Leoch Battery Corp.J) ~ATEA
Leoch Power Supply (H.K.) 18 August 2004 Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 = 100 Investment holding and sale
Limited (‘Leoch Power Supply’) —ZEM4E B 12,000,000/57¢ of lead-acid batteries
BIER(ER)ARAA MTAR REBRAREE R
([B+ER)) £
Honour Label Investments 28 February 2005 BvI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited (‘Honour Label’) “5%8F ABRAES %7 RELER
([Honour Label]) “B=1/\R
Peak Year Investments Limited 25 January 2007 BV USS1 = 100 Investment holding
(‘Peak Year') &3 g ABRAEE 1% REBR
([Peak Year]) i il
Shieldon International Limited 19 January 2007 BV USS1 = 100 Investment hoding
(‘Shieldon’) S S ABRAES %7 KRR
([ Shieldon ) —-AthA
Leoch Battery Company Limited 25 April 2007 Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Leoch Battery Company’) 3% Bk 1,000,000 and sale of lead-acid
(ILeoch Battery Company]) mA-t1A batteries

RERRREEREE
gt
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4. HRAEBH D FRIFE

Comprising the Group (continued) € ))
Place of Percentage of
Date of incorporation equity interest
incorporation/ and registration/ Issued and attributable
Subsidiaries registration operations paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
KUK/ BEAR ARk
HEAR B/ A EEHY HrEx RAERAD IBER
Direct Indirect
ER B
% %

Nanjing Leoch Battery 15 March 2006 PRC RMB300,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Technology Co., Ltd. “ERNE il AERH300,0007C HENRETY
(‘Nanjing Leoch’) =AthA

ERELRERENERAR
(L))

Beijing Leach Engineering 14 December 2004~ PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Technology Co., Ltd. “EENE el ARH4.000,0007% pEdmEEy
(‘Beiing Leoch’) +ZA+EA

TrRETRERRMERAA
(MrrEL])

Kunming Leach Engineering 25 May 2006 PRC RMB500,000 = 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Technology Co., Ltd. ZEENE e ARE500,0007 HENMESH
(Kunming Leoct’) RA-t1A

ERETRIRRMERAR
([EHEL])

Xining Leoch Engineering 25 November 2006 PRC RMB700,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Technology Co., Ltd. “ETRF HE AKEE700,0007T HERRESH
(*ining Leoch’) t—-R=+1H

RERTRTRRMERAA
((AEEL])

Leoch Battery Shenzhen Corp. 27 September 2007 PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Shenzhen Leoch Battery’) ~ —EE+E hE ARE1,000,0007 HEGKESH

AIBLEBRTERAA MAZTER
(IRIELED])

Catherine Holdings International 3 May 2010 BV USS6 100 = Investment holding
Company Limited “2-3f% RERIEE 6ET REER
(‘Cathering Holdings”) nA=A
([ Cathering Holdings )

—FFER

BrEBEMERAT | —T—

111



Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2012

112

Notes to the Financial Statements B &R FRHsE

31 December 2012
BHE_ZT——F+-_A=+—HIEE

4. Particulars of Companies
Comprising the Group (continued)

4. EXZIK’EIH’J"TE’J*if*

Place of Percentage of
Date of incorporation equity interest
incorporation/ and registration/ Issued and attributable
Subsidiaries registration operations paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
R R/ EETR AL
HEAT R/ 2RA% gERY BRER RABHE AN TERH
Direct  Indirect
ER L
% %

Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. 5 April 2010 Singapore 5G$510,700 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
‘Leoch Battery Pte.” “5-IF s 510, 70037 1 T HENMESH
(TLeoch Battery Pte. ) mATA

Anhui Leoch Power Supply Corp. 26 October 2010 PRC HK$228,884,957 - 100 Manufacture and sale
(*Anhui Leoch Power’) Z3-%F G 208,884 957 T of lead-acid batteries
PR ERRIERAA TAZtAR RENHENEESH
([REELER

Leoch Lanka (Private) Ltd. 25 January 2012 Sri Lanka US$5,232,071 - 100 Manufacture and sale
(‘Leoch Lanka')® “E-of HELES 5,232 01157t of lead-acid batteries
(Leoch Lanka J)? —-A=TZA HEMEERRESH

Notes: 3T

(1)  The additional capital injection into Anhui Leoch Power by
the Company amounted to HK$51,568,226 in 2012, and
the related capital verification report was issued by Anhui
Shicheng Certified Public Accountants (“Z it & =+ 6
BHEET).

(2)  Theincrease of capital injection into Leoch Lanka amounted
to US$5,232,271 by Leoch Investment (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd. was completed on 26 December 2012.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length. Details of investments
in subsidiaries are listed in note 18 below.

(1) ZT—=—F AQFAATHETEREINE
#51,568,226/8 70 * BEAEARZERES A
R e A B -

2) Leoch Investment (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.[r]
Leoch Lankal& )X &5,232,271%7T - B
—E——Ft+ZRAZTREZEK

EREBIZARARMBARNDEERRER
FEXGEATEFEIBRASEEEFE
EZEARBA ZMBRA - EFR/FINE
B AR ZERERREBNITE - KK
BARZREFHIIN T XHEI8A -
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Operating Segment Information

The Group is engaged in the manufacture and sale
of lead-acid batteries. For management purposes,
the Group operates in one business unit based on its
products, and has one reportable segment which is
the manufacture and sale of lead-acid batteries.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form
the above reportable operating segment.

Geographical information

(@) Revenue from external customers

5.

31 December 2012
BE-_T——F+-_A=+—HItFE

REDHER

AEEURERENHENRBELER - B
EEAN AKRERBEEMEE —[EXH
B A —EHRS 0 BREREEN

BREEMH -

A A D EP AR AL b it 3R A
5 o
i E &R

() KESEEL U

Group

AEHE
2012 2011
—E-_F —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREFIT
Mainland China SlEly N 1,463,502 1,552,594
European Union (F=E] 630,286 522,283
United States of America EH 508,867 489,453
Other Asian countries/areas HibTmMER, bR 456,675 486,044
Other countries HMER 188,656 113,682
3,247,986 3,164,056

The revenue information above is based on the
location of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

All significant operating assets of the Group
are located in Mainland China. Accordingly, no
geographical information of segment assets is
presented.

Information about a major customer

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there
was no revenue from a single customer (2011: one
customer: RMB362,155,000) exceeding 10% of the
Group’s total revenue for the year.

EXHBEERTDIERTL NS
1 o

b) FREBEE

AEEFEEBNEBEESTNEE
KB - Bl 255 HEENBEE
Ko

FHREIEEFHNER

HE-_T——F+_A=+—HILEFE #§
|mAEA—BEPIELHNEERS(ZT——
F: —FHZEF A ARK362,155,0007T ) 8 HH
REEFRBUZENT10% °

BHEABEHERAT | % —FFH
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6. Revenue, Other Income and 6.

Gains

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of goods sold. An analysis of
revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

Wz~ Httlt AR ZF

Wik MAAREENEXE  RAEEMH
FEEE - AR R ARENN D
T

Group

rEH
2012 2011
—E-=fF —EB——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBTTT

Revenue Weas
Sale of goods HEEY 3,247,986 3,164,056
Other income and gains HApUg A R Uz
Rental income ikl 181 58
Bank interest income HRITH B ER 21,366 17,976
Government grants I 475 B 12,418 36,239
Sale of scrap materials SHERER 448 4,159
Exchange gains, net M H e - JFRE 1,687 7,642
Fair value gains, net A BEERR  FHE
Financial assets at fair value BArBEFAER
through profit or loss N EEE 2,164 -
Equity investments at fair value BAREBETAER
through profit or loss Bl IR E 86 =
Others E 5,103 4,804
43,453 70,878

Various government grants represented cash payments
and subsidies by the local finance bureau to the Group
as an encouragement to its investment and technological
innovation. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies relating to such subsidies.

BEBUTH DI 7 IS E 4 T A S E R
REFRIE MR - LA EISE R alE -
MEBBZBUMNREEN KRS
1 o
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Profit Before Tax

31 December 2012
BE-_T——F+_-_A=+—HItFE

7. BAnRF

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after 7 = B RS BT R T AR LA R I8 B 65t
charging:
Group
r&EE
2012 2011
—E--F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

Cost of inventories sold

FEFERAR 2,327,140 2,232,196

Employee benefit expense
(including directors’ remuneration
as set out in note 9)

Wages and salaries
Performance related bonuses
Equity-settled share

EERHMFX

(B EEOrEE

ExMe):

HHRIE 396,498 381,192
AR TEAT 1,186 1,689

UARE 5 4 B R A R S

option expenses 13,740 11,546
Retirement benefit RIER GBI
scheme contributions 23,671 39,759
435,095 434,186
Research and development costs ~ AFEEALA 93,817 66,730
Fair value (gains) losses from TRMEERAABEESFA
financial assets and equity BaiEmtiREn A nE
investments carried at fair value B (=) EE
through profit or loss* (2,250) 218
Auditors’ remuneration BTN & 2,137 2,092
Depreciation of property, M - BERRETE
plant and equipment (note 15) (BF3E15) 97,959 61,887
Amortisation of prepaid land TS £ 4 7 & SR 8
lease payments (note 16) (fF5EE16) 1,331 1,425
Amortisation of intangible assets™ /& EE# i
(note 17) (PBFEE17) 4,729 469
Impairment of (Reversal of B Z R IERE
impairment of) trade receivables CRERE)
(note 21) GEZD) 7,727 (1,386)
Minimum lease payments under KEAE THRERENK
operating leases 7,355 7,007
Exchange gains, net &5 e - JFEE (1,687) (7,642)
Losses on disposal of items of BEMZE - WERKHEIEE
property, plant and equipment o) Ei=! 800 5,611

—FFR

BIEBREAERAT | —2—
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7. Profit Before Tax (continued)
* The fair value (gains) losses from financial assets and
equity investments carried at fair value through profit or
loss are included in “Other income and gains” and “Other
expenses” respectively in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
* The amortisation of intangible assets is included in
“Administrative expenses” and “Cost of sales” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

8. Finance Costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

Bt A g A )

- CREENRAABEZDHABRENOERE
RENAARBEEZD(WE)BESHES
R E2ERER T EmBA R | R
fpI ] -

o BREAENBHEESESSEEKaRTN
[TTRF IR SHERA]

B FE B AN
PSR AT -

Group

rEH
2012 2011
— T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥ETTT

Interest on bank borrowings  RITEEF S 51,170 41,872
Interest arising from BMIRERESNFE

discounted bills 30,280 4,090

81,450 45,962

Less: Interest capitalised B BEEREFE (18,600) (16,834)

62,850 29,128
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9. Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant

31 December 2012

BE_ZT——#+-_A=1+—HItEE

EEME

RIBCETRBDREB R BEPISE161 B 5E

to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong ZEEZFNMNEFBOT
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
2012 2011
—F-=F —F—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T
Fees we 294 300
Salaries, allowances e R REYER
and benefits in kind 1,603 1,667
Performance related bonuses*  4&xk MR TEAL* 1,186 909
Equity-settled share LA 4 B R R
option expenses™ 698 814
Retirement benefit RIREF B K
scheme contributions 17 18
3,798 3,708

*k

One executive director of the Company is entitled to bonus
payment which is determined at a percentage of the profit
after tax of the Group.

During the years 2010 and 2011, two executive directors
and three independent non-executive directors were
respectively granted share options, in respect of their
services to the Group, under the pre-IPO share option
scheme and share option scheme of the Company
respectively, further details of which are set out in note 30.
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised
in profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined
as at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012 is included in the above directors’ remuneration
disclosure.

>k

ARR—BRTEFERIRIE R RBEBRBER
w2 B OB ZIEAL

—EZEFERZZE——FERN MEBWTE
ER=FBUINTEFTAEHALEBRE
ZRBEMDRAIRBANBE X AREERZ
MERR T B R BRI AT B R - K
—HHBENI 30 - 2EBBREZ ARG
BEENEBYMEEERTER  TREDY
HETE  mMBE=_T——F+=-A=+—H
WFEEMBRRPATAZEE  B5FA
ENEFTHEEEF -

BHEABEHERAT | % —FFH
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9. Directors’ Remuneration (continued)

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

9. EEM T »

(@) BYFHTES

FARBUIFJTEEINZ2EREW

directors during the year were as follows: ™~
Salaries, Equity-  Retirement
allowances Performance settled benefit
and benefits related share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expenses contributions remuneration
e 2R NEREE BINER
ik BENER ANETA  BRERX HE L6 FMan
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR ARBTR AR%®Tn ARMTR ARET:R
2012 —B-CF
Independent BUFHTEE
non-executive
directors:
Mr. An Wenbin ZXWEE 98 - - 127 - 225
Mr. Liu Yangsheng ~ ZIB4%4 98 - - 127 - 225
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan  E 7RS4 98 - - 127 - 225
294 - - 381 - 675
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9. Directors’ Remuneration (continued)

Independent non-executive
directors (continued)

31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-A=1+—HItEE

9- tﬁ%@ﬂﬁ\?
() BIFEHITEE #)

Salaries, Equity-  Retirement
allowances  Performance settled benefit

and benefits related  share option scheme Total

Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions  remuneration
e RER IEREE RAEH

e BEr  EREaa

BRER  SHEER HEE

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT  AR%TT  ARETT ARETR ARETT AR%ETR
201 ZE—f
Independent BUHHTEE
non-executive
directors:
Mr. An Wenbin BN 100 - - 15 - 115
Mr. Liu Yangsheng  2IBE%4 100 - - 15 - 115
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan & 7Rt 4 100 - - 15 - 115
300 - - 45 - 345

During the year 2011, all the three independent
directors were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group, further details of
which are set out in note 30. The fair value of
such options which has been recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined
as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012 is included in the above
directors’ remuneration disclosure.

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2011: Nil).

TE——FEN ME-ABUEEAHEM
AEBREZREMERBRE HE—2
FEIEENME0 - ZEEREZ AR BED
REBPETESRP®ER  TRAREAE
ECMBE_Z——F+_HA=1+—HBIF
EEVBRERFATAZEE Bt ALX
EEMeEESP -

L RABLIRTEE LMD (=
5 )

—FFER

BIEBEAERAT | —2—
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9. Directors’ Remuneration continues) 9. BB E )

(b) Executive directors (b) BMITEE
Salaries, Equity-  Retirement
allowances Performance settled benefit
and benefits related share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expenses contributions remuneration
e 2R NEREE BINER

e BURER BXEATAL  BRERX i IR FHAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'’000 RMB'’000 RMB’000 RMB'’000
ARBTT ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETRT AR%TR

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2012

2012 —E-CF
Executive directors: — #{7E% -
Mr. Dong Li BRAA - 550 - - 11 561
Ms. Zhao Huan BExT - 296 - 159 6 461
Mr. Philip Armstrong  Philip Armstrong
Noznesky Noznesky 7t & - 757 1,186 158 - 2,101
- 1,603 1,186 317 17 3,128
2011 —F——F
Executive directors: — #{72% -
Mr. Dong Li BN - 550 - - 11 561
Ms. Zhao Huan BELT - 319 - 410 7 736
Mr. Philip Armstrong  Philip Armstrong
Noznesky Noznesky /&4 = 798 909 359 - 2,066
- 1,667 909 769 18 3,363
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9. Directors’ Remuneration continueq)y 9. ZEHENE ()

(b) Executive directors (continued) (b) BMITEE(®)
There was no arrangement under which a director B Z——F+-_A=+—HIt#H# b
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration - HECAAEEESRITHAKNE ﬁ
during the year ended 31 December 2012 and FIEBRETMMESHILHE - XEETR ‘||
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the EREEYNEMHESEANAREER B
directors as an inducement to join or upon YN A ZN 52 [ A Y B2 Eh Sl BE B O 4 18 ‘_I
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss I3
of office. Eé
i
10. Five Highest Paid Employees 10. B8R EFMES g
The five highest paid employees during the year FANREZEaTHEET  BEMEZES ;t"
included two (2011: two) directors, details of whose —E——F WA HFBFBEIN LEX
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of BizE9 - FAN  EB=F(—T——F  =4)
the remuneration for the year of the remaining three FEBEV R TNESENFTMEEBWOT ¢

(2011: three) non-director, highest paid employees
are as follows:

2012 2011
—F-=F —F——%
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Salaries, allowances and e ZMREMEN

benefits in kind 1,816 1,817
Equity-settled share DA 4 E AR

option expenses 1,010 1,169
Retirement benefit scheme — ERIR@HIFFEIH

contributions 21 21

2,847 3,007
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10. Five Highest Paid Employees 10. E8EeTMES =
(continued)
5 The number of non-director, highest paid employees FHETIREZFEETNRSFMERA
< whose remuneration fell within the following band is T
G% as follows:
o
E
§ Number of employees
_ EEAH
8 2012 2011
£ —E-—=f —T——F
3
ke)
o
% Nil to RMB1,000,000 ZrE ARE1,000,0007T 3 3
2
=
S 3 3
g
2
E
§ During the year, no highest paid individuals waived or RAFE  BECAKSHTMATHRELR
3 agreed to waive any emoluments and no emoluments EREEANE  AEETERAFESES
were paid by the Group to the non-director, highest FIA TR EAMEERMAARERE M
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon AZRER B ) SR SRR B B0+ 1 o
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office.
VA hY
11. Income Tax 1. FiEH8
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis AEBERAEEKE R REMEREED
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions AEEBEREEBEEEANENANE
in which members of the Group are domiciled and 7K
operate.
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman BERESFENRARAEG - NRRRBEAR
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income FZAVEBEEBMERPAAEE
tax in this jurisdiction.
The subsidiaries, Honour Label, Peak Year, Shieldon, HRTRBREAXHSTMR LOWE R
Catherine Holdings, which were incorporated in the 7] (Honour Label, Peak Year, Shieldon
British Virgin Islands are not subject to income tax Catherine Holdings) 7 I & BF 2 B & 10 42
as such subsidiaries do not have a place of business BEEMI (MM BERIN S EE A
(other than a registered office only) or carry on any % RSB A R EBSNFTET o
business in the British Virgin Islands.
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Leoch Battery Corp., incorporated in the United States,
is subject to corporate income tax in the United States.
The applicable federal corporate income tax rate is in
the range of 15%-35% on taxable income.

The provision for Hong Kong current tax is based on
the statutory rate of 16.5% of the assessable profits
of the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong, i.e.
Leoch Power Supply and Leoch Battery Company. No
provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made by
Kinetic Growth as it did not carry on any business in
Hong Kong and had no assessable profits arising in or
derived from Hong Kong during the year. The operations
of Kinetic Growth were carried out in the PRC by the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group. Such arrangement may
have PRC tax exposures. The relevant potential PRC
income tax provision has been recognised by the Group
by way of allocating the profits of Kinetic Growth to the
respective PRC subsidiaries based on the total cost of
goods purchased by Kinetic Growth from each PRC
subsidiaries. The Group is in the process of moving
Kinetic Growth’s operation gradually to Leoch Battery
Pte. The Singapore authority approved Leoch Battery
Pte’s application for the Global Trader Programme
status on 2 August 2011. The provision for Leoch
Singapore Pte’s current income tax is based on the
tax rate of 10%.

The provision for PRC current income tax is based on
the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits of
the Group as determined in accordance with the new
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which was approved
and became effective on 1 January 2008, except for
certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC which are
charged for tax at preferential rates.

31 December 2012
HE_Z——_F+_A=+—HLEE

Leoch Battery Corp A=Ak - ZBR
EHHBNDERGH - ERBRMENE -
ERRE I DERMSHENT15%E35% °

BENHABIRENEE SRR EAEMKL
MK E QA BIIE L+ EIR Kleoch Battery
Company#) f& R B & A » 127ATE B %16.5%
TE c AR IR BN E BN EEMER
BRAFE AN RN E B E 4 L BRE ]
ABUE A AW MBI E B RS EE -
B ER T RASEENRBINE ARG ES
Blac e - ZEL B gt g HEER BB %R
%o AEEDREERNESRPBIMEQRH
BEMOEKREN  mMEPENE AR E#E
BEEN - FEARREREETBEAEH R
o NEBIEZ D5 H#IE R Tleoch
Battery Pte - ¥ E AR =2 ——F N\ A
— Hilt#Leoch Battery Pte B IR E 55
HALHYERES © Leoch Singapore PteBlEATIS
T TR R R 10% T HE B o

7 o 0 o B 0 T I 2 M A (B
oh + o B B 0 T 49 B A T AR R B
BREA=ZENF—A—BEHERE
i) 127 52 B 0 I S 4558 A 269 )25 S e 2
-

BrEBREMBRAR | — S ——F£H
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31 December 2012
BE-_FT —_F+t-A=1+—"HLEFE

In accordance with the relevant income tax laws and
regulations of the PRC for manufacturing enterprises,
Anhui Leoch Battery and Zhaoqing Leoch were
exempted from corporate income tax (“CIT”) for first
two years of operation and were entitled to a 50%
reduction in the PRC CIT for the subsequent three
years (“CIT Exemption”). The year ended 31 December
2012 was the fifth year of tax exemption for Anhui
Leoch Battery and Zhaoging Leoch.

Pursuant to the transitional arrangement under the
new PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, the income tax
rate applicable to Shenzhen Leoch will be gradually
increased from the rate of 18% to the unified rate of 25%
over five years commencing from year 2008. Jiangsu
Leoch was recognised as a high-tech enterprise by
the PRC tax authority in 2012 with an effective period
of three years and was entitled to a 15% CIT rate for
year 2012.

The major components of income tax charge for the
year are as follows:

Group: REHE -

Current — PRC BIER7S 18 — R
Current — Hong Kong BVEATRIE — &S
Current — Singapore BNERRR I — #T N
Current — US BNEARRTE — £ &
Deferred tax (note 28) EERIE (MIFE28)

Total tax charge FARBIAS BB

for the year

RIEBEBRECENEBHBEMAFHEN R
RO ZEELEHREER T EEER
FEEMFERLBMNEEMEHR(TEEM
B YRER=FRRRPELEMNF
B50% ([EEMEHRAEAR]) - BHE-T—
TFEFT A=t HULEFERREELEM
NMERRTFERFZALEMESHBALNE
o

BEFTHRECEMEREZNREZH - &
BRRIEBTHMEHEER_ETN\Fit
T H) T F AR R H18%1E E25%H) £ — i
Eo BRI TEHEBTN T —FEF
BEREERERESTBIELE  BUFH
BZF M- —FHNOCEMBHRERA
15% °

RAFEEZMEEMEHRBT

2011
—EF——%F
RMB’000
ARETT

37,872
5,396
3,784

410
(2,816)

44,646
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11. Income Tax (continued)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to
profit before tax at the statutory rates for the country in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
are domiciled (i.e., PRC) to the tax expense at effective

tax rates is as follows:

31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=1+—HItEE

11. 8% )

ERARBATG MBS R A IRA R A A
REBo M B AR M ERR (AR E) #E
EREEZERVRAENR A HAEE

m

Group
KEE
2012 2011
—E-=fF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AR®ET T
Profit before tax AT A 76,515 328,266
Applicable tax rate REFEHEBRE
of the Group 25% 25%
Tax at the applicable tax rate {&ERH R EHFHE 19,129 82,067
Tax concession for ATHBARMNBBER
certain subsidiaries (37,307) (45,898)
Income not subject to tax DEFRIMA (2,501) (4,188)
Expenses not deductible EIEi kb
for tax 10,715 9,979
Tax losses not recognised RIERTIBEE 14,817 2,686
Tax charge at EASEERMETENTIR
the Group’s effective rate i 4,853 44,646

BLERERARAT | —T - —F4%
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31 December 2012

BE-_ZT——H+-_A=1+—HItFEE

12. Profit Attributable to Owners of

13.

the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
parent for the year ended 31 December 2012 includes a
profit of RMB680,000 (2011: a loss of RMB40,534,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements

12. 8D AHEE AES

=gl

BHE-_ZT——F+-A=+—HILFE"
NEEA ANELGRAET B EARYEE80,000
T(ZE——%F : B8 AK%40,534,0007T )
Ba A ERAR R BERERELEE (M

of the Company (note 32(p)). 32(b)) °
Dividends 13.lR 2
2012 2011
—F-=F —F—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
Interim — 1.43 HK cents HRHR — SRR 1.437%8 4L
(2011: 3.3 HK cents) (Z=——%F : 3.38M)
per share 15,503 35,953
Special dividend BRI 8 — & 3.57 41l
- 3.57 HK cents (Z2—F : |)
(2011 nil) per share 38,703 -
Final — Nil R — 4=
(2011: 1.6 HK cents) (ZZ—F 1.6
per share - 21,332
54,206 57,285
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14. Earnings Per Share Attributable

to Ordinary Equity Holders of
the Company

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,335,299,269
(2011: 1,3383,334,000) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is
the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on
the deemed exercise of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per
share are based on:

31 December 2012

BE-2——51-A={—BLEE
ARREEEERBEARE
LERER

EREAXBANNESEDNZALNA LT BEER
REAEBRGRNREFAND EITRMDMNE
F 15 #1,335,299,2600%( = T — — F:
1,333,334,0000% ) I B E A H

BREERNSBIRARR L BEES Hﬁ
ABRIESENREEFE - A EMANEER
IEFEBIEFADRTRMEE (BAES
BEXBAMAERR)  ARBERESE
RETEZFABZENEERL LBRE
BIEIE TRITE BRI -

AEEBREANEERNNKEDT

2012 2011
—E—CF —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
Earnings B F ARMT T AR®ET T
Profit attributable to ordinary ARE “hﬂx%ﬂ‘&
equity holders of the BERMN AR
Company, used in the %@%E%ﬁ/\
basic and diluted earnings FEMR T
per share 71,662 283,620

—FFER

BIEBEAERAT | —2—
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31 December 2012
HE-ZT——F+-A=+—HILFE

14. Earnings Per Share Attributable
to Ordinary Equity Holders of

the Com pany (continued)

Shares

iy

—ki

4.7
18

A

520

ERESEEARE
EH =)
Number Number
of shares of shares
R EE D EE
2012 2011
—E-C—F —F—%

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue
during the year used in the
basic earnings per share
calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted
average number of ordinary
shares: Share options

RRFTESRERET
ZFERDETEBK
INFEF 8L

BEYE -EBRKR
TR : FEARAE

1,355,299,269 1,333,334,000

9,399,950 24,899,484

1,344,699,219 1,358,233,484




Notes to the Financial Statements Bt &M

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-A=1+—HItEE

15. 9% - MERRE

Group
A5H
Tooling
Plant and Office Motor and Construction
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BT HEREE HOERE AE  IRR®RE W HRIR it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
AR  ARETT ARETT ARETR  ARETR AR%Tn  ARETR
Cost: A
M 31 December 2011 and R -F——%
1 January 2012 TZA=t-Rk
ZE3-ZE-R-A 263,632 515,312 23,694 23,698 109,424 503,939 1439,699
Additions R 56,146 109,783 1,170 4120 13,11 504,762 689,152
Transfers a5 173457 118453 3 - 200 (292,144) -
Disposals RE - (3.422) (024) (564) (913) - (5,123)
Exchange realignment EnRE 16 - - - - - 16
At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZF
+-A=t-H 493,251 740,126 24,672 21,254 121,884 716,557 2,123,744
Acoumulated depreciation  ZENERA(E :
and impairment:
At 31 December 2011 RZE-—-&
and 1 January 2012 TZA=+-HEk
ZZ-2%-R-H (36,422)  (125,224) (10,839) (9.477) (28,056) - (210,018)
Depreciation charge EREL
for the year (17,017) (62,122) (4,180) (3,712) (20,928) - (97,959
Disposals RE - 749 10 238 495 - 1,592
Exchange realignment Ei#E (17) - - - - = (17)
At 31 December 2012 RZF-ZF
+-A=t-H (63,456)  (176,597) (14,909) (12,951) (48,489) - (306,402
Net carrying amount: REFE -
At 31 December 2012 RZB-Z%
+-A=t-H 439,795 563,529 9,763 14,303 73,395 716557 1,817,342

—FFER

BrEBREMERAR | =2 —

129



31 December 2012
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment

15.93% - BMERRZRE @

Notes to the Financial Statements i RFRHI s

(continued)
Group
o A5E
§ Tooling
§ Plant and Office Motor and Construction
% Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  equipment in progress Total
g BT HEREE BOERB RE  IERRE W REIE &3t
:f RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
g ARETT  ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETR
E
-
) Cost: KA
2 A 3! December 2010and ~ H=%-%
ks 1 January 2011 tZA=+-8k
S “F-5-f-B 23389 258,582 15,752 15,303 45,423 112,179 670,628
'% Additions P 25,262 192,171 7,362 8,918 63,971 479,961 777,645
E Transfers 1 15,653 65,415 623 774 510 (82,975) -
= Disposals RE - (656) W)  (1.297) o) BA0) [T
§ Exchange realgnment )82 672) - ) . : (126) 79%)
At 31 December 2011 RIE——%
tZh=1-H 263,632 515,312 23,694 23,698 109,424 503939 1,439,699
Accumulated depreciation ZRMEREE:
and impairment:
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-%F
and 1 January 2011 TZA=+-HEk
“F——F-F-0 (263%0) (93,905) (7,115) 6,754 (15,545) = (149,699
Depreciation charge ERERH
for the year 10079)  (1724)  (B7%3)  (B52)  (128%9) - g8
Disposals RE = 405 9 799 318 = 1,531
Exchange realignment BHA% 37 - - - - - 37
At 31 December 2011 RZT——F%
+-B=+-R 06422)  (15224)  [(108%9)  ©4TT)  (28056) - pI00i8)
Net carrying amount: HEFE -
At 31 December 2011 RZT——F
TZA=1-H 227,210 390,088 12,855 1421 81,308 503,939 1,229,681
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15.

16.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R Tz

Property, Plant and Equipment 15.

(continued)

At 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s
buildings and machinery with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB 488,007,000 (2011:
RMB292,762,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details of
pledged assets, please refer to note 33.

Prepaid Land Lease Payments 16.

31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=1+—HItEE

ME - BMENKE@

R-TE——F+-_A=+—H A£EEH
FEY ARE488,007,000t( = F ——F :
AR¥292,762,00070) 2 & THE R #EE
HIFEARNEEER —RRTBEZER -
BEREEFIEHR2HMMEESS -

AN L E R

Group

rEH
2012 2011
—EB-CF —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥TTT

At cost: B :
At beginning of year REH] 83,007 64,006
Additions AR - 19,001
At end of year RER 83,007 83,007
Accumulated amortisation: REHEN
At beginning of year REH] 6,600 5,175
Charge for the year FAZH 1,331 1,425
At end of year RER 7,931 6,600
Net book amount: BRENEE
At end of year RER 75,076 76,407
Less: Current portion included & : ZIAFERFUE « 7] &

in prepayments, N E At fE U IR

deposits and other #IBNEREL 75 (B 5E22)

receivables (note 22) (1,686) (1,338)

73,390 75,069

BLERERARAT | —T - —F4%
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31 December 2012
BE-_FT —_F+t-A=1+—"HLEFE

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and
is held under a long term lease.

At 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s prepaid
land lease payments with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB34,400,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB10,696,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 33).

At 31 December 2012, the Group has not obtained
certificates of the right of using from the relevant
PRC government authorities for certain lands with a
carrying amount of RMB14,157,000 at 31 December
2012 (2011: RMB14,456,000). Management is in the
process of obtaining these certificates.

HHEEIMOERPEARE . B—EBKHAME
#] o

R-ZB——FE+-A=+—08 x&E£EET
A L EFREREE 4 A R 34,400,000
T ZZE——F+_A=+—H: AR
10,696,0007T ) B B4R IRITIERER - FIRTT
MAEER N RE (H:E33) -

R-ZB——FE+-A=+—08 " A&EBEHX
MR _E——F+_-_A=+—HEEEA
AR®14,157,000c( ZF ——F : ARM
14,456,0007T) W& T L1115 o Bl A8 B AT
PR REAEE -  BIEEILEFERNA R
ERARER -



17. Intangible Assets

Notes to the Financial Statements B #&3R s

=

17. 8B EE

31 December 2012
BT —F+_A=+—HILFE

Group
rEH
Computer Development
software costs Total
B E MG 9N HBEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT ARETT
Cost: R
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F—H—H 4,324 - 4,324
Additions R 1,168 25,031 26,199
At 1 January 2012 R-_E——F—H—H 5,492 25,031 30,5283
Additions N 1,155 35,424 36,579
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-_A=+—H 6,647 60,455 67,102
Accumulated amortisation: RiEEEY
At 1 January 2011 RZZE——F—H—H (923) - (923)
Charge for the year FRZ M (469) - (469)
At 1 January 2012 W-Z——%—F—H (1,392) - (1,392)
Charge for the year FRZ M (800) (3,929) (4,729)
At 31 December 2012 R-T——F+=-A=+—8 (2,192) (3,929) (6,121)
Net book amount: BRENFE
At 31 December 2011 R—E——F+=-_A=+—H 4,100 25,031 29,131
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-_A=+—H 4,455 56,526 60,981

—FFR

BrEBEMERAT | —T—
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31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=+—HItFE

18. Investments in Subsidiaries

18. R B A RNKRE

Company
KA F]

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Unlisted shares, at cost IE LTI - AR 338,510 337,830
Advances to subsidiaries BB H B AT 1,263,848 1,277,639
1,602,358 1,615,469

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are listed in
note 4 above.

The amounts advanced to the subsidiaries included in

the investments in subsidiaries above are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

19. Investments in Associates

TEMBRARNFBER EXHF427 -

SIS B2 BB R R SRR RO MY B A Rl
& JYEER - B MEREEERY -

19. REEE R RN E

Group
AEH
2012 2011
—F-=F —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREF T
Share of net assets JE(REE A 12,224 5,442
12,224 5,442
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31 December 2012
BE—_T——F+_-_A=+—HItFE

19. Investments in Associates 19. REtE A RINRE =)
(continued)
Particulars of the principal associates are as follows: TEBMERANFBAT
e
Percentage of ﬁ
ownership ‘||
Particulars Place of interest iy
of issued incorporation/ attributable to ‘_I
Name shares held registration the Group Principal activities T
AEBEL AR =
78 FEERTROHE BRI/ SMteE Btk TEEK g
®
#
MSB Manufacturing Ordinary shares Malaysia 40% Assembling and
Sdn.Bhd.* of RM | each S Viik trading of batteries B
HREEIFTH HEREESE
=Rl
LEOCH ACCUPOWER  Ordinary shares Malaysia 40% Assembling and
(M) SDN. BHD.* of RM | each 5P it trading of batteries
FIREE1H TR HEREESES
=Rl
& Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another * I IEHE A Lok & 5T AP E RT3 Lok & 5HED
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network. BRI EME B FHEZ -
The Group’s shareholdings in the associates are held AEBRAZEMNBARTHE S AR FRE
through wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. A% °
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31 December 2012
BE-_ZT——H#+-A=+—HItFE

19. Investments in Associates 19. REE&E N R VIR E &)
(continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TREABZEAKEBREARNEERA
information of the Group’s associates extracted from R EE R E -

their management accounts or financial statements:

2012 2011
—F-=F —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETT

Assets BE 47,645 19,877
Liabilities afE 16,793 10,989
Revenues ek 29,052 30,862
(Losses) Profits (E518)% F (748) 408
20. Inventories 20.17&
Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E-——F —F——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AREBTIT

Raw materials R 156,936 129,895
Work in progress EEMm 376,634 633,800
Finished goods BURY fh 313,524 227,267

847,094 990,962
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31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-A=1+—HItEE

21.EZBRUREREREE

21. Trade and Bills Receivables

Group
rEH
2012 2011 G
—E——F T4 ﬁ
RMB’000 RMB’000 ‘||
AR%T AREET T [
I
Trade receivables B Z EEIE 933,809 789,445 g
Bills receivable FEW ZE & 39,623 36,569 B
Less: Impairment provision & : BEREME (15,507) (7,780) g
il
957,925 818,234
i
Less: Non-current portion B IEBNHEAEE D (18,178) (14,119
939,747 804,119

AEBMEFETTIRMNEER SUBF
MEEHE BT - & TEFPARRANAIK
RIEFBEL DMK - REBESKERMIR
BEE R EUGRIEE FFRARIE S - WHRYE
RZEREF - UWREEERR - AEBHS
HEEEe THEROPRNNEHSR - BH
JEUW K IB AR A R #26,277,0000T0( = F — —
F : AR%30,433,0007T) G H (= AR R
R - AR¥27,833,000L(ZF——%F : AR
#24,208,0007T ) Al X A BHRR © toh -

The Group grants different credit periods to customers.
The credit period of individual customers is considered
on a case-by-case basis. Certain customers are
required to make partial payment before or upon
delivery. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and closely monitors them
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. Trade receivables of
RMB26,277,000 (2011: RMB30,433,000) were under
short term credit insurance and RMB27,833,000 (2011:
RMB24,208,000) under letters of credit. Besides that, AEEMERZSEHKFTECMNERBRE
the Group does not hold any collateral or other credit BMEAMEERAERE - B2 ERUGRIE AT
enhancements over these balances. Trade receivables e

are non-interest-bearing.
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31 December 2012
BE—_ZT——H+-_A=1+—HItFEE

21. Trade and Bills Receivables

(continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had pledged
certain trade and bills receivables amounting to
RMB67,185,000 (2011: RMB75,582,000) to banks
with recourse in exchange for cash. The proceeds
from pledging the trade and bills receivables of
RMB52,134,000 (2011: RMB51,003,000) were
accounted for as collateralised bank advances until
the bills were collected or the Group made good of
any losses incurred by the banks (note 27).

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as
at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 based

on the invoice date, net of provisions, is as follows:

Outstanding balances with ages:

21.

Notes to the Financial Statements B &R FRHisE

Z BWREARERRE

/

w R

RZE——F+-_A=+—8 A£EHEE
TERETEEERNE HEWKRIERE
WEE - 58 A ARM67,185000m( =&
—— & AR#¥75,582,0007T) 0 AR
& - HMAEZRUNFEREREEMEKE
AR¥52,134,000t( ZZE——F : AR
51,003,0007T) DAEREIRRITRZR - EE
ZEFREBERNAEBRBAERITELENT
& & LE (M1EE27) -

TRE#EIRZE—FF+=—A=+—HE=
E——F+-A=+—BESERZERE
WEERIEEZH CRERE) NERER DT

FRERTEA TEE M) RIEE AR

Group

TEE
2012 2011
—F-=F —F—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Within 90 days 90H 703,044 625,468
91 to 180 days 91£180H 191,659 147,822
181 to 365 days 181£2365H 23,251 29,441
1 1o 2 years 1226F 35,699 11,148
Over 2 years 2F A E 4,272 4,355
957,925 818,234
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31 December 2012
BE-_T——F+_-_A=+—HItFE

21. Trade and Bills Receivables 21.EZBURIERERRE
(continued) (4&)
Movements in the provision for impairment of trade B SRR TERERENEBHI AT

receivables are as follows:

Group

rEH
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥ETTT

At 1 January Bn—H—H 7,780 9,350
Impairment losses WRBEBE (HE7)

recognised (note 7) 8,890 3,305
Amount written off as TERR LU B FIB MR S 58

uncollectible - (184)
Impairment losses reversed — BEIGEEE (FizE7)

(note 7) (1,163) (4,691)
At 31 December ®+=—A=+—A~ 15,507 7,780
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade L8 S ENFIERERERFERERER
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade 5 e GRIE B 85 AR #515,507,0007 ( = —
receivables of RMB15,507,000 (2011: RMB7,780,000) —F : AR#7,780,0007T) @ B{E I REE
with a carrying amount before provision of RMB B ARME25,480,000L (ZFE——F : ARK
25,480,000 (2011: RMB16,096,000). 16,096,0007T) °
The above provision for impairment of trade receivables B 5 W TE A R (B B 4 B PR R B R Y
relates to individual customers that were in financial EREF B - W EEKEIATE AU
difficulties and the receivables that are not expected B - WEFL 2 FEEE -
to be recoverable. These balances were fully provided
for.

The bills receivable are due to mature within 180 days EREBR_FT——F+_A=+—HiEs
from 31 December 2012. 180H A EIHA ©

—FFR
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31 December 2012
BE—_ZT——H+-_A=1+—HItFEE

21. Trade and Bills Receivables

(continued)

An analysis of trade and bills receivables that were not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

21.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#&# R

Z BWRIEARERRE

R

TS LR BEN B 5 8 WA & E K
EENMT

Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AR®ET T
Neither past due nor impaired N8Rt TR E 910,026 813,879
Past due within 3 months BB = E A
but not impaired BRRE 47,899 -
Past due over 1 year but BEER—FENRE
not impaired - 4,355
957,925 818,234

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors believe that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

The carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables
pledged as security for interest-bearing bank loans
granted to the Group amounted to RMB67,185,000
as at 31 December 2012 (2011: RMB75,582,000)
(note 33).

AR I8 H 7T AR R B B FE MR IR S e B AR 4
R ZREP °

ERMEREENEYRIALES ZERE
BARIRFTCHENBILEFEH - NE
EERUBBAEH NAERDARA A2 B
B REEELR  ESHELELBHZ
ERMIFHIRERE -

R_E——F+-_A=+—8 BEFEA
REEMEFERITERERZE SRR
BEREREENEREERAR67,185,000
T(ZE——F : AR¥75,582,0007T) (it
33) °
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31 December 2012

BE_ZT——#+-_A=1+—HItEE

22.Prepayments, Deposits and 22 FARIE ~ A& R HMFE
Other Receivables W FRIE
Group Company
A5E VNN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g--F —F—F —F--F —FF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT ARBT AR®EFT
Prepayments SEUNE Q] 91,933 130,419 - =
Prepaid land lease JEff T E K
payments (note 16) (FFzE16) 1,686 1,338 - =
Interest receivables FE R 2 12,453 9,094 12,267 9,094
Deposits and HEEY
other receivables e FRIR 24,456 18,583 - =
130,528 159,434 12,267 9,094
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. L EEW e R E o Ll AR EE
The financial assets included in the above balances B & BhE 2= B N0 M O B R G0 AR B FE WGRRIR
relate to receivables for which there was no recent B -

history of default.

—FFR
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31 December 2012
BE—_ZT——H#+-_A=+—HItFE

23.Cash and Bank Balances and 23.%%&@&?‘?%@%1«1&%%

Time Deposits EEN
Group Company
X&E VNG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F--F —F—F —F--F —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREFTT ARETR ARETT
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTAER 52,893 120,185 390 249
Time deposits TEHATFR 960,923 622,177 559,650 622,177
1,013,816 742,362 560,040 622,426
Less: Pledged for interest-bearing &, : EFtaT A
bank borrowings RITEEEA (620,130) (591,377) (559,650) (591,377
Pledged for bills payable EREMAEEER  (278,380) (16,608) - -
Pledged for letters of credit & i (= A& K 1 (32,413) (32,506) - -
Time deposits with terms A3 ME A HY
over 3 months TR - (28,500) - (28,500)
(930,923) (668,991) (559,650) (619,877)
Cash and cash equivalents B RIRESZEEY 82,893 73,371 390 2,549
Denominated in RMB AAREEEE 977,901 726,065 559,663 622,230
Denominated in US$ LAZETTEHE 12,106 10,833 83 13
Denominated in HK$ LU TTEHE 21,226 1,778 294 183
Denominated in EUR LA TEHE 3 3,104 - =
Denominated in INR LAENZE L EHE 1,486 = = =
Denominated in SG$ LA N3 JTatE 1,094 582 - -
1,013,816 742,362 560,040 622,426




Notes to the Financial Statements Bt ¥R Tz

23.Cash and Bank Balances and

Time Deposits (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to RMB977,901,000 (2011: RMB726,065,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day to 34 months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective rates.

The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

24. Trade and Bills Payables

31 December 2012
BE-_T——F+_-_A=+—HItFE

zaﬁgﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁuﬁiﬁ

'T-?— TFA (&)

RBERR AEBUARESENRE R
RITA R E ARKQI77,901,000T( = F ——
&F . AR#726,065,0007T) © A REAE
B EBEINEE - AT - AR IB BISNE B Hil 15
PIRAEE SERMEEERE  AEEE
HEFBRERITH AR ZIREINE L E
FTONE ST o

BRBITHRSEE B RIERENLH
BEBDAE  RHERTTA—KE=T
MEASBHARAETAEENNHRLE
=) RIRE B FIERRAS -

$P1T 0 RN IF 3D I7 AT B A 4 R S48
BB (B RTT -

24 BEZBRNREARENRE

Group
TEE
2012 2011
—F-=-F —F—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
Trade payables B SN RIR 269,799 216,174
Bills payable NS 737,136 331,685
1,006,935 547,859

—FFR
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31 December 2012
BE-_ZT——H#+-_A=+—HItFE

24. Trade and Bills Payables (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

A B RNFIERENERE»

RBERR  BHRAFRARBNRERZE
SZRHERE DT

Group

AEm
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ET T

Within 90 days 90H X 300,133 329,703
91 to 180 days 91£180H 673,507 195,765
181 to 365 days 181%365H 14,686 14,247
1 to 2 years 1226 11,753 1,893
2 to 3 years 2FE3F 795 955
Over 3 years BRI F 6,061 5,296

1,006,935 547,859

Pledged assets for bills payable are listed in note 33
below.

FENRIRH B EER T X332 °



25.0Other Payables and Accruals

20.
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31 December 2012

BE_ZT——H#+-_A=1+—HItEE

25 HittESRE R EFTE A

Group Company
PN VNN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-CF —ET——F —E-CF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETTT
Payables for purchase of BEWE  BFE
items of property, plant MEBEER
and equipment FES5RIE 49,937 46,508 - =
Advances from customers EREIEMNH 60,455 63,156 - =
Accrued expenses AR 25,689 23,640 - 392
Accrued payroll FEFTTE 34,438 25,696 - =
Deferred government grants BT R 28,397 28,787 - -
Provision for social insurance R KRR
and retirement benefits & FI| B 55,265 48,242 -
Others Hith 16,619 10,615 47 3
270,800 046,644 47 395
Balances With Related 26.ERAE N R ER
Companies
Amounts due from related parties FEURAE A L HOFIA
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E--F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
Shanghai Donmin FERMEBHEERAA
Vehicle Co., Ltd. - 5,502
Shenzhen Marshell Power YIS AR B R A A
Supply Co., Ltd. 658 -
Shenzhen Marxon Power YT BRI EREMARA A
Supply Co., Ltd. 5,682 5,524
MSB Manufacturing Sdn. Bhd. MSB Manufacturing Sdn.Bhd. 1,022 -
Guangdong Marshell Electric EBRIEFAHEBRIILER A F
Vehicle Co., Ltd. - 2,124
7,362 13,150

—FFR
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31 December 2012
BE—_ZT——H+-_A=1+—HItFEE

26.Balances With Related

26. SRR E N T W& ek

Companies
Amounts due to related parties FERTRRE A THIFRIE
Group
TEE
2012 2011
—F-=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTT
Dongguan Leoch REETEREGAERAT
Power Supply Co., Ltd. - 13
Shanghai Donmin FERMEBEERAA
Vehicle Co., Ltd. 49 -
Guangdong Marshell BRIGEAREB R AR AT
Electric Vehicle Co., Ltd. 13,187 -
Shenzhen Marshell Green FIPEEREREAR AR
Power Co., Ltd. 195 5,898
Shenzhen Marshell Power AINTIEFE R R AR AR
Supply Co., Ltd. - 22
13,431 5,933

All balances in the year ended 31 December 2012
are trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment. The related companies
other than MSB Manufacturing Sdn.Bhd. are controlled
by Mr. Dong Li, a director and controlling shareholder
of the Company. MSB Manufacturing Sdn.Bhd. is
an associate of the Group, the detail information is
disclosed in note 19.

The details of the transactions with related parties are
disclosed in note 36.

HE-_T——-—F+-_A=+—HLFE
WA EZHBRERBESMHE  BER &£
ERERTEENR - ZFHWELRQFA(MSB
Manufacturing Sdn.Bhd.Bx 4h ) B & 2
AEERERBRREESTLEET - MSB
Manufacturing Sdn.Bhd. 2 7 £ & & B & A

A - AR BN -

ERREE A TR R B IER M ES6H R
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27. Interest-bearing Bank
Borrowings

31 December 2012
BHE-_ZT——F+_A=+—HBILEE

27 st EERTREE

Group
EH
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
Maturity RMB’000 Maturity RMB’000
Eei AR¥T FIHA ARETIT
Current BN EA
Interest-bearing bank ATEIRITEE -
borrowings, secured B 2013 1,155,981 2012 689,932
Collateralised bank BEIRRIT
advances, secured B3 B 2013 52,134 2012 51,003
1,208,115 740,935
Non-current JEENHA
Interest-bearing bank FFERITEE
borrowings, secured B 2014-2020 186,433 2013 330,691
186,433 330,691
Total FEE 1,394,548 1,071,626
Denominated in RMB AR E 683,695 512,878
Denominated in US$ LAZETTEHE 309,592 371,498
Denominated in HK$ LB TTEHE 379,147 187,250
Denominated in SG$ LA I LA 1,131 -
Denominated in EUR LARRTETHE 20,983 =
1,394,548 1,071,626
Interest rates per annum: FEH=E 1.00% to 1.00% to
7.84% 7.90%

—FFR
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31 December 2012
BE—_ZT——H+-_A=1+—HItFEE

. a Im e
27. Interest-bearing Bank 27 sTEBRITEE =
Borrowings (continued)
Company
EAF
2012 2011
—E-CF —2——F
Maturity RMB’000 Maturity RMB’000
) AR®T T E) ARETTT
Current BER
Interest-bearing bank STERITEE -
borrowings, secured B 2013 362,473 2012 203,441
Non-current JERNEA
Interest-bearing bank STEIRITEE
borrowings, secured B 2014 156,068 2013 330,691
Total st 518,541 534,132
Denominated in US$ LAZETTEHE 200,131 354,178
Denominated in HK$ LA TTEHE 318,410 179,954
518,541 534,132
Interest rates per annum: FHE - 1.00% to 1.00% to
2.40% 1.75%
The Group’s secured bank borrowings are secured by REEMERFRITERA TAIAR (EHE A
the following pledge or guarantees: SHER ¢
()  Pledge of the Group’s assets with a total value () ARBRITEEFEFRNEEEARE
of RMB1,209,722,000 (31 December 2011: 1,209,722,0007c( =T ——F+— A
RMB970,417,000) for the bank borrowings as =+—H: AR¥970,417,0007T ) &
disclosed in note 33. NEEEERH I35 o
(i)  Cross guarantees executed by companies within (i) AEBARDRRITHELER -
the Group.
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27. Interest-bearing Bank
Borrowings (continued)

31 December 2012
BHE-_ZT——F+_A=+—HBILEE

27 5T ER1TEE »)

The balance is analysed as follows: BRI -
Group Company
PN | VNN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-CF 25 —E--F 5
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFTT ARETR ARETT
Bank loans and advances AEEMIRTT
repayable: ERREK
Within one year —FR 1,208,115 740,935 362,473 203,441
In the second year 54 156,068 330,691 156,068 330,691
In the third to fifth years, inclusive B =FZ=FRHF 9,565 = - =
BIEEEMF
Beyond five years REFE 20,800 = - =
1,394,548 1,071,626 518,541 534,132

BrEBREMERAR | —T——FF%
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31 December 2012

BE—_ZT——H#+-_A=+—HItFE

28.Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Depreciation

and

Provision for  impairment
impairment  of property,
of trade plant and
receivables  equipment
BARYEE W% BER
RERG REFERAE
RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARNTR

28 IEFER IH

TRASFRELERAEERABNEFER

ELEBIREE

Group
]

Equipment
invested in

a subsidiary
with revalued
amount
SREEREY
REFHE
DRMRE
RMB’000

Tax losses

HEER
RMB'000

Unused
tax credit

RER
HEER
RMB'000

Others

S
RMB'000

Total

EH)
RMB'000

ARBTR ARETR ARBT ARBTRT ARBTR

Gross deferred tax R-——F-A—-H

assets at 1 January 2011 EEHAEELE 49 1,109 - - - 199 1,801
Deferred tax credited EREBRRNIA

to proft or loss during the year  BYEFTHA

(note 11) (M11) 261 1,317 3,300 - - 1,936 6,814
Gross deferred tax assets at R-E——F+-F=1-H

31 December 2011 and R=Z-Z%-F-Af

1 January 2012 ERHEEEEE 754 2426 3,300 = = 2135 8,615
Deferred tax credited EREBRRMIA

to proft or loss during the MEEHE (F11)

year [note 1) 1,863 4513 18319 6,201 2811 5706 3948
Gross deferred tax assets R_E-—#+-f=t

at 31 December 2012 —ANERHEEELE 2617 6,939 21,619 6,201 2811 7,881 48,068
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31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=1+—HItEE

28.Deferred Tax (continued) 28. IEAEFLIE ()

Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE
Group e
rEH ﬁ
Reversal of Capitalised I
welfare interest &L"
payables expense Total H
2EAR{LH |E
B EEASER FMEMEX o $
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 E
AR%T AR%T R AR%T ﬁ
Gross deferred tax liabilities W-_ZT——F—f—H =
at 1 January 2011 ELEHIRBERE 211 = 211 B
Deferred tax charged (credited) FREIBZKXF IR
to profit or loss during (5t A\ By IEERL 18
the year (note 11) (PfFEE11) (211) 4,209 3,998
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE——F+=ZA=+—8
at 31 December 2011 and ;=T ——F—H—HBH
1 January 2012 BRI AERE - 4,209 4,209
Deferred tax charged FREEmR PR
to profit or loss during REEERIIE (PFFE11)
the year (note 11) - 4,730 4,730
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE——F+_H=+—H
at 31 December 2012 FEER BB B4R = 8,939 8,939

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong and
Mainland China of RMB60,928,000 (2011: nil) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making for some time.

At 31 December 2012, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, these
subsidiaries will not distribute such earnings as of 31
December 2012 in the foreseeable future and therefore,
no deferred tax has been provided thereof.

AEERBEERTRHEEHRBEBHERERARE
60,928,0007T( = F ——4% : &) - &% IAEA
EREARN IR EE BB R 8RR ER
Bafl e AR ZEBENEE —REBANH
BARIFTESL  WAEMLERELETHIBE
Eo

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H TERLE
& 75 7 B K e 3% 57 O BT B A B A oK BB S &R R
(M@%ﬁhﬁﬂmﬁﬁmﬁh% SRR
BLERIE - EERA ZEMBRAREAR
BRI EIRBEE-_E——F+=_A=+—
BRAEF - ARt R BIEETRIE -
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31 December 2012
BE—_ZT——H#+-_A=+—HItFE

29.Share Capital 29. A<
2012 2011
—Eg2—= —T—F
Authorised: ETE
10,000,000,000 ordinary 10,000,000,0000% &% EE
shares of HK$0.1 each 0 1B ITHEER (F&T)
(HK$’000) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR
1,335,637,000 1,335,637,00008 (=ZF——4%F :
(2011: 1,333,334,000) 1,333,334,0000%) &AXEEO.1
ordinary shares of BreLmk (F8T)
HK$0.1 each (HK$’000) 133,564 133,333
Equivalent to RMB’000 HERARETT 114,455 114,267

During the year, the movements in authorised and

issued share capital were as follows:

Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each

FAORERBBITRAZESHIOT

Nominal value of

FREE0.10E TH ordinary shares
LERYE LERYHEE
HK$’000 RMB’000
BETT ARETR
Authorised: JERE
As at 31 December 2011 and 2012 RZE—FK
—T——H#+-A=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 858,008
Issued: B 217
As at 31 December 2011 R-_Z——F+-_A=+—H
and 1 January 2012 E—_ZE——F—HF—H 1,333,334,000 133,333 114,267
Share options exercised FREITERERE
during the year (i) 2,303,000 231 188
As at 31 December 2012 W_ZE——F+—-_B=+—H 1,335,637,000 133,564 114,455




The subscription rights attaching to 2,303,000
share options were exercised at the subscription
price of RMBO0.33 per share, resulting in the
issue of 2,303,000 shares of RMBO0.33 each for
a total cash consideration, before expenses, of
RMB766,000. An amount of RMB2,294,000 was
transferred from the share option reserve to the
share premium account upon the exercise of the
share options.

The Company operates a pre-IPO share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible persons who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible persons of
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme include the
Company’s directors and other employees of
the Group. The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
became effective on 1 June 2010 and unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, approved by written resolutions of
the Company passed on 25 May 2010, are as
follows:

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
available to the directors and employees
(whether full time or part time) of any
member of the Group.

31 December 2012
BE-FT —_F+t-A=1+—"HLFE

2,303,00017 i i #E BE If MO SR BB HEE 1%
BRARMKO0.33TTHRBEITE -
% 172,303,0008% & X M B A R #50.33
TR - RIKREERINEESR
BH ARY766,0007 - B EEITE
% AR#2,2094,0007 81 B B A% A 4
BEEERMDRERRA -

RRBELEE IR R 3% E AR 8
(TERARBEMBRESS]) &
MHARENKNEEFLERNAE
RATIRHERMES - ERRFAEE
AR BN A ERALBEARA
MEZRASEMNEMBES - BRRH
BERBREAEN T —TFR A
AAR - BRIERITREHIERTIN - TR
Mz AE—BEERTF -

EPANGE S FIE-E- T [ ES-XE T
REARNAR-_ZE-—TFAA_+HBR
BREEDRZRALE - REEMT ¢

BRARRERBRER 8 iR
HETIAREEERKERFNES
KRR (TmEBsR) -

BrEBREMBRAR | — S ——F£H
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BE-_FT —_F+t-A=1+—"HLEFE

The maximum number of the shares in
respect of which options may be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be 60,000,000 shares representing
approximately 4.5% of the total issued share
capital of the Company immediately after
completion of the global offering, taking
no account of the exercise of the over-
allotment option.

The subscription price in respect of each
share under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is determined by the board of
directors at its discretion and set out in
the relevant offer letters provided that it
should not be less than the nominal value
of the shares.

After 28 October 2010, no further options
will be offered or granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme but in other respects
the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any options granted prior
thereto or otherwise as may be required
in accordance with the provisions of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, and options
which are granted on or before 28 October
2010 may continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue.

W RARE B IR AR E A B R
FHEITRER h R R IR D BB
= BR # /60,000,0004% i f5 - 48
ERARANREBEREETHK
B(GRATEERERE)NE %
1T AN 4RERAI4.5% ©

BRAMESHERESAEET
BEBRNNRABENHESTER
HEHMBERET  AHNEHEED
KR BERSEOREO N @
(1=00

R-ZB-TF+HA-+N\RA%"
TEeBREARAMEENER
Rt E B ERR B E M EMERK
- BEBERAFEE R BRES
BN EEM T ERAE TR
MAMIER - ABE It 2 BT &% &
EAE RN TR EE
IR 535 A AR T 8 A 15 XX
REMBTAE MR_FT—F
FTAZTNBRZAIREOE
Bt - R RIR R F R BT IR
HEE T AT -
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31 December 2012
BE-_T——F+_-_A=+—HItFE

30.Share Option Schemes (ontinved) ~ 30. BB FEST &l )

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (1) BX MBS BRETS

(continued) (&)

e

(e) Exercise period and vesting period (e) TTIERIR &/B A ﬁ

N

|

Options granted on 1 June 2010 under the BEE XA AHZERBIRESTE oy

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme can only be R-ZE—ZEXA—BRENE ‘_l

exercised in the following manner: A& AR LA R 75 20 F BATT(E I3

«

Maximum percentage %

Exercise period of options exercisable Vesting period ﬁ

T AIFTEERENESEIL HES P

_H

i

Anytime during the 10 years after
the second anniversary of the
date of offer of the options
(the “Offer Date”)

REREZLHRBM(TZLHRE])
B IR FE +F REAIRE

Anytime during the 9 years after
the third anniversary of the
Offer Date

REZLHBBNE=RAFREIE
(R B P

Anytime during the 8 years after
the fourth anniversary of the
Offer Date

REXDBHNFEMBERN\FA
L fr 5

Anytime during the 7 years after
the fifth anniversary of the
Offer Date

REXNBRNERBFEEFAR
L fr 5

25% of the total number of
options granted

ER B BREARH25%

25% of the total number of

options granted

ER B BRELRH25%

25% of the total number of

options granted

ER L BREARH25%

25% of the total number of

options granted

ER B BREARH25%

Up to the date immediately before
the second anniversary of the
Offer Date

BEERERENBHNE _BFA
EAMLE

Up to the date immediately before
the third anniversary of the
Offer Date
EEREZNABENE =BT
EHARILE

Up to the date immediately before
the fourth anniversary of the
Offer Date

BEEEEZORABNEMWBFR
EHARILE

Up to the date immediately before
the fifth anniversary of the
Offer Date
EEREZNABENERBEFA
EHERIE
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31 December 2012
BE—_ZT——H+-_A=1+—HItFEE

30.Share Option Schemes (ontinved) ~ 30. BB FEST &l )

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (1) BXABEESERESTS
(continued) (#&)
(e) Exercise period and vesting period (@
(continued)
Options granted on 14 October 2010 under BEE N ABEEERERER 2
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme can only R-ZT—ZTE+A+MAEEN
be exercised in the following manner: IR AIRA T AR T UAITE

Maximum percentage

Exercise period of options exercisable Vesting period

1TEH AFiTEERENESEIL HEH

Anytime during the 10 years after 1/3 of the total number of Up to the date immediately before
the first anniversary of the options granted the first anniversary of the
Offer Date Offer Date

RNEHNBRNE—BFETER EREERERE1/3 EZEEZOAMNE AT
(e CIS| EARILE

Anytime during the 9 years after 1/3 of the total number of Up to the date immediately before
the second anniversary of the options granted the second anniversary of the
Offer Date Offer Date

RENBHNE _BFERAERA ER L ERERZN1/3 BEEZERZHAHNE AT
(e CIS| EARILE

Anytime during the 8 years after 1/3 of the total number of Up to the date immediately before
the third anniversary of the options granted the third anniversary of the
Offer Date Offer Date

RELHBBNE=BER\FA EREERERE1/3 EZEEZNAMNE=RAFA]
(e CIS| EARILE

(f)  Exercise of options (9

Any exercise of an option granted under the TERE & XA Ea B

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is subject to FTEIR MR E AT R AR A

conditions as may be specified in the offer VB XS PITIER 2 R R ZE -

letter in respect of the grant of options.

Share options do not confer rights on RS EE THAAEDRRE
the holders to dividends or to vote at RERRERE FIREMER -

shareholders’ meetings.
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30.Share Option Schemes (continuea)

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

(continued)

(f)

Exercise of options (continued)

On 1 June 2010, an aggregate of 37,680,000
share options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme were issued to two directors
of the Company and 144 employees of
the Group. On 14 October 2010, another
1,500,000 share options under the Pre-
IPO Share Scheme were issued to a key
management personnel of the Group. The
exercise prices and exercise periods of the
Pre-IPO Share Options outstanding at 31
December 2012 are as follows:

Exercise price

31 December 2012
BE-_T——F+_-_A=+—HItFE

0.BkEsr &

(1) BRXFABRERNERETS

vy
=3

V=W,

()

R-ZB—FFXA—H BEARQ
AIHNMEAE SR R AKEMN144%
BB #HITE R AREERERE
5T &118 T & #£37,680,00017 f %
B-N_T-TFE+A+TA -
AEE-—BETREEASERT
Eﬁ@ﬁ%%ﬁ%%%%ﬂﬁT
% 9M,500,00017 i Bx #E » 70 =
——f+=-A=t—8" ﬁ*ﬁ
EERARBEENBRENTTE
BRITERSANT

Number of options per share Exercise period
BREZE BRITEE fTfEH
1,500,000 HK$5.0 14 QOctober 2011 to 14 October 2021

5.087T E——F+ATEAES—F+A+HEA
3,268,000 HK$0.2 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

0.287T —FRA-BEZZE-__FA—H
3,418,000 HK$0.4 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

0487 —FRA-BEZZE-__FA—H
805,000 HK$0.6 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

0.687T —FRA-BE-ZE-_F,A—H
2,343,000 HK$0.8 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

0.887T —FRA-BE-ZE-_F,A—H
4,528,000 HK$1.0 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.0 —FRA-BE-ZE-_F,A—H
2,730,000 HK$1.2 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1,287 —FRA-BE-ZE-__F,A—H
3,760,000 HK$1.4 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.4% 7T —FRA-BE-ZE-__F,A—H
2,810,000 HK$1.6 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.6/ —FRA-BE-ZE-__F,A—H
4,860,000 HK$1.8 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.8 —FRA-BE-ZE-__F5A—H
5,040,000 HK$2.0 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

2.087T —FRA-BEZZE-_F5A—H

35,062,000

—FFR

BIEBREAERAT | —2—
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31 December 2012
BE_ZT——F+_-_A=+—HIEE

30.Share Option Schemes @ontinueq) ~ 30. BB REEH &l ()
(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (1) BRAFEERERESTS
(continued) (&)
(f)  Exercise of options (continued) (6  ITIEREREE)
Fair value of share options: BT A A EE
Average fair Recognised
value on in expense
Grant date Total shares grant date  Total value In 2012 In 2011
RHH AR REBH AEE —-S--Ff C—B--f%
A NEE BRRMX
HK$ per share RMB RMB RMB
BRET AR® ARE AR®
1 June 2010 “E-TFA—H 37,680,000 1.110 36,684,000 8,009,000 10,763,000
14 October 2010 “Z-FTETATMEA 1,500,000 0.381 491,000 120,000 69,000
39,180,000 37,175,000 8,129,000 10,832,000




30.Share Option Schemes (continued) 30.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi&3RFRMi =

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

(continued)

()

Exercise of options (continued)

The fair value of the Pre-IPO Share Options
granted was estimated as at the date of grant
by Jones Lang LaSalle Sallmanns Limited,
an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers, using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs
to the model used:

1 June 2010
—E-EFxXA—H

\ =/

31 December 2012

BE_ZT——#+-_A=1+—HItEE

B B R A R3S AR O A
AABE REHEHMEBYE
X¥eBEBRMEMPERITEME
RARRA - EAREEL I
E B B B TR IR B0 R &
R MAETT AT » TREIIKA
AIRBV S AR E RS -

Grant date
- quel=
14 October 2010
—2-FF+A+MA

Exercise price TEE(ERBT)
(HKS per share)

Expected dividend yield (%) FEHIAE 8K (%)

Expected volatility (%) TEHERRE 1R (%)

Risk-free interest rate (%) /@& = (%)

Expected life of share
options (years)

Weighted average
share price at grant

date (HK$ per share)

BN FH(F)

(BRBIETT)

The expected life of the Pre-IPO Share
Options is not necessarily indicative of
the exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility may not necessarily
reflect the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair
value.

R B R i P A E

02-20 5.0
62.47 49.24
3.64 2.12

10 10

1.667 1.600

BRARBEBRENTRRF
HIAR G EAREELEMITERAD
HiIR - HHRERAS —ERRE
BREER o

BRI e B A R R AR
MARARBENER -

—FFR

BrEBEMERAT | —T—
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31 December 2012
BE—_ZT——H#+-_A=+—HItFE

30.Share Option Schemes (continuea)

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

(continued)

(f)  Exercise of options (continued)

(1)

The following share options were outstanding

under the Scheme during the year:

2012

—E——F

Weighted
average
exercise price

30. IR El e

BX DB ER B & 8
(#)

6  TTREAEREE)

AT RFEAEIET WARITEN
FRARHE -

2011
—T——F
Weighted
Number of average Number of
options  exercise price options

MEFITEE BREZE mELSTEE BRESE

HK$ per share ‘000 HKS$ per share ‘000

SRET T4 FRAET T

At 1 January 1.31 39,180 1.31 39,180
Granted during the year ERE L - - - -
Forfeited during the year TR 1.20 (1,815) = =
Exercised during the year & R7T{E 0.41 (2,303) - -
At 31 December R+=ZR=+—H 1.38 35,062 1.31 39,180

The weighted average share price at the
date of exercise for share options exercised
during the year was HK$0.41 per share
(2011: No share options were exercised).

FRITENBRERITER RN
IR FIRE R ER0.41ETL(Z
T——F  HEEREETE) -



At 31 December 2012, the Company had
outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options for the
subscription of 35,062,000 shares under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 2.6% of the
issued share capital of the Company as
at that date. The exercise in full of the
outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options would,
under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 35,062,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$3,506,200
(equivalent to RMB2,859,306) and share
premium of HK$44,764,000 (equivalent to
RMB36,505,000), before related issuance
expenses.

The Company operates a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) which was approved
and adopted by the written resolutions of all
the shareholders of the Company passed on
14 October 2010 for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to eligible persons for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote
the interests of, the Group and for such other
purposes as the Board may approve from time
to time. Eligible persons of the Scheme include
any director or employee (whether full time or part
time), consultant or advisor of the Group who, in
the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed
to or will contribute to the Group.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme
are as follows:

The Share Option Scheme is available to the
directors and employees (whether full time
or part time) of any member of the Group.

31 December 2012
BE-FT —_F+t-A=1+—"HLFE

R—_E——F+-_A=+—H"
AKARBEBRITEERAAEE
RIEERRE - AIRBEANLAHEE
B B J% 4 51 81 18 135,062,0008%
D HERAQRAREBNE
BITIRAH2.6%  IRIEARAIH
MERARLERE - 2EITERITE
BRAARBERERESEHE
77 7K A A)35,062,0000% 58 4 & i@
f&1n » DA R EESMNIR A3,506,200/%
TT(HEEMARE2,859,3067T) &
%19 348 (B 44,764,000 7T (FHHE R
A R #36,505,0007T ) (0B 48
BITRAT) °

ARARET AR B[RS
gl BARAFBARRERR-_ZT—F
FTATHABENEMRBERMER
R B ERASASEEEL TR S TE
BHRAAEEN @ Z A ERA LR
RELEE  AREFS TR ENE
BN - FENAERALTERESTS
ERABFSEHARHAE T WEELR
B AEEETMESHES(2RR
B BREEEAA -

BRERT SN2 T T

FERER 8 R T AREEMAKE R
AINEZEREE (TwmEREsRE)

oy

BrEBREMBRAR | — S ——F£H
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31 December 2012
BE-_FT —_F+t-A=1+—"HLEFE

Share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time or with an aggregate value (based
on the price of the Company’s shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting and certain disclosure and
reporting requirements.

The maximum number of unexercised share
options currently permitted to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes, must not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant
in the Scheme within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting and certain disclosure
and reporting requirements.

BTARBIES  TEBTBRAR
AEBRRABEAEMBEA
THERE  AZREREIENT
EEMHLE - WS BEERTZ
8 A HEE FARRA M EZBER
HBUEMTES  HRENE
o] Bsp B8 A 9 (E (] BB ACAE - AR
AN R ) A ] B [ A B T T R D
B0.1% %k B EESA &F T(RE
REHBAHRARRNREMEE)
o RAIAESREBRRAES LIE
BRERHAE - WABTETHRER
FRSARE ©

Rt 8 R AR E BT 8 B
A AL 3T M R TT(E 2 RE AR R 7T
FERARBEZEO &S LR
B TSEBEA QAR B E
BEBEITRMDAE Z30% - VI
fl+ (@AM RIFASET
BUABKRSEE ZBRE R #
TN 2 &=H B EEAERT
BRRARBEHITRN Z21% °
MU RS ERE-FREZ
BREALESRRERRNERRE
B - WETETHRERREKE
Xo
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30.Share Option Schemes (continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme (continued)

()

(@)

Subscription price

The subscription price of share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not
be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of offer of the share
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer; and (jii) the nominal value of
the shares of the Company. A consideration
of RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of
the offer of an option or options.

Duration of the Scheme

The Scheme became effective on 16
November 2010, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from the date of adoption of the Scheme
by shareholders by resolution at a general
meeting.

31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=1+—HItEE

30. B fERT &l »)

(2) BREE®

(@

BRECRBEREFTERTE
BARERORE L EREZ AR
READ R P 2 W R i)
ZERLARIAERZBEALR
AR B XX P 2 F W B
KA R B RO ZEE(A RS
RE) - BRI BRAER DR
AR¥1.007TTHHRAE °

FER-_ZF-TF+—-HA+XH
R BRAITREBHERTIN - #§
BERRBEREAN S BERERK
MBI BT FARERX -

BrEBEAERAT | T —EFR
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31 December 2012
BE—_ZT——H+-_A=1+—HItFEE

30.Share Option Schemes (continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme (continued) (2)

(€)

()

Exercise period and vesting period

Options granted on 22 November 2011
under the Share Option Scheme can only
be exercised in the following manner:

Exercise period
Grid:

Maximum percentage
of options exercisable

0. AT &)

BRETE @)

AFIEBERENESEDL

REBREAIN - ——F+
— AT - HREHBREER
BATHATIAITRE :

Vesting period
FRH

Anytime during the 5 years
from the Offer Date on or
after 1 December 2012
REHAH-_FT——F+-A—H
2 18 T F R A

Anytime during the 5 years
from the Offer Date on
or after 1 December 2013
REHBH-_T-—=F+-H—H
2 18 T F R A

Anytime during the 5 years
from the Offer Date on
or after 1 December 2014
REHBP-_T—MNFE+_-A—H
2 18 T F R A

Exercise of options

1/3 of the total number of
options granted

EROERERSR1/3

1/3 of the total number of
options granted

EROERERSR1/3

1/3 of the total number of
options granted

BEROERERSR1/3

Any exercise of an option granted under
the Share Option Scheme is subject to
conditions as may be specified in the offer
letter in respect of the grant of options.

Share options do not confer rights on
the holders to dividends or to vote at

shareholders’ meetings.

()

Up to the date immediately before
1 December 2012

BREE-_T-—F+-A—HH
EHALL

Up to the date immediately before
1 December 2013

BERER-_T-=F+_A—HA
EHALL

Up to the date immediately before
1 December 2014

BEEEE -T-ME+_A— B
EARILE

TTERIEEBAE R 8 VR
AT B EN ZLHE M
B IR R -

BREYEE THAEATMRE
Mo AEZABREIRBREAE L

OE
X o=
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30.Share Option Schemes (continuea)

(2) Share Option Scheme (continued)

®

Exercise of options (continued)

On 22 November 2011, an aggregate of
15,200,000 share options under the Share
Option Scheme were issued to 3 directors
of the Company and 205 employees of the
Group. The exercise prices and exercise
periods of the share options outstanding at
31 December 2012 are as follows:

Exercise price

31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=1+—HItEE

30.FB IR ESTEl 2
(2) HBRETE(®)
(0 FHERRE(E)

RZT——F+—A=+=H"
AARFN=ZEERAEEDN
205% e BB ITHRRERTEIB TS
15,200,000 B IR #E - M= F
——F+ZA=+—HBHHERITE
B R 1T R (B R 1T BAE a0
T ¢

Number of options per share Exercise period
BRERAR BRITEE THEH
13,700,000 HK$2.39 1 December 2012 to
22 November 2016
2.39% 7T —E-_F+__A—HZE
—E-RFT—HAZ+ZH
Fair value of share options: ERENAAEE :
Average fair Recognised  Recognised
value on in expense  in expense
Grant date Total shares grant date  Total value in 2012 in 2011
KA R K B&TY “B—F —T——F
RAEE BEE ®RARRX BRARAX
HK$ per share RMB RMB RMB
BRAET AR ARETT AR
22 November 2011 15,200,000 0.949 11,775,000 5,611,000 714,000
—E——%+-A-tZH

—FFR

BrEBEMERAT | —T—
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31 December 2012
BE—_ZT——H+-_A=1+—HItFEE

30.Share Option Schemes (continued)

0. AT &)

(2) Share Option Scheme (continued) (2) HERETE®)
(fl  Exercise of options (continued) (f)
The fair value of the share options granted RZT——F+—A=+=H"
was estimated as at the date of grant by RHAOBRENALEE  RIR
Jones Lang LaSalle Sallmanns Limited, an HRBEBEY XS ERMGMERM
independent firm of professionally qualified MERITAMAERATEAZIE
valuers, using the binomial lattice model, AEEARE - I Z B ERE
taking into account the terms and conditions P4 18 B 6% 3R % 16% 45 T o 1T 1k
upon which the options were granted. The 5t e TRETIRAZER R A
following table lists the inputs to the model BB R -
used:
Grant date
& H
22 November 2011
—E2——+—-HA=+=H
Exercise price (HK$ per share) TEE(ERET) 2.39
Expected dividend yield (%) TEHARR B (%) 1.54
Expected volatility (%) TEHRR IR (%) 66.27
Risk-free interest rate (%) R FIZE(%) 0.68
Expected life of share options (years)  TEHABEAERFEI(F) 5
Weighted average share price at grant P B EiR INAE F A% (B
date (HK$ per share) (FRETT) 2.14

The expected life of the Share Options is
not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected
volatility may not necessarily reflect the
actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair
value.

BRENTRRFHRYSEAIEE
EWMITERARER - BHKIE
AUb—ERRERER -

BRI a0 B R S AR
MARARBENER -
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31 December 2012
BHE-_ZT——F+_A=+—HBILEE

30.Share Option Schemes (continuvey ~ 30. BB IR BEEFT &l (2)

(2) Share Option Scheme (continued) (2) HERETE )
()  Exercise of options (continued) N TTIEEREE)
The following share options were outstanding AT AFREEIETHERITE
under the Scheme during the year: AR AR A
2012 2011
—E--F 5

Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
MEFTEE BREHE mETETER BRI E
HK$ per share 000 HKS$ per share ‘000
FRET T4 BRAET T
At 1 January R—A—H 2.39 15,200 - -
Granted during the year FRE L - - 2.39 15,200
Forfeited during the year SRl 2.39 (1,500) = =
At 31 December ®“+=—A=+—H 2.39 13,700 2.39 15,200

—FFR

IRBEMAERAR | —Z—

3+
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31 December 2012
BHE_ZT——F+_-_A=+—HIEE

30.Share Option Schemes (continueq)

(2) Share Option Scheme (continued)

(7

Exercise of options (continued)

At 31 December 2012, the Company
had outstanding share options for the
subscription of 13,700,000 shares under the
Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 1.0% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at that date.
The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 13,700,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$1,370,000
(equivalent to RMB1,117,000) and share
premium of HK$31,373,000 (equivalent to
RMB25,585,000), before related issuance
expenses.

31. Note to the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows

Major non-cash transactions

There was no significant non-cash transactions during
the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012.

O.fBRR#ESTE
(2) HBRETE(®)
(f  ITIEERE(E)

RZTE—=—F+=ZA=+—80 "
RAGHBRITEERE - IR
i B8 f% % 5T &1 18 13,700,000
R - HERARATRE BH
BEITRALN1.0% REAA
AIMBBERAEE  2ETER
TEERES %ﬁﬁéﬁ$“
13,700,000 58 /M B Ax 17 -

K B8 AN AR 451,370,000/ x(*ﬁ—rr
B A R #1,117,0007T ) & B 15 %
831,373,000/ 7T (FHE R AR
25,585,0007T ) (kR AEREE 31T 7
XA °

1. EHBEERERMHE

TEHFRAETRZ

RBE_T——FR-_F——-F+=-A=+
—HIEFER  BEERFRERS



The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the financial statements.

The merger reserve of the Group represents the
capital contributions by Mr. Dong Li, a director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, to
the subsidiaries directly held by Mr. Dong Li before
the group reorganisation on 8 June 2010.

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to
allocate 10% of their profit after tax to the reserve
fund until such reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries. Subject
to certain restrictions set out in the Company
Law of the PRC, part of the reserve fund may
be converted to increase paid-up capital/issued
capital of the PRC subsidiaries, provided that
the remaining balance after the capitalisation is
not less than 25% of the registered capital. The
reserve fund of the PRC subsidiaries amounted
to RMB78,576,000 and RMB70,979,000 as at 31
December 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of
companies outside the PRC. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 2.4.

31 December 2012
BE-FT —_F+t-A=1+—"HLFE

AEEAFELBEFROREELER
HEBSRERGRENGEMAS
=LELTR

AEENAHEBEARRESRIE
BRERREFAEENR_Z-ZFRAN
HEMARFAHEEZRT BB AR
EE o

BEFERGE - NEBA S R B
NS EE E R B & 5 F10% 8 A
EENES  HEZRELESEIT
& A KB50% A 1 - £ BRAEEET
e E TREFEBRT - B EERE
SR FUAEBRAENBRELR, B
TRA - EREBENMeM TSR ERE
MMER FMEARH25% - HEHEA
AMAEER - E——F+-_A=+
—ARZE——F+ZA=+—H%
Bl & AN R #78,576,0000T & A R #
70,979,0007T °

KB EEEEMERREREIN
SNARI A MELMELZH -
ZiFEBEEANH T2 40 Bt R E
e
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31 December 2012
BE—_ZT——H#+-_RA=+—HItFEE

32. Reserves (continued)

(@) Group (continued)

Share option reserve

32. 1=

Details of the Company’s share option schemes

BIREF G

BRAAR R B 8 IRt 31317

and the share options issued under the KBS IR TS - SR TSR MIFES0 »
schemes are included in note 30 to the financial
statements.
Company (b) 2 E]
Share Share Proposed
premium  Shareholders’ option  Accumulated final
account  contribution reserve losses dividend Total
RO &ERE RRER ERERE ZitFE  RKRERE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
Balance at RZT——E-A-Af

1 January 2011 & 1,342,297 337,830 6,830 (23,821) - 1,663,136
Total comprehensive ERmEEBEEE

loss for the year - - - (40,534) - (40,534)
Fauity-setled share RS RRER

option arrangements (H3k30)

(note 30) = = 11,546 = = 11,546
Interim dividend MRS (35,959) - - - - (35,953
Proposed final dividend BERERS 21332) - - - 21,332 -
At 31 December 2011 RIE——E+ZA=1-

and 1 January 2012 AR=F--F-F—-A 125012 337,830 18,376 (64,355) 21332 1,598,195
2011 final ovidend declared  BER-Z——FXHKE 3967 = - - (21332) (17,365)
Total comprehensive ERmEEENEE

profit for the year - - - 680 - 680
2012 interim and ZE-ZERBRERIRE

special dividends (54,200) - - - - (54,206)
Exercise of the share options /7B E 2872 - (2.294) - - 578
Equity-settled share option MRS ERRELH

amangements (note 30) (Ft3¥30) - = 13,740 = = 13,740
Proposed final dividend RIERBRE
At 31 December 2012 WB-TETZR=T-R 1297646 337,830 29822 (63,675 - 154162
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33.Pledge of Assets

31 December 2012
BHE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—HBILEE

33.EEE M

31 December 2012 “B-“f+ZfA=t-H
Prepaid Property, Trade
land lease plant and Pledged and bills
payments equipment deposits  receivables Total
Bt 0xEBE BZEWRE
HER k#EfE CERER REWEE @t
ARBTRE ARBTR AR%®TR AR®Trn AR¥T:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(note 16) (note 15) (note 23) (note 21)
(fE16) (PEE15) (F&E23) (FEE21)
Interest-bearing bank it BFFEE
borrowings (note 27)  (HiEE27) 34,400 488,007 620,130 67,185 1,209,722
Trade and bills BHEMFER
payables (note 24) ERER (fi24) - - 278,380 - 278,380
Issue of letters FHEREN 2
of credit - - 32,413 - 32,413
Total Bt 34,400 438,007 930,923 67,185 1,520,515

BLEBEAARAT | —T——FF%
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31 December 2012

BE—_ZT——H+-_A=1+—HItFEE

33.Pledge of Assets (continued)

3. EEH M

31 December 2011 —Z—%tZA=t—-H
Prepaid Property, Trade
land lease plant and Pledged and bills
payments equipment deposits receivables Total
‘AL BE - EE B oA
HER RE  DEAER REREE @5t
ARETT ARETT AR%TR ARETT AR%TT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
(note 16) (note 15) (note 23) (note 21)
(HzE16) (F#3E15) (F¥5E23) (F¥at21)
Interest-bearing bank B RITIEE (HFE27)
borrowings (note 27) 10,696 292,762 591,377 75,582 970,417
Trade and bills BHRNTARERNRE
payables (note 24) (Hi3E24) - - 16,608 - 16,608
Issue of letters of credit % Hi{EAEM] & - - 32,506 - 32,506
Total @at 10,696 292,762 640,491 75,582 1,019,531
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31 December 2012
BE-_T——F+_-_A=+—HItFE

34.0perating Lease Arrangements 4. REHELH
(a) As lessor (a) EAHBA
The Group leases office premises under operating AEBRBEEHETHEHAETHA b
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for EWMER I - KEFNESHEN T ﬁ
terms ranging from five to ten years. The terms SEZ10F - A —MITPABEP AN ‘||
of the leases generally also require the tenants RESRBEBEERT AT HEESED B
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic FHEE o ‘_I
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing I3
market conditions. 5;1
Ir
At 31 December 2012, the Group had total future RZZE—=—F+=-A=+—H  &~5H E
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable BB A HELLHEER T2 H A
operating leases with its tenants falling due as RREEEERKFIBEEAT +H
follows: &
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Within one year 1R 81 43

In the second to F2EZESF - BREEREMF
fifth years, inclusive 155 146
After five years NS 3 20 58
256 247
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31 December 2012
BHE_ZT——F+_-_A=+—HIEE

34.0perating Lease Arrangements 4. REHEZH @
(continued)
(b) As lessee (b) EHRABEA
The Group leases certain of its office properties AEBEREBEEEHELRHHAAETHA
and office equipment under operating lease EMERPARE - WRAEMENLE
arrangements. Leases for properties are EmAESHEN T126F ERRARE
negotiated for terms ranging from one to six BN F2E54F o

years, and those for office equipment are for
terms ranging between two and five years.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2012

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had total RZE—ZF+HA=+—H0  &x&H

future minimum lease payments under non- RBET AT EHER T2 B8
cancellable operating leases falling due as RAREEHEEFNKBEOT ¢

follows:

Group
rEH

2012 2011

—E-—F —T——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETT

Within one year 1FR 4,707 5,913

In the second to FOFEFELSF BREEEMT
fifth years, inclusive 10,790 1,086
After five years N5F% 19,122 =
34,619 6,999
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35.Commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 34(b) above, the Group had the following capital

31 December 2012

BE_ZT——#+-_A=1+—HItEE

35. R

B £ 3C(H 5E34(0)) 7 aft iy 48 & A B g S
RBERERE - AEERARFBEUATE

commitments at the end of the reporting period: AEGE -
Group
TEH
2012 2011
—F-=F —F—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETT
Contracted, but not BRI OB REE
provided for:
Land and buildings TH KRBT 36,623 74,582
Plant and machinery R Kt 25 96,037 70,678
132,660 145,260
Capital contribution FEREE -
payable for:
Investments in BN TR A ()
associates (i) 11,100 17,712
Investment in B ARIRE
a subsidiary - _
11,100 17,712
143,760 162,972

—FFR
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31 December 2012
BE-_FT —_F+t-A=1+—"HLEFE

Leoch Investment (Singapore) Pte. Limited
agreed to acquire a 40% equity interest in
Leoch Accupower (M) SDN BHD, a company
incorporated in Malaysia, by Leoch Investment
(Singapore) Pte. Limited, a subsidiary of the
Group, and ACCUPRO Sdn Bhd at a consideration
of RMB43,000,000 (i.e., MYR20,000,000) in
accordance with the terms and conditions set
on in an agreement entered into by both parties
on 10 August 2011. As at 31 December 2012,
RMB6,700,000 has yet to be paid in future.

Leoch Investment (Singapore) Pte. Limited
agreed to acquire a 35% equity interest in
Master Electronic Group Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, by Leoch Investment
(Singapore) Pte. Limited, and lhsan Jamil Nizam,
Jamil Edward Nizam, Sami Edard Nizam, Basel
Hassan Nizam, Rial Ihsan Nizam, and Amir Jamil
Nizam, at a consideration of RMB4,400,000 (i.e.
US$700,000) in accordance with the terms and
conditions set on in an agreement entered into
by all parties on 26 October 2011. As at 31
December 2012, the amount has not yet been
paid.

RIERXGERFR_ZE——FNA+H
2 37 155 &% BT 1 89 {6k 3R K 16 14 - Leoch
Investment (Singapore) Pte. Limited
(NEEBE KB 2R A )R = BLeoch
Investment (Singapore) Pte. Limited &
ACCUPRO Sdn Bhd{ i — X 1 55 2k
P s Ak 2 # A Alleoch Accupower
(M) SDN BHD 40%Hz# - KEAAR
#43,000,0007T(20,000,0005 7T ) °
R=F—=F+=-A=+—0 ' AR¥
6,700,000 A4F B & X A -

BEZXFEFTN _T——F+A =+~
B 51 3 195 =% P & B9 5 5k B AR 1+ Leoch
Investment (Singapore) Pte. Limited[d]
Z fLeoch Investment (Singapore) Pte.
Limited&2lhsan Jamil Nizam * Jamil
Edward Nizam * Sami Edard Nizam -
Basel Hassan Nizam - Rial Ihsan
Nizam & Amir Jamil Nizamig i — R %
BB A S HY A BlMaster Electronic
Group Limited 35%/%# - KEAAR
#4,400,0007T(700,000% 7T ) ° B =
T——_F+ZA=1+—8  FEHKRX
i -
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36.Related Party Transactions

31 December 2012

BE_ZT——#+-_A=1+—HItEE

36.FAEALRS

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances (@) BRRHMBEREA T Fl S R

detailed elsewhere in the financial statements,

the Group had the following transactions with TR S -

fellow subsidiaries during the year:

BN AEBERRNMBRREFAE

2012 2011
—F—C=F —ZT——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Purchases from related EEELRBE (M)
companies (note i)
Dongguan Leoch Power REBETEREGAERAR]
Supply Co., Ltd. - 2,413
Shanghai Donmin Vehicle EERREEEFRAA]
Co., Ltd. 2,059 3,560
Shenzhen Marshell Green FIEEREREGRAA]
Power Co., Ltd. 29,050 30,645
Shenzhen Marshell Power RT3 78 AR AR R BT
Supply Co., Ltd. BRATA - 41
Shenzhen Marxon Power RN T BB TR BT
Supply Co., Ltd. BRATF 4,059 6,612
Guangdong Marshell Electric BRIEAREB TR
Vehicle Co. Ltd. BRAF 6,120 290
41,288 43,561
Purchases of facilities from o B8 & A B R RR e (B aii)
related companies (note i
Guangdong Marshell Electric BRISAREE AR AR
Vehicle Co. Ltd. 19,354 -

—FFR
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31 December 2012
BE—_ZT——H#+-_RA=+—HItFEE

36.Related Party Transactions

(a) (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements B &R FRHisE

(@) #&)

2012 2011
—B-=fF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Sales to related companies (note i) BEAE D AHE (KizFH)
MSB MANUFACTURING SDN BHD MSB MANUFACTURING
SDN BHD 20,152 —
Shanghai Donmin Vehicle Co., Ltd. FBRREEERR AT 2,291 9,588
Shenzhen Marshell Green AT RERE
Power Co., Ltd. BRATA 1,542 9,177
Shenzhen Marxon Power RN T B R TR
Supply Co., Ltd. BRA T 10,984 12,452
Guangdong Marshell Electric BRISAREERHY
Vehicle Co. Ltd BRAFA 5,566 1,985
Shanghai Leoch Power EEELTERBHER
Supply Co., Ltd BRAA] 8 -
Shenzhen Marshell Power RN T 35 70 R AE R R T
Supply Co., Ltd ABRAT 4 =
40,547 33,202
Lease of office premises HEREREATR
from two related companies —RESHERLNEYE
and a director
Shenzhen Marshell Power RN T I 7R AR AR BT
Supply Co., Ltd. (note i) AR A A (B i) 690 690
Eastern International LLC (note iv) Eastern International LLC
(P Eiv) 2,263 2,286
Dongguan Leoch Power REBTEREMERAA]
Supply Co., Ltd (note vi) (B 5Evi) - -
Mr. Dong Li (note v) EFEE (i) 271 263
3,224 3,239




(continued)

Notes:

0

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

The sales of products to and purchases of raw
materials and equipment from related companies
were made at prices mutually agreed between the
parties.

On 25 October 2012, the Group entered into a
purchase agreement with Guangdong Marshell,
pursuant to which the Group has agreed to
purchase certain reserve power battery facilities
from Guangdong Marshell at a total consideration
of not more than RMB30 million.

The rental expenses were paid in relation to the lease
of two office premises of the Group to Shenzhen
Marshell Power Supply Co., Ltd. based on monthly
rentals of RMB55,394 and RMB2,136 respectively
from September 2010.

The rental expenses were paid in relation to the
lease of office premises of the Group to Eastern
International LLC based on a monthly rental of
US$30,000 from 1 August 2008.

The rental expenses were paid in relation to the
lease of office premises of the Group to Mr. Dong
Li at an annual rent of RMB72,000 for the period
from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2015 and at
an annual rent of SG$39,000 for the period from
10 March 2010 to 10 March 2013.

On 30 June 2010, the Group entered into an
agreement with Dongguan Leoch Power Supply
Co., Ltd. to purchase this manufacturing plant at a
future date when the conditions in the agreement
are met. The consideration will be determined
based on a third party valuation report at the future
transfer date. The Group was granted by Dongguan
Leoch Power Supply Co., Ltd. a licence to use the
manufacturing plant at nil consideration between
the date of the agreement and the actual transfer
date in future.

31 December 2012

HE_ZT——F+-_A=1T—HILFE

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

REEARIHEERKEERM MR
BIRETH77 B EMNERETT -

R-_ZT——F+A-+AHAB ££H
ﬁ?%ﬁﬁ@ﬂjﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁ'
$§IH MERIGTEREES T
ki %@ﬁfﬁ?f@i@}\ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ
27T °

}E#

H-Z—ZFhAR  BAFITI
ﬁxuf&mﬁ@ AHEAREBEHN
MERAEWEMZAHNESHAS
T Rtz A ARBES5,394 Tk AR
#2 1367CATHE °

L [Eastern International LLCH &
SENBAEYEMZNHE SR
X HBZZETENFNA—BRAEA
30,0003 7T °

BMEFLELERE $$lm ’i%
EMxNMBERY =T —FF
fﬂfai_if£¢+_ﬁ:+f
B LLHFE & FHE B A RE72,0007T -
NWEBE=—F-—FF=A+tRE_F—
=F= A+ A LHRFHEA39,000
AT

RZZFBE—ZFXA=+H KEEHE
%%@i BREMBERRABIET
o ARG REERRNRERB
HESELEEERE REBRER
%EE%EHHE’J”ZHEE#&i%MF
cAKBERTELTERERE
Aﬂﬁj’mﬁma%iXXEm
%%Hﬁﬂﬁﬁf’aﬂﬁgﬁfgﬁﬁ%@?ﬁ@
%o

T-_FFR

—=
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Details of the Group’s balances with its related
parties are disclosed in note 26.

In September 2010, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into an agreement ended 31 August 2012
with Shenzhen Marshell Power Supply Co., Ltd.,
a company which is 100% held by Mr. Dong Li, a
director and controlling shareholder of the Group,
in relation to the lease of two office premises. The
Group extended this agreement to 23 December
2015. The Group’s total lease expenses to be
paid to Shenzhen Marshell Power Supply Co.,
Ltd. will be RMB690,360 in 2013, RMB690,360
in 2014 and RMB675,514 in 2015.

In August 2008, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an agreement ended 31 December 2012 with
Eastern International LLC, a company which is
100% held by Mr. Dong Li’s spouse, in relation
to office premises. The Group extended this
agreement to 31 May 2026 during the current
year. The Group’s total lease expenses to be
paid to Eastern International LLC in 2013 and
thereafter until 2025 will be RMB2,271,888 per
year and RMB946,620 in 2026.

NEA AR AR RSB EERREA
THEBRR IS E R 26K EE -

A Eiﬂﬂ REBKE A
YT IR LRI AR A T(EE
Zﬁ;‘%l%%?ﬁ Hxﬁxﬁﬁif‘ﬁi%ﬁ
100% =M A E ) HHEMEHRAE
MELHRBAE T ——FNA=1—
BAIENGR ASEEEZHAETH
E_E—FAF+-_fZ+=H  ZFT—
—FNHERT BB R BREME
34(a) c AEB I FRYIMIBAEREER
BMERARMNEERSBEBAE-T
— =% AR¥690,3607C + —ZT—MF
ARBE90,360T R —E—HE AR
675,5147T °

iz

%é\l

z

REZZZENFENA - REEMBARE
Eastern International LLC (lRE&EZ= %4
E’J@E@ﬁﬁmo%%ﬁéﬁ’] A]) ph A & i
AREMETVHPE T —=—F+=A
=t+—HALNHZ Z?»"*@EJ‘TiW
Bz aEHE—_ S - "FRA=1+—
H o A& & X { FEasterninternational
LLCHHERZBERA-T—=F
E_T_hFEFAR2271,8887T
N ZTZRF ARIL6,6207T °
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36.Related Party Transactions

31 December 2012
BE-_T——F+_-_A=+—HItFE

36. Eggk * 355 (%)

(continued)
(c) Commitments with related parties: (c) ERBAE A WA &)
(continued)
In January 2010 and March 2010, a subsidiary of RZE—ZEF-—ARZZT—ZF=8"
the Group entered into two agreements ended 31 AEENBARIRASEEEEF L
December 2015 and 10 March 2013, respectively, HEERAEMEITLMHBERADRIZE
with Mr. Dong Li, the director of the Group, in —E-AFF+A=+—RHAKkZZT—=
relation to office premises. The Group extended F=ZATHRIENWE - AEEEK=
the agreement which expired on 10 March 2013 E-=F=ZATHERMIBERTENE=
to 10 March 2014 and the annual rent had T—NFE=A+H  FH2HAE54,000
been changed to SG$54,000. The Group’s total FIMEIT e AEBINTFTEFTHEN
lease expenses to be paid to Mr.Dong Li will be HERXRBEKR_T—=ZFAR%K
RMB330,510 in 2013 and RMB124,877 in 2014 330,5107C * —F—F ARKE124,877
and RMB72,000 in 2015. TTRZZE—HF AREKT2,0007T °
(d) Compensation of key management d) AEEFEEEAESNHE :
personnel of the Group:
2012 2011
—B——F —EB——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥TT
Basic salaries and other benefits EXR#Fe AR 4,576 4,636
Performance related bonuses HE R IR TEAT 1,186 909
Equity-settled share option expenses MAREZS&EHEBIAER X 2,635 3,643
Retirement benefit scheme RO I
contributions 60 62
8,457 9,250

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 9 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of the
sales, purchase and lease transactions above also
constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

EZMEFIREN Y BEREMEES °

R EMRAE+TOAZNESE - Lt
FANHE - BERAERZNEELRX
SIMBREER ZHIFEMERS ©

ZEEFR
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31 December 2012
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37. Financial Instruments by

Category and Fair Values

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

Notes to the Financial Statements B &R FRHisE

7. BB PN ERMT A

financial instruments as at the end of the year are as

FHE SR TARNFRENREERAT

follows:
Group Company
AEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
“E2-CF 5 —E-CF 5
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT ARETR ARETT
Loans and receivables ERREYRHE
Non-current portion of B S YNGR
trade receivables FEENEE H 18,178 14,115 - -
Trade and bills receivables BHRWKTIER
eSS 939,747 804,119 - =
Deposits and other HESES 6
receivables 36,909 27,677 12,267 9,094
Amounts due from [E =R AR
related companies 7,362 13,150 - -
Pledged deposits BERER 930,923 640,491 559,650 591,377
Time deposits with terms BB=EAMN
over 3 months EHFER - 28,500 - 28,500
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 82,893 73,371 390 2,549
Financial assets at fair AREEZEBTA
value through profit BENESREE
or loss
Equity investments at fair AREEEZDA
value through profit Bz fEmlt
or loss: RE:
Held for trading FENELHE 935 1,262 - -
Financial assets at DABEEEFA
fair value through BRmeREE
profit or loss 5,215 = = =
2,003,984 1,602,685 572,307 631,520
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37. Financial Instruments by

Category and Fair Values
(continued)

37.

31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=1+—HItEE

RERNSTVEM IR o)

Group Company
ALE NG
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F--F —F—F —F--F —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT AR®ET AREFT
Financial liabilities at REHRATIE
amortised cost Hemas
Trade and bills payables BIENTIER
ENER 1,006,935 547,859 - -
Other payables and accruals Het R FIE R
et E R 126,683 106,459 - -
Interest-bearing bank TERITEE
borrowings 1,394,548 1,071,626 518,541 534,132
Amounts due to related FERENRR
companies 13,431 5,933 - -
2,541,597 1,731,877 518,541 534,132

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, pledged
deposits, time deposits with terms over three months,
current trade receivables, trade and bills payables,
financial assets included in interest receivables,
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and interest payables and
amounts due to/from related parties approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

TREERAENRAABENZTIAESR
X7 (RAFBFREERINENRH T Z
AR ZEEAR - EfER THIERBRE
BAREE-

BehBeEEY DEFAEFEX ZEAMK
EMEBREFR  BREZREFE - EH5E
NHRARENRE  SFABRKAE T2k
HipEWRIRH B E E - 5t AR MR 5K
HRENMENEREEREN, Bk EEE
ATFENLAAEEREREERS 2
HRZELABEHMNEE -

BHEABEHERAT | % —FFH
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The fair values of the non-current portion of trade
receivables and interest-bearing bank borrowings
approximate to their amortised costs which have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices. The fair values of unlisted
financial instruments are measured using valuation
techniques similar to forward pricing models, using
present value calculations. The models incorporate
various market observable inputs including the credit
quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and
forward rates and interest rate curves. The carrying
amounts of these instruments are the same as their
fair values.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining
and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have
a significant effect on the recorded fair value
are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which any inputs which have
a significant effect on the recorded fair value
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)

B B RYGRIEIEBIH#R D Rt BIR1TIEE
AR BEREEGKANES - JHERBLIF
RLEZRITME - FER R FERF T
MIEEARKIR S METE o

EHRSEERENAAEBEDERE NS
EBRAE -JFEMERTANAABERR
BOURNEHEENMGHERMEDL - UIREE
T8 - BEREZE T Z AT S AER
AMBAE BRXZUTFHERELE A
HIMEHER R REAR - ZFTANKE
BEEEAREERES -

AEERE TR ER2BRTELRBES R
TAZRAREE:

—BA ’&ﬁ BEFE7EERBREE
Eéﬁ&m%qﬂﬁﬂﬁ{ﬁ(ﬁi

“ER G RREERENEERHAAE
BEREARENERLREAS
REENMERM

E=ER: AABREHENEERNHAAE
EEBARENETRET Y
BOBECTABRENEE) 0
i -
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37. Financial Instruments by
Category and Fair Values
(continued)

Assets measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2012:

31 December 2012
BE-_T——F+_-_A=+—HItFE

7. RER DM EMT A )

URARBEFEZEE

R-E——-F+=-A=+—8:

Group
rEH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—BR F_ER E=EBR &ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR¥T T AR¥T T AR%T R
Equity investments at AR BEZE:T
fair value through U CEp
profit or loss HigE 935 - - 935
Financial assets at AR BEZE:T
fair value through AE=R SR
profit or loss BE - 5,215 - 5,215
935 5,215 - 6,150
As at 31 December 2011: RZE——F+=ZA=+—8H:
Group
rEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—ER F_BH FZBH HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Equity investments at AR BEEZE:T
fair value through U CEp
profit or loss HgE 1,262 - - 1,262
1,262 - - 1,262
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR AABEEFERELE —ERANE=

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2011: Nil).

BR<HEELER BRABARBHE=

BR(=E——F: 1) -

BrEBREMERAR | —T——FF%

185



Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2012

31 December 2012
BE-_FT —_F+t-A=1+—"HLEFE

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other
than derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank
borrowings, other interest-bearing loans, and cash
and short term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, market risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in
interest rates relates primarily to its interest-bearing
bank borrowings. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.
Since the Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings
bear fixed interest, its exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates is low.

The Group’s production process requires a significant
amount of electrolytic lead, Acrylonitrile Butadiene
Styrene plastics (“ABS plastics”), sulphuric acid and
other materials, and the Group’s success depends
significantly on its ability to secure sufficient and
constant supply of principal raw materials for its
production at acceptable price levels. Electrolytic
lead is the most significant raw material used in the
Group’s production. The Group does not have long-
term, fixed-cost supply contracts of raw materials with
its suppliers. Since many of the Group’s sales are
priced by reference to the market price of lead at the
time of a particular order, its exposure to the risk of
changes in the price of lead is reduced.

AEENTR2EMITARKRITETARINGGT
BRITEER  HstBEERRE MEHREF
R ZETRTANTIEZRAENAKENE
ERE - ASERESREGEREE - f
WEFEWFBNEREE  THELER
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The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the Group’s functional
currency, i.e. RMB. The Group operates in Hong Kong,
the United States, Singapore and Mainland China. For
companies in Mainland China, their principal activities
are transacted in RMB. For other companies outside
of the PRC, their principal activities are transacted in
US$. Approximately 55% (2011: 51%) of the Group’s
sales were denominated in US$, whilst approximately
90.7% (2011: 91.9%) of costs were denominated in
RMB. The Group commenced using forward currencies
contracts in the year 2012 to eliminate the foreign
currency exposures arise from sales denominated in
US$ with total amount of US$5 million (2011: nil).
The forward currency contracts must be in the same
currency as the hedged item, i.e. USS$.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis, and therefore, the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the other financial assets of the
Group, which comprise cash and bank balances and
pledged deposits, deposits and other receivables and
amounts due from related companies, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in
economic, industry or geographic factors similarly
affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit
exposure is significant in relation to the Group’s total
credit exposure. The Group had certain concentrations of
credit risk as 0.4% (2011: 1.9%) and 40% (2011: 42%)
of the Group’s trade receivables were due from the
Group’s largest customer and five largest customers
respectively. Sales to these customers accounted for
34% of the Group’s total sales for the year ended 31
December 2012 (2011: 31%).

31 December 2012
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38.Financial Risk Management
Obijectives and Policies (continuea)

Significant concentration of credit risk
(continued)

The Group also had certain concentrations of credit risk
as 43% (2011: 39%) of the Group’s account receivables
were due from four largest telecommunication industry
customers. Sales to these telecom customers
accounted for 17% of the Group’s total sales for the
year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: 20%).

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings. In addition, banking facilities have
been put in place for contingency purposes.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is

38. T RlfE fn EIE B MY R IBUR

4\
(42
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EERMSESEH &)

AAREEA3% (=T ——F : 39%) 0 KR
FREWKREETREF » NEETARE
ET&EPEERR -BE_T——F+_A
=t HLEEE ARFEETEEFIEL
MHEEAEEHEREMT% (ZF——
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AEEXRABHRERDESETARRE
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AEENS BB ENDHRRIZEEHORIR
AROMET

as follows:
2012 —E-—f
Less than 3to 12 1to5
On demand 3 months months years Total
REXE DRIEA 3-12f8 A 1-5F #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR®TR AR®TR AR%T:R
Interest-bearing bank TERITEE
borrowings - 443,091 778,436 200,188 1,421,715
Trade and bills payables BEIENTBRENER - 1,006,935 - - 1,006,935
Other payables and accruals  EfbERFIA K fE:H B F 16,619 110,064 - - 126,683
Amounts due to related BN RIMIE
companies 13,431 - - - 13,431
30,050 1,560,090 778,436 200,188 2,568,764
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38.Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

2011

31 December 2012
BE_ZT——#+-_A=1+—HItEE

38.eREMEERNWREE

On demand
RERE
RMB’000

ARBTFT

(4
(AR /

REBEERERE)
—F——F

Less than 3to 12 1t05

3 months months years Total
DR3ER  3-12fA 1-5% )

RMB’'000  RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT AR®TT ARETT ARETRT

Interest-bearing FEBRAEE

bank borrowings

192,293 562,802 332,307 1,077,402

Trade and bills payables BIRNFBERENRE - 547,859 - - 547,859
Other payables and accruals — E {8 & E:H & 10,615 95,844 — - 106,459
Amounts due to related [ERTEERRRFRE
companies 5,933 - - - 5,933
16,548 835996 552,802 332,307 1,737,653
Capital management BEXRERE

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
a healthy capital ratio in order to support its business
and maximize shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2011,

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is total debts divided by total assets. The Group’s total
debts include interest-bearing bank borrowings.

AEEEAEENTIERESBERANEEHE
R EEFRARERBRENEARL R
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ELHARE - REBARBAI N TFREMNR
B FMRREBERLBITHRET L #
BRAREARB -BHE2-_ZT——F+=A
=T BRZZE——F+ZHA=1T—HILHF
ER - BEERHERE  BURSIEFITEZ
) o

AEENEBEABLLRETER  ZHEXS
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38.Financial Risk Management

8. cFIEAMEE B MWRBER

Objectives and Policies (continuead) (#%)
Capital management (continued) BEXREE®)
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—F-=F —F——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Interest-bearing FFRRITEE
bank borrowings 1,394,548 1,071,626
Total debts #BIEIR 1,394,548 1,071,626
Total assets WEE 5,097,701 4,251,551
Gearing ratio BEBELE 27.36% 25.21%

39.Approval of the Financial

Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 28 March

2013.
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Five Year Financial Summary

EEMBERE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements is set out below.

kA TEEBEMBRROARER B
EREMREENEEREE BERIFE
g2 EIIAT -

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=+-ALEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E-of5 ZE——f ZT-TF TTHNF TITN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AERTT  ARETE ARETT AR®TT AR®TR
RESULTS E
REVENUE e 3,247,986 3,164,056 2,116,871 1,391,533 1,498,997
Cost of sales HERA (2,655,784)  (2,510,311)  (1,591,254)  (1,102,083)  (1,295,102)
Gross profit E7 592,202 653,745 525,617 289,450 203,895
Other income and gains H A Rz 43,453 70,878 22,375 20,561 10,160
Selling and distribution HE R KA
expenses (159,871) (114,048) (76,495) (57,292) (43,660)
Administrative expenses IBAR (229,761) (179,758) (119,261) (70,084) (59,028)
R&D expenses FREHY (93,817) (66,730) - - -
Other expenses HiF® (12,545) (6,315) (30,311) (13,220) (15,401)
Finance costs BBAA (62,850) (29,128) (22,205) (9,614) (8,343)
Share of (losses) profits FE{EHEE AR
of associates (E518) %A (296) 122 - - -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BATE R 76,515 328,266 299,720 159,801 87,623
Income tax expense FBREAX (4,853) (44,646) (42,210) (14,523) (12,865)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  AFEHF 71,662 283,620 257,510 145,278 74,758
Profit for the year AT ATIEG
attributable to: A
Owners of the Company AN AIEA A 71,662 283,620 257,510 145,273 74,644
Non-controlling interests IR ER - - - 5 114
71,662 283,620 257,510 145,278 74,758
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Five Year Financial Summary AEHEHE

Assets, Liabilities and
Non-controlling Interests

Wit

As at 31 December

g% BRI

Mt=A=t+-H

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

—g--% E——f C-T-TF —ITNF C—TE\fF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTE  ARETT ARETT AR%TR ARETH

TOTAL ASSETS EERE 5,097,701 4251551 3,084,075 1,091,192 793,564

TOTAL LIABILITIES AfERE (2,753,420)  (1,921,337)  (1,004,301) (594,028) (437,287)
NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS IR - - - - (1,200)

2,344,281 2,330,214 2,079,774 497,164 355,077
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